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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEAL TH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

December 2, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing agreement with the Grantee listed below in bold for the continued
development and implementation of opioid abatement programs, by increasing the total price
limitation by $282,211 from $6,541,114 to $6,823,325 with no change to the contract completion
date of May 3, 2025, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Other Funds (Opioid
Abatement Trust Fund).

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

G&C

Approval

Archways

(Tilton, NH)

310158-

B001
Central, NH $284,034 $0 $284,034 0: 5/3/23

(Item #13)

Boys & Girls
Club of Greater

Nashua. Inc.

(Nashua, NH)

167081-

B001

Greater

Nashua $353,350
$0 $353,350

0: 5/3/23

(Item #13)

County of
Cheshire

(Keene, NH)

177372-

B001

Cheshire

County $173,888
$0 $173,888

0: 5/3/23

(Item #13)

County of
Merrimack

(Boscawen,
NH)

177435-

B001

Merrimack

County $209,365
$0 $209,365

O; 5/3/23

(Item #13)

County of
Sullivan

(Newport, NH)

177482-

B004

Sullivan

County $453,847
$0 $453,847

0: 5/3/23

(Item #13)
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Oismas Home

of New

Hampshire

(Manchester,
NH)

290061-

B001

1

1

\Statewide |
$800,000

$0 $800,000
0: 5/3/23

(Item #13)

Elliot Hospital
of the City of
Manchester

(Manchester,
NH)

177179-

B005

i

Statewide '
1

$200,000
$0 $200,000

0: 5/3/23 ,

(Item #13)

Greater

Seacoast

Community
Health

(Somersworth,
NH)

166629-

BGOI
Statewide

$575,737
$0 $575,737

0: 5/3/23

(Item #13)

Hope on Haven
Hill

(Somersworth,
NH)

275119-

B001
Statewide

$269,645
$0 $269,645

0: 5/3/23

(Item #13)

Makin' It

Happen
Coalition for

Resilient Youth

(Manchester,
NH)

319209-

BOOl

Greater

Manchester $574,350
$0 $574,350

0: 5/3/23

(Item #13)

Mid-State

Health Center

(Plymouth, NH)

158055-

B001

Southern

Grafton County $217,028
$0 $217,028

0: 5/3/23

(Item #13)

New

Hampshire
Harm

Reduction

Coalition

(Dover, NH)

330454-

B001 ■
Statewide

$875,000
$0 $875,000

0: 5/3/23

(Item #13)

North Country
Health

Consortium"

(Littleton, NH)

158557-

B001
North Country $263,787 $282,211 $545,998

0: 5/3/23

(Item #13)

A1: 4/10/24

(Item #58)

The Upper
Room, A

Family
Resource

Center

(Derry, NH)

174210-

B001

Greater Derry, •
■  NH

1

1  $264,000
1

$0 $264,000
0: 5/3/23

(Item #13)
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TLC Family
Resource

Center

(Claremont,
NH)

170625-

B001

Sullivan and

Lower Grafton

County.
$568,813 $0 $568,813

O: 5/3/23

(Item #13)

Weeks Medical

Center

(Lancaster, NH)

177171-

B0Q1

Coos and

Upper Grafton
County

$458,270 .  $0 $458,270
■ 0: 5/3/23

(Item #13)

Total: $6,541,114 $282,211 $6,823,325

Funds are available in the foliowing account for State Fiscal Year 2025, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

I

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is increasing the price limitation by
more than 10% of the original contract. The ̂Grantee was originally awarded funds by the Opioid
Abatement Advisory Commission (Commission) through a competitive grant award process. The
Commission awarded additionai funds to the Grantee and directed the Department to enter into
this Amendment. !

I

The purpose of this request is for the .Grantee to continue developing and implementing
the approved opioid abatement projects recommended by the Commission by adding $282,211
In funding as directed and approved by the Commission.

Individuals with, or at risk of developing, opioid use disorders (OUDs) and any co-
occurring substance use or mental health |(SUD/MH) condition; and/or chiidren impacted by
substance use will be served through May 3,' 2025.

The additional funds will enable the Grantee to:
\

1. Recruit up to four (4) schools and four (4) law enforcement agencies in Coos
County to Implement Restorative Justice (RJ) Programs and services.

2. Complete the onboarding process with 46 businesses to declare them as
Recovery Friendly Workplaces, impacting over 700 employees.

3. Complete the Opioid Overdose Initiative through coordination with two new
Recovery Care Organizations in Berlin and Colebrook to enhance their
Recovery Service Centers' and strengthen the presence of recovery initiatives
in both communities.

•»

4. Conduct regionai outreach to recruit and onboard interested schoois in the
North Country to engage them in the youth outdoor adventure program called
Youth Leadership Through Adventure (YLTA).

The Grantee will continue to provide ;training, coordination, and support for up to seven
(7) public school programs and services to help students with ODD and any co-occurring SUD/MH
condition, or students who have been affecte'd by OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH condition
within their families. Additionally, the Grantee will continue supporting evidence-based prevention
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I

programs and services that promote healthy; drug-free lifestyles: reduce isolation; build skills and
confidence; and facilitate and strengthen community-based prevention efforts.

The Department will continue monitoring services through monthly, quarterly, and annual
reporting, and through audits of individual providers. An annual evaluation of all data. Including
demographic and outcome data, is conducted to ensure:

• Services provided reduce the negative impacts of substance misuse;

. • Grantee supports 46 business to'meet the criteria to be deemed Recovery Friendly
workplaces; j

• Grantee serves individuals using evidence-based practices and follow best practices
with fidelity: and

• Grantee supports local recovery communities and increases recovery initiatives.

Should the Governor and Executive pouncil not authorize this request, the Grantee will
be unable to fully develop and implement the opioid abatement projects, leaving local public-
school personnel less equipped to support students with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH
issues. Additionally, the Grantee may not have the resources to administer evidence-based
prevention programs focused on healthy, drug-free lifestyles; isolation reduction; and skills-
building. Efforts to facilitate and strengthen community-based prevention activities may be
hampered as well.

Area Served: North Country ^

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

1  Respectfully submitted.

For

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

!
1
I

!

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence. .
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET I

05-95-92-920510-39500000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH,

BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, OPIOID ABATEMENT TRUST FUND (100S Other Funds).

Archways, formerly Greater Titton Area Family Resource Center VDR-310158-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title i Job Number Current Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $23,670.00 $0.00 $23,670.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $142,017.00 $0.00 $142,017.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services i 92053950 $118,347.00 $0.00 $118,347.00

Sub Total $284,034.00 $0.00 $284,034,00

Boys and Girls Club of Greater Nashua < VDR -167081 - 8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $29,021.00 $0.00 $29,021.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $179,225.00 $0.00 $179,225.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $145,104.00 $0.00 $145,104.00

Sub Total $353,350.00 $0.00 $353,350.00

County of Cheshire

\

)
1 VDR- 177372-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account '  Class Title Job Number . Current Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $14,491.00 $0.00 $14,491.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $86,944.00 $0.00 $86,944.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services • 92053950 $72,453.00 $0.00 $72,453.00

Sub Total $173,888,00 $0.00 $173,888.00

County of Merrimack

1
1

VDR-177435-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title , Job Number Current Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $17,152.00 $0.00 $17,152.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $106,455,00 $0.00 $106,455.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $85,758,00 $0.00 $85,758.00

Sub Total $209,365.00 $0.00 $209,365.00

County of Sullivan
, VDR- 177482-8004

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $75,641.00 50.00 $75,641.00

2024 .102-500731 Contracts for Program Services , 92053950 $378,206.00 $0.00 $378,206,00

Sub Total $453,847.00 $0.00 $453,847.00

Dismas Home of New Hampshire VDR - 290061 - 8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Tltle100,000 Job Number Current Amount

' Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services ' 92053950 $500,000.00 $0.00 $500,000.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 1 92053950 $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 1 92053950 $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00

Sub Total $800,000.00 $0.00 $800,000.00

Elliott Hospital
1 VDR-177179-8005

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title '

1

Job Number Current Amount
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 1 92053950 $16,667.00 $0.00 $16,667,00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services i 92053950 $100,000.00 SO.OO $100,000,00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 1 92053950 $83,333.00 $0.00 $83,333.00

Sub Total $200,000,00 $0.00 $200,000.00

Greater Seacoast Community Health VDR -166629 - 8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services > 92053950 $43,227,00 $0,00 $43,227.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $316,375.00 $0.00 $316,375.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services i 92053950 $216,135.00 $0.00 $216,135.00

Sub Total $575,737.00 $0.00 $575,737.00

Hope On Haven Hill

i

i
1

••

VDR-275119-8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $27,608.00 $0.00 $27,608.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $103,999.00 $0.00 $103,999.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $138,038.00 $0.00 $138,038.00

SubTotall $269,645.00 $0.00 $269,645.00

Maldn It Happen Coalition for Resilient Youth VDR-319209 - 8001

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Amount



2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $45,492.00 $0.00 $45,492.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 S301.400.00 $0.00 $301,400.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services' 92053950 $227,458.00 $0.00 $227,458.00

Sub Total $574,350.00 $0.00 $574,350.00

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Numt>er Current Amount

Increase/

(Decreasel
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Servicesi 92053950 $23,371.00 '$0.00 $23,371.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services' 92053950 $76,800.00 $0.00 $76,800.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services' 92053950 $116,857.00 $0.00 $116,857.00

Sub Total $217,028.00 $0.00 $217,028.00

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

increase/

/Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $62,500.00 $0.00 $62,500.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $500,000.00 $0.00 $500,000.00

. 2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services' 92053950 $312,500.00 $0.00 $312,500,00

Sub Total $875,000.00 $0.00 $875,000.00

North Country Health Consoftium VDR - 158557- B001
State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title ' Job Number - Current Amount

Increase/

/Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services ! .  92053950 $43,964,00 $0.00 $43,964.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services , .  92053950 $196,000.00 $0.00 $196,000.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services ' 92053950 $23,823.00 $282,211.00 $306,034.00

Sub Tola $263,787.00 $282,211.00 $545,998.00

The Upper Room, A Family Resource Center i VDR-174210-8001
State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase/

/Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $22,000.00 $0.00 $22,000.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services ' 92053950 $132,000.00 $0.00 $132,000.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services i 92053950 $110,000.00 $0.00 $110,000.00

Rub Total $264,000.00 .  $0.00 $264,000.00

TLC Family Resource Center VDR-170625-8001
State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase/

/Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services ! 92053950 $48 810 00 -  so.oo $48,810.00
2024 107-500731 Contracts for Program Services i 92053950 $775 951 00 $0.00 $275951 00

2025 102-500731 • Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $244,052.00 $0.00 $244,052.00
Sub Total $56881300 $0.00 $568,813.00

Weeks Medical Center
'

VDR -177171 -8001
State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class title Job Number Current Amount

Increase/

/Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services r 92053950 $40 773 DO $000 $40,773.00
2024 107-500731 Contracts for Program Services ' 97053950 $213 635 00 $0.00 $213,635.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services i 92053950 $203,862.00 $0.00 $203,862.00

Rub Totfli $458,270.00 $0.00 $458,270.00

Overall Total $6,541,114,00 $282,211.00 $6,823,325.00

Summary all by SFY

t

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase/

/Decrease)
Revised Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $1,034,387.00 $1 034 387 00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $3 759 007 on $3 259 007.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $2,223,897.00 $2,529,931.00
Sub Total $6,517 791 00 $6 623.325.00
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2

This Amendment to the Opioid Abatement Programs Grant Agreement is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and North Country
Health Consortium ("Grantee"). |,

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement ("Grant Agreement") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on May 3, 2023 (Item #13), as amended on April 10, 2024 (Item #5B), the Grantee agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Grant Agreement as
amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form G-1, General Provisions, the Grant Agreement may be amended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Grant Agreement and set forth herein, thejparties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form G-l, General Provisions, Block 1.8; Price Limitation, to read:

$545,998 i
2. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 3, to-read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved budget line items,
as specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget, ̂mendment #1 and Exhibit C-2, Budget, Amendment #2.

3. Modify Exhibit C-2. Budget, Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-2, Budget,
Amendment #2, which is attached heretojand incorporated by reference herein.

(

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment terms; Section 7, to read:
(  • ■ ■

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 20 of the Form G-1, General Provisions; changes limited to
adjusting amounts within the Grant'Limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the Budget Office may be made by written
agreement of both parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council,
if needed and justified. •

North Country Health Consortium A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials.

RGA-2023-OBH-01-OPIOI-14-A02 Page1of3 Date
v7.12.23 !
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All terms and conditions of the Grant. Agreement and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment
remain in full force and effect. This Amendment;sha!l be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

1

1
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

12/2/2024

Date

—DocuStoMd by:

Name^W^^^ox

Title: Di rector

North Country Health Consortium

12/2/2024

Date

-Signsd by:

(/UAmu
•oieoooijio*ra«eo...

Narne: Lauren Pearson

Executive Director

North Country Health Consortium

RGA^2023-DBH-01-OPIOI-14-A02
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. [

. OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSlgnad by:

I12/3/2024

Date

Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: _! (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title':

North Country Health Consortium

RGA-2023-DBH-01-OPIOI-14-A02
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1;.3

Page 3 of 3



Docusign Envelope ID: DA2579D3-2B38-4E3E-993B-638251D5DF44

Exhibit C-2, Budget, Amendment #2

New Hampshire Departmeht of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: North Country Health Consortium,

Budget Request for: Opioid Abatement Programs

Budget Period 7/1/2024-5/3/2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 30.40% Salaries and Wages Only
'

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages $142,684

2. Fringe Benefits ; $32,917

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to:
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. ! $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational ' $3,618

5.(b) Supplies - Lab ' $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy . $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical | $0

5.(e) Supplies Office ' $225

6. Travel $11,052

7. Software $1,181

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications $1,000

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $4,000

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) ' $0

Other (please specify) | $0

Other (please specify) \ $0

Other (please specify) i $0

Other (please specify) 1 $0

9. Subreciplent Contracts | $55,974

Total Direct Costs i .  $252,651

1
Total Indirect Costs | $53,383

TOTAL 1 $306,034

RGA-2023-DBH-01-OPIOI-14-A02

Contractor Initials:
w

Date:
12l2n02A
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scaiilan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH

CONSORTIUM is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on October 05,

1998. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofTicc'have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned. '

Business ID: 301456

Certificate Number: 0006652261

%

u.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Sccretaiy of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Ken Gordon
hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporatloh/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer pf North Country Health Consortium
(CofpjDration/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote'taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
heldon Noven^er21 20^^ . at which a quofurh of.the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That
Lauren Pearson, Exetiutive Director, (may list more than pne.person)

is duly authorized on behalf of

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

North Country Health Gonsprtiurh

(Name of Corporation/|LLC)
to enter into contracts or agreements vvith the State

of New'. Harhpshire -and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in-his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to.eiffect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended 6'r repealed a'nd rernains in full force and. effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendrrient to which thislcertificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I fuiHher certify
that |t Is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the persoh(s)
listed above currently occupy the positlon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the.corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all.such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:
.12/2/2024

re\ofSighaturetof Elected Officer ■

Name; Ken. Gordon

Title: Board President & Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



Docusign Envelope ID; DA2579D3-2B38-4E3E-993B-63825105DF44

ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MH/Dorrm)

12/2/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Geo. M. Stevens & Son Co. j
PO Box 271 , - 1
149 Main Street
Lancaster NH 03584 '

1

1

NAMe^^ Terri Crossland
Puc'no F«ti: 800-675-2555 («c. Not; 603-788-3901
Ai^^FSSr tcrossland(3|qms-in$.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICF

INSURER A PhiladelDhia Insurance Co 18058

INSURED NORTCOU-21

North Country Health Consortium Inc . j
262 Cottage Street, Suite 230
Littleton NH 03561

INSURER a Allied Eastern Indemnity Co 11242

INSURERC

INSURER 0

INSURERE

INSURERF

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 607109256 REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW, HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY H>^VE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL
INSD

SUtiR
WVD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMM/DDAYYYl

POLICY EXP
IMM/OO/YYYYI LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

)E 1 X 1 OCCUR
PHPK2624203 .

1

I

1/1/2024 1/1/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE S 1.000.000

CLAIMS-MAT
UAMAUb lOKbNIbO
PREMISES lEa occurrerwel $100,000

MED EXP (Any one person) S 5.000

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY $1,000,000

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE $2,000,000

POLICY 1 1 JECT 1 1 LOC
OTHER;

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO $2,000,000

$

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY r
1

1

1

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $

ANY AUTO

HEDULEO
rros
}N-OWNEO

rros ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SC
Al

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

NL
Al

PROPERTY DAMAGE S

$

A X UMBRELULIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

PHUB889411

i

1/1/2024 1/1/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $4,000,000

AGGREGATE $

DED 1 X RETENTIONS in nnn $

B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y / ̂
ANYPROPRIETORff»ARTNER®CECUTlVE rvi
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED? ^
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If yes, des^be under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

01-0000114697-06

1
1

1

1/1/2024 1/1/2025
V  PER OTH-
^  STATUTE ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT $100,000

E-L DISEASE EA EMPLOYEE $100,000

E.L. DISEASE POLICY LIMOr $ 500,000

1

i  •

1

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AdOIUonal Rtmarkt Schadul*. may bt attached If mort apaca It raquirad)

NH Workers Compensation !

t

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

■  ! ,

State of NH
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-3857 i

1  i

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

^  © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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C-oynfyti
HEALTH CONSORTIUM /

North Country Health Consortium Mission Statement:

"An Innovative Collaboration to improve the health status ofnorthern
New Hampshire,

The North Country Health Consortium (NCHC) is a non-profit 501(0)3 rural health network,
created in 1997, as a vehicle for addressing common issues through collaboration among
health and human service providers serving Northern New Hampshire.

NCHC is engaged in activities for:
•  Solving common problems and facilitating regional solutions
•  Creating and facilitating services and,programs to improve population health status
•  Health professional training, continuing education, and management services

to encourage sustainability of the health care infrastructure
•  . Increasing capacity for local public health essential services
•  Increasing access to health care for underserved and uninsured residents of Northern

New Hampshire 1

262 Cottage Street 1 Suite 230 1 Littleton, NH 03561 I p: 603-259-3700 ! f: 603-444-0945 I NCHCNH.org
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INDEPENDENT,AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors 1
North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary

I  ■
i

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of North Country Health
Consortium, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and Subsidiary (the Organization), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

j

In our opinion, the consolidated financial staternents referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of September 30, 2023 and 2022,
and the consolidated changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP).

j

Basis for Opinion ,

'

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards (U.S. GAAS)
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained'is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion. i

i
Change in Accounting Principle \

1

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Organization adopted Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 842, Leases, during the year
ended September 30, 2023. Our opinion Is not modified with respect to that matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation'and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and'for the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts • Connecticut • WestVirgiriio • Arizona • Puerto Rico

berrydunn.com



Board of Directors

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary

In preparing the consolidated financial statemerits, management Is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Organization's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated
financial'statements are available to be issued. >

1
I

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of f/rej Consolidated Financial Statements
j

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the consolidated financial statements. 1

I

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. GMS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining,ion a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

-• Obtain an understanding-of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion

.  is expressed. !

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements. | •
t

. • Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance.regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain Internal control related
matters that we Identified during the audit.

2-



Board of Directors

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary

Supplementary Information
I

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations . Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and jreconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S.
GAAS. In our opinion, the information is falrl^ stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auciiting Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 26,
2024 on our consideration of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of their compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely^ to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed iti accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

f
Bangor, Waine
March 26, 2024

J



NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
I

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
1

September:30, 2023 and 2022 ^

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit, current portion i
Accounts, grants, and contracts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses i

Total current assets

Property and equipment
Computers and equipment
Dental equipment

, Furniture and fixtures

Vehicles

Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Right-of-use (ROD) asset - operating
Certificates of deposit, net of current portion

Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities '

Accounts payable
Accrued wages and related liabilities
Current portion of lease liability - operating ,
Deferred revenue !-

Total current liabilities

I

Long-term liabilities j
Lease liability - operating, net of current portion

Total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2023 2022

;  384,083 $ 925,998

;  330,923 $ 115,395

676,648 567,360

88.656 29.423

1.480.310 1.638.176

190,202 147,396

10,813 10,813

30,045 30,045
368,061 . 368,061

30.960 -

630,081 556,315
f248.534l n90.4451

381.547 365.870

127,196
_ 12.869

127.196 12.869

1.989.053 $ 2.016.915

92,818 $ 62,597

128,285 143,545
79,347 -

231.003 458.044

531,453 664,186

49.386

580.839 664.186

1.408.214

1.408.214

1.352.729

1.352.729

$ 1.989.053 $ 2.Q16.915

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Activities

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

Support ^ ,
Grant and contract revenue

I

Revenue '

Fees for programs and services t
Interest income i

in-kind contributions i
Other income j

Total revenue |
1

Total support and revenue I

Program expenses '
Workforce j
Public health

Mobile clinic j
Community Substance Abuse Protection (CSAP)

.  I
1

Total program expenses '
I

Management and general expenses '

Total expenses

Change in net assets '
I

Net assets, beginning of year |
i

Net assets, end of year '

2023 2022
•)

;  3.231.609 $ 3.339.198

177,313 242,211

2,954 1,058

- 380,632

5.649 141.972

185.916 .  765.873

3.417.525 4.105.07.1

788,693 1,175,806

309,270 292,067

218,311 82,459

1.406.773 1.595.360

2.723,047 3,145,692

638.993 670.835

3.362.040 3.816.527

55,485 288,544

1.352.729 1.064.185

$  1.408.214 $ 1.352.729

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Mobile Management
Workforce Public Health Clinic CSAP Total Proaram and General Total

Personnel

Salaries $  367,534 $  221,109 $  98,692 $ 863,880 $  1,551,215 $  364,036 $ 1,915,251

Payroll taxes and employee benefits 78.676 45.423 22.161 180.015 326.275 70.828 397.103

Total personnel expenses 446.210 266.532 120.853 1.043.895 1.877.490 434.864 2.312.354

Non-personnel expenses
Computer fees 14,620 6,089 2,914 25,337 48,960 36,268 85,228

Medical and pharmacy supplies 25,877 129 1,487 23,680 51,173 - 51,173

Office supplies 12,548 5,416 3,271 15,285 36,520 1,098 37,618

Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 204,971 9,034 - 136,978 350,983 - 350,983

Bad debts . . . . . 11,196 11,196

Depreciation - - 52,580 - 52,580 5,509 58,089

Dues, memberships, education, and subscriptions 795.. 120 .  .193 7,119 8,227 3-407 - --  "16,634

Staff development 750 - 948 3,380 5,078 929 6,007

Equipment and maintenance 2,023 328 7,776 2,391 12,518 5,115 17,633

Rent and occupancy 2,658 1,479 11,329 10,988 26,454 75,738 102,192

Insurance 1,351 1,252 376 3,065 6,044 5,146 11,190
Miscellaneous 165 - - 773 938 155 1,093

Payroll processing fees • - - - - 20,081 20,081

Postage 2,302 277 143 689 3,411 512 3,923

Printing 818 2,102 99 6,889 9,908 286 10,194

Professional fees 8,429 5,899 1,894 15,318 31,540 25,802 57,342

Training fees and supplies 30,578 1,216 - 47,306 79,100 2,707 81,807

Travel 13,744 5,347 4,507 36,586 60,184 973 61,157

Telephone 7,315 4,050 2,000 13,480 26,845 3,758 30,603

Vehicle expense - - 7,941 • 7,941 - 7,941

Event facility fees 13.539 . . 13.614 27.153 449 27.602

Total non-personnel expenses 342.483 42.738 97.458 362.878 845.557 204.129 1.049.686

Total expenses 788,693 309,270 218,311 1,406,773 2,723,047 638,993 3,362,040

Indirect costs allocated to programs 143.935 78.016 39.035 332,634 593.620 1593.6201

Total exp>enses after indirect cost allocations S  932.628 $  387.286 $  257.346 1.739.407 S  3.316.667 $  45.373 S 3.362.040

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2022

Personnel

Salaries

Payroll taxes and employee benefits
Total personnel expenses

Non-personnel expenses
Computer fees
Medical and pharmacy supplies
Office supplies
MOA

Bad debts

Depreciation
Dues, memberships, education, and subscriptions

—In-kindservices". "

Equipment and maintenance
Rent and occupancy
Insurance

Miscellaneous

Payroll processing fees
Postage
Printing
Professional fees

Training fees and supplies
Travel

Telephone
Vehicle expense
Event facility fees

Total non-personnel expenses

Total expenses

Indirect costs allocated to programs

Total expenses after indirect cost allocations

Management
Workforce Public Health Mobile Clinic CSAP Total Prooram and General Total

$ 279,366 $ 183,533 $  36,889 $ 901,880 $  1,401,668 $  388,620 $ 1,790,288
53.089 32.564 6.991 176.320 268.964 62 264 331.228

332.455 216.097 43.880 1.078.200 1.670.632 450.884 2.121.516

10,454 10,077 651 26,859 48,041 14,094 62,135
896 185 1,769 58,576 61,426 714 62,140

3,788 9,031 2,450 11,725 26,994 5.439 32,433
694,085 33,493 - 219,042 '946,620 500 947,120

- - - - - 13,598 13,598
- - 2,191 - 2,191 3,754 5,945

50.740 46 308- 2;094' 53,188--  "6,644 ' 59,832
- •- 12,569 - 12,569 - 12,569

634 1,547 42 1,649 3,872 69,288 73,160
6,945 3,968 420 32,806 44,139 37,869 82,008
1,559 811 958 5,409 8,737 6,017 14,754

45,053 400 - 204 45,657 864 46,521
50 "  - - - 50' 21,299 '21,349
716 812 12 1,116 2,656 565 3,221
222 1,418 26 885 2,551 350 2,901

5,854 4,001 456 25,797 36,108 22,117 58,225
14,772 2,572 2 59,056 76,402 4 76,406

■ 4,750 6,982 1,248 43,007 55,987 3,731 59,718 .
2,833 627 116 9.018 12,594 13,094 25,688

- - 15,361 - 15,361 - 15,361
- - - 19.917 19.917 10 19.927

843.351 75.970 38.579 517.160 1.475.060 219.951 1.695.011

1,175,806 292,067 82,459 1,595,360 3,145,692 670,835t 3.816,527

101.843 64.662 8.852 374.421 549 778 f549.7781

K 1.277.649 356.729 $  91.311 1.969.781 $  3.695.470 $  121.057 $ '3.816.527

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
1

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2023 and 2022

Cash flows from operating activities . j
Change in net assets '
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash used by

operating activities 1
Depreciation I

' Change in allowance for doubtful accounts
Contribution of non-cash assets i

Amortization of ROU asset - operating leases, net
(Increase) decrease in operating assets; '

Accounts, grants, and contracts receiyable
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities'
Accounts payable. '
Accrued wages and related liabilities ;
Deferred revenue ■ !

Net cash used by operating activities !

Cash flows from investing activities
Transfers to certificates of deposit
Purchases of property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

Net decrease in cash, cash equiyalents, and restricted
cash 1

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

2023 2022

i  55,485 $  288,544

58,089 5,945

(3,973) -

-  • (368,063)

1,537 -

(105,315) (153,365)

(59,233) 4,107

30,221 (2,699)
(15,260) 3,278.

(227.041) (990.149)

(265.490) (1.212.402)

(202,659) (360)
(73.766) -

(276.425) (360)

(541,915) (1,212.762)

925.998 2.138.760

i  384.083 $  925.998

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated.financial statements.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CpNSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

i

1. Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

North Country Health'Consortium, Inc. (NCHC) and Subsidiary {collectively, the Organization) is a
not-for-profit health organization chartered under the laws of the State of New Hampshire. The
Organization's mission is to lead innovative collaboration to improve the health status of the region.
NCHC is engaged in promoting and facilitating access to services and programs that improve the
health status of the area population, provide health training and educational opportunities for
healthcare purposes, and is the operational fyome to the Northern New Hampshire Mobile Clinic.

I

NCHC's wholly-owned subsidiary. North Country ACO (the ACO). is a non-profit 501(c)(3)
charitable corporation formed in December 2011. This entity was formed as an accountable care
organization (ACO) with its purpose to support the programs and activities of the ACO participants
to improve the overall health of their respective populations and communities. A nominal cash
balance remained at September 30, 2022 and activities have ceased. The Organization's Board of
Directors voted to dissolve the ACO during the year ended September 30, 2023.

The Organization's primary programs are as follows:

Workforce - To provide workforce education programs.
1

Public Health - To coordinate public health networks, and promote the community emergency
response plan. . , i

Mobile Clinic - To sustain operations of a mobile clinic program, offering health services to all
residents in northern New Hampshire. ■

Community Substance Abuse Prevention (CSAP) - To conduct community substance abuse
prevention activities.

Following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. |

I

Basis of Presentation j
The consolidated financial statements of the 'Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which require the Organization to
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net asset
classifications: |

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may.be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may !be used at the discretion of the. Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

-19



NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Net assets with donor restrictions: ;Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When
a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements of activities. The Organization had
no net assets with donor restrictions at September 30, 2023 and 2022.

i

Principles of Consoiidation

!
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NCHC and the AGO
through the dissolution date. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial [statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

I

Concentration of Risk ;
!

The Organization's operations are affected :by various risk factors, including credit risk and risk
from geographic concentration and concentrations of funding sources. Management attempts to
manage risk by obtaining and maintaining revenue funding from a variety of sources. A substantial
portion of the Organization's activities arel funded through grants and contracts with private,
federal, and state agencies. As a result, the 'Organization may be vulnerable to the consequences
of change in the availability of funding sources and economic policies at the agency level.

I

Revenue Recognition

Below are the revenue recognition policies of the Organization:

Grant and Contract Revenue

Grants and contracts are recorded as revenue in the period they are earned by satisfaction of grant
obligations. Grants and contracts are recorded as support without donor restrictions if restrictions
are met in the year revenue is recognized.

Fees for Programs and Services

Fees for programs and services are recorded as revenue In the period the related services were
performed.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
»

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Organization. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on
actual services rendered. Generally, performance obligations are satisfied over time when services
are provided. The Organization measures the performance obligation from when the Organization
begins to provide services to a client to the point when they are no longer required to provide
services to that client, which is generally at the date services are performed.

I

Each performance obligation is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract with the
client. As the performance obligations are met (i.e., day of services), revenue is recognized based
on allocated transaction! price. The transaction price is allocated to separate performance
obligations based upon the relative standalone selling price.

Because all of its performance obligationsi relate to short-term contracts, the Organization has
elected to apply the optional exemption provided in U.S. GAAR, and therefore, is not required to
disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that
are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period.

f

\
Program service fee revenue is included in the consolidated statements of activities within the fees
for program services and is as follows: (

2023 2022

Fees ' 166,228 227,954
Other I . 11.085 14.257

Net program service fee revenue $ 177.313 $ 242.211
i  ' • "

Accounts, grants, and contracts receivable, net related to exchange transactions were $445,009,
$198,948, and $247,933 as of September 30; 2023, 2022, and 2021 respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
j

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts. Grants, and Contracts Receivable
I
I

The Organization has receivable balances due from grants and contracts received from federal,
state, and private agencies. Management reviews the receivable balances for collectibility and
records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical information, estimated contractual
adjustments, and current economic trends. Management considers the individual circumstances
when determining the collectibility of past due amounts. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to earnings
and a credit to accounts receivable. Any collection fees or related costs are expensed in the year
incurred. The Organization recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts for grants and contracts of
$5,880 and $9,853 as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Organization does not
charge interest on its past due accounts, and collateral is generally not required.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Certificates of Deposit ;
!

The Organization has four certificates of deposit that may be withdrawn without penalty with one
financial institution. These certificates carry original terms of 6 months to 24 months, have interest
rates ranging from .35% to 4.50%, and mature at various dates through fiscal year 2024.

Propertv and Equipment «

The Organization generally capitalizes property and equipment with an estimated useful life in
excess of one year and installed costs over $2,500. l_esser amounts are generally expensed.
Property and equipment is capitalized at cost if purchased or at fair market value if donated.

i

Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method using the following ranges
of estimated useful lives: I

Computers and equipment
Dental equipment
Furniture and fixtures

3 - 7 years

5 - 7 years
5-7 years

Vehicles . 5 years
I

Depreciation expense totaled $58,089 and $5,945 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and
2022, respectively. I

Deferred Revenue I

Deferred revenue is related to advance payments on grants or advance billings relative to
anticipated expenses or events in future periods. The revenue is realized when the expenses are
incurred or as services are provided in the period earned.

Memorandum of Agreement Expenses

The Organization has entered into agreements (MOA) with subrecipients to help position program
participants to deliver integrated physical anci behavioral health care that addresses the full range
of individuals' needs, to expand capacity to address emerging and ongoing behavioral health
needs, to reduce gaps in care across settings by improving coordination across providers, and to
address relevant alternative payment models. Expenditures associated with these agreements
include payments to subrecipients, service provider contracts, and consulting costs.

Income Taxes
t

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and are not classified as private foundations. However, income from certain activities not
directly related to the Organization's tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated
business income. The Organization had no unrelated business income activity subject to taxation
for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

. 1 ■ .
September 30, 2023 and 2022

The Organization has adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (PASS)
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopic 740-10, Income Taxes - Overall. PASS ASC
Subtopic 740-10 prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attributable for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return, and provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in
interim periods, disclosure, and transition. Based on management's evaluation, management has
concluded that there \A/ere no significant uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in the
consolidated financial statements at September 30, 2023 and 2022.

1
I

Although the Organization is not currently the subject of a tax examination by the Internal Revenue
Service or the State of New Hampshire, the Organization's tax years ended September 30, 2020
through September 30. 2023 are open to examination by the taxing authorities under the
applicable statute of limitations. !

I

Functional Expenses j
V  I

The consolidated financial statements reportjcertain categories of expenses that are attributable to,
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis that is consistently applied.lThe expenses that are allocated include depreciation,
interest, and office and occupancy, which are allocated on a square-footage basis, as well as
salaries and benefits, which are allocated on 'the basis of estimates of time and effort.

RIaht-of-Use Asset and Lease Liability j
Effective October 1, 2022, the Organization iadopted FASB ASC Topic 842, Leases (Topic 842).
The Organization determines if an arrangernent is a lease or contains a lease at inception of a
contract. A contract is determined to be or'contain a lease If the contract conveys the right to
control the use of identified property, plant,! or equipment (an Identified asset) in exchange for
consideration. The Organization determines these assets are leased because the Organization has
the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefit from and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset. Assets in which the supplier or lessor has the practical ability and right to
substitute-alternative assets for the identified asset and would benefit economically from the
exercise of Its right to substitute the asset are not considered to be or contain a lease because the
Organization determines it does not have this right to control and direct the use of the identified
asset. The Organization's lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees
or material restrictive covenants. '

I

In evaluating its contracts, the Organization separately identifies lease and non-lease components,
such as common area and other maintenance costs, .in calculating the right-of-use (ROU) assets
and lease liabilities for its office buildings and other assets. The Organization has elected the
practical expedient to not separate lease andlnon-lease components and classifies the contract as
a lease if consideration in the contract allocated to the lease component is greater than the
consideration allocated to the non-lease agreement.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Leases result in the recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities on the consolidated statement
of financial position. ROU assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term,
and lease liabilities represent the obligation to make lease payrhents arising from the lease,
measured on a discounted basis. The Organization determines lease classification as operating or
finance at the lease commencement date. The Organization did not have any finance leases as of
September 30, 2023. |

\

At lease inception, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments over
the lease term. The ROU asset equals the lease liability adjusted for any initial direct costs, prepaid
or deferred rent, and lease incentives. Topic 842 requires the use of the implicit rate in the lease
when readily determinable. As the leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Organization uses the
treasury bill rate for a term comparable to the life of the lease based on the information available at
the commencement date to determine the present value of lease payments. This rate represents
one which would be incurred to borrow, on 'a collateralized basis, over a similar term, an amount
equal to the lease payments over a similar term.

The lease term may include options to extend or to terminate the lease that the Organization is
reasonably certain to exercise. Lease expense for operating leases is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. \

The Organization has elected not to record leases with an initial term of 12 months or less on the
consolidated statement of financial position.' Lease expense on such leases is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. . ,

1

Upon adoption of Topic 842, the Organization elected the package of practical expedients
permitted under the transition guidance within the new standard which includes the following: relief
from determination of lease contracts included in existing or expiring leases at the point of
adoption, relief from , having to reevaluate the classification of leases in effect at the point of
adoption, and relief from reevaluation of existing leases that have initial direct costs associated
with the execution of the lease contract. i

i
The adoption of Topic 842 resulted in the recognition of the below assets and liabilities on October
1,2022:

Right-of-use asset - operating $  199.320

Lease liability - operating j $ 199.320
I

Results for the period prior to October 1, 2022 continue to be, reported in accordance with the
Organization's historical accounting treatment'for leases.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
I

September;30, 2023 and 2022

2. Cash Concentrations |

The Organization maintains cash balances at two financial institutions. These accounts are insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per financial institution.
Management believes the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash as of
September 30. 2023. j

The Organization manages credit risk relative to cash concentrations by utilizing "sweep" accounts.
The Organization maintains Insured Cash]Sweep accounts that invest cash balances in other
financial institutions at amounts that do notpxceed FDIC insured limits. Cash at these institutions
is held in interest-bearing money market accounts.

3. Leases

The Organization has entered into the following lease agreement:

Ooeratino Lease

The Organization leases office space in Littleton, New Hampshire for administrative purposes
under an operating lease that expires in Mayi2024 with'two one-year renewal options.

I

Lease Cost ;

The following table summarizes the Organization's lease related costs for the year ended
September 30, 2023: '

Operating lease cost

Other Information - Ooeratino Lease

$. 84J86

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease
liabilities: i

VVeighted average remaining term:

Weighted-average discount rate:

$77,412

1.67 years

4.24%
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH C9NSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
I

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Future Minimum Lease Payments and Reconciliation to the Consolidated Statement of Financial

Position i
'

t

Approximate future minimum payments under the leases having initial or remaining terms in
excess of one year as of September 30, 2023 are as follows;

2024 $ 79,347
2025 i 53.773

Total future undiscounted lease payments 133,120

Less present value discount

Total lease liability

(4.387)

128.733

4. Deferred Revenue

The summary of the components of deferredl revenue as of September 30 are as follows:

:  2023 2022
,

Deferred revenue, IDN | $ - $ 82,554
Deferred revenue, other i 231.003 375.490

Total $ 231.003 $ 458.044
1

5. Related Party Transactions

1

A majority of the Organization's members and the Organization are also members of a Limited
Liability Company. There were ho transactions between the Limited Liability Company and the
Organization in 2023 and 2022. 1

I

The Organization contracts various services from other organizations of which members of
management of these other organizations may also be members of the Board of. Directors of
NCHC. Amounts paid to these organizations were $5,600 and $339,352 for the years ended
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. There were no balances due to or from these
organizations as of September 30, 2023 or 2022.

6. Retirement Plan ^

The Organization participates in a defined contribution plan under section 401 (k) of the Internal
Revenue Code {the Plan). Under the Plan, all employees are eligible, regardless of age. There is
no service requirement to participate in the jPlan. Employee contributions are permitted and are
subject to Internal Revenue Service limitations. Monthly employer contributions are $50 for each
part-time employee and $100 for each full-time employee. Employer contributions for the years
ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 were $30,205 and $30,689, respectively.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
I  '

i

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SeptemberpO, 2023 and 2022
I

I

1

7. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that iS; without donor or other restrictions
limiting their use, within one year of the statement of financial position date, are comprised of the
following as of September 30: '

j  2023 2022
Cash and cash equivalents ' $ 384,083 $ 925,998

• Accounts receivable, grants, and contracts, net 676:648 567.360
t

i  - $ 1.060.731-$ '1.493.358
I

In addition to maintaining financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12
months, the Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover general expenditures. i

I

8. Contlnaencles
f

The Organization receives a" significant portion of its support from various funding sources.
Expenditure of these funds requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the related
contracts and agreements. These expenditures are subject to audit by the contracting agencies.
Any disallowed expenditures would become a liability of the Organization requiring repayment to
the funding sources. Liabilities resulting frorn these audits, if any, will be recorded in the period in
which the liability is ascertained. Management estimates that any potential liability related to such
audits will be immaterial. i

The Organization may be involved in various claims or legal actions arising in the ordinary course
of business. The ultimate disposition of any'such matters is indeterminable, but in the opinion of
management, the amount of any potential liabilities would not have a significant impact on the
Organization's financial condition. ;

9. Subsequent Events

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events, management has evaluated
subsequent events for possible recognition of disclosure through March 26, 2024, which is the date
these consolidated financial statements were'available to be issued.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC; AND SUBSIDIARY

I

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2023 and 2022

10. Contributed Nonfinancial Assets |

For the year ended September 30, 2022, contributed nonfinancial assets recognized within the
consolidated statement of activities consisted of a vehicle with a fair value of $368,063 with certain
parts of maintenance totaling $12,569. There were no contributed nonfinancial assets recognized
for the year ended September 30, 2023. Unless otherwise noted, contributed nonfinancial assets
did not have donor-imposed restrictions.! The Organization does not . monetize contributed
nonfinancial assets. Donations are valued

current rates for similar items.

and reported at their estimated fair value based on

18-



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
I

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Federal grantor/pass-through grantor/program title

U.S. Department of Agriculture

Passed through: UNH

Extension Collaborative On Immunization Teaching

& Engagement

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture:

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Direct Programs:

Drug-Free Communities Support Program Grants

Passed through: State of New Hampshire - DHHS

Public Health Emergency Preparedness

Federal

AL

Number

10.229

93.276

93.069

Pass-through

Number

2021-77041-34831

(EXC220212118)

N/A

, NU90TP922018

Federal

Expenditures

$  31,847

31,847

125,635

93,991

Passed through; University of Dartmouth Area
Health Education Center

Area Health Education Centers Point of Service

Maintenance and Enhancement Awards
93.107

2 U77HP03627-19-

00 127,870

Passed through: GSCH/DHHS

Substance Abuse and Mental Health

Services_Projects of Regional and National
Significance

93.243

N/A 9,836

Passed through: SNHAHEC/Lamprey

Advanced Nursing Education Grant Program 93.247 N/A 4,289

Passed through: State of New Hampshire - DHHS

Immunization Cooperative Agreements

Immunization Cooperative Agreements

Total AL Number 93.268:

93.268

93.268

NH231P922595

NH23IP922592

203,984

31,482

235,466

Activities to Support State, Tribal, Local and
Territorial (STLT) Health Department

Response to Public Health or Healthcare Crises

Activities to Support State, Tribal, Local and
Territorial (STLT) Health Department
Response to Public Health or Healthcare Crises

Total AL Number 93.391:

Passed through: State of New Hampshire - BDAS

Opioid STR

93.391

93.391

93.788

NH750T000031

NM010T009381

TI83326A

325,254

77,130

402,384

10,471

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Federal grantor/pass-through grantor/program title

Federal

AL

Number

Pass-through

Number

Federal

Expenditures

Passed through: State of New Hampshire - DHHS 1

National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program 93.889

Direct Programs:

Rural Health Care SeK^ices Outreach, Rural Health
Network Development and Small Health

Care Provider Quality Improvement 93.912

Passed through: Mary Hitchcock

Rural Health Care Services Outreach, Rural Health

Network Development and Small Health j 93.912
Care Provider Quality Improvement . '

Total AL Number 93.912: ' '

U3REP190580 10,325

Passed through: State of New Hampshire - BDAS

Block Grants for Prevention and T/eatment of

Substance Abuse

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

- Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:

!  '
U.S. Department of Justice j
Passed through: State of NH Judicial Branch '

Comprehensive Opioid Abuse Site-Based Program j 16.838
♦

Total U.S. Department of Justice: !

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards:

N/A

1 P16RH43503-01-

00

93 959
TI084659/TI083955

93.991 NB010T009381

N/A

749,169

11,670

760,839

195,382

36,647

2,013,135

106,369

106,369

$  2,151,351

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
I
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended September 30, 2023

1. Basis of Presentation
I  '
I

" The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal
grant activity of North Country Health Consortium. Inc. and Subsidiary (the Organization) under
programs of the federal government for the year ended September 30, 2023. The information in
the Schedule is presented in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Costs Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federai
Awards (Uniform Guidance); Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the Organization, it is not intended to, and does not, present the financial position,
changes in net assets or cash flows of the Organization.

-  I

2. Summary of Significant AccountinQ Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
-expenditures .are recognized following the | cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-
through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

The Organization has elected not to use the (10% de minimis Indirect cost rate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors ,
North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained-in Government Auditing Standards issued by^the Comptroller
General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of North Country Health
Consortium. Inc. (the Organization) (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position.as of September 30, 2023. and the related consolidated

statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 26,
2024. j

1

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting ^

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the
Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control. '

I

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management" or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material vi/eakness Is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet>important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance. i

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Board of Directors i
North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary

1

I

Report on Compliance and Other Matters ,
\

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatemeht, we performed tests of Its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to descrl
compliance and the results of that testing, and
Organization's internal control or on compliance.

be the scope of our testing of internal control and
not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's Internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is n'ot suitable for any other purpose.

Bangor, Maine
March 26, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federa

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

Program

We have audited North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's (the Organization)
compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the Office of
Management and Budget Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each
of the Organization's major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2023. The
Organization's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in allj material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended September 30, 2023.

i
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

I

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards
(U.S. GAAS): the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States: and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and
the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report. '

I

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
.  I

Management is responsible for compliance with tfie requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Organization's federal programs. i
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Board of Directors

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary

j
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Organization's compliance based oh our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with U.S. GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of
the report on compliance about the Organization's compliance with the requirements of each of its
major federal programs as a whole. ;

■  I ■ .

In performing-an audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS]'"Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance, we:

•  ! .

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
I

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over cornpliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's Internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

I
I

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
rriatters. the planned scope and tjming of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A ̂material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control overlcompliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Board of Directors

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance.' Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on Internal control oyer compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is'not suitable for any other purpose.

i  LJ-^
Bangor, Maine ,
March 26, 2024 ,
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Material weakness(es) identified? | □ Yes 0 No
Significant deficiency{ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weakness{es)?; n Yes 0 None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

1
□ Yes 0 No

Federal Awards
1

Internal control over major programs: I

Material weakness{es) identified: j □ Yes 0 No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are hot

considered to be material weakness(es)?; □ Yes 0 None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for,major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Section 2 CFR 200.516(a)? □ Yes 0 No

Identification of major programs: ;

Name of Federal Program or Cluster!
AL

Number

93.391 Activities to Support State, Tribal, Local and Territorial
(STLT) Health Department Response to Public Health
or Healthcare Crises ;

93.912 Rural Health Care Services Outreach, Rural Health"
Network Development and Small Health Care Provider
Quality Improvement 1

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? □

$750,000

Yes 0 No
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
I

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Concluded)

Year Ended September 30, 2023

Section II. Financial Statement Findings '

Not applicable. j

Section III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Not applicable.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings
and Questioned Costs

(

Year Ended September 30, 2023
I

Section II. Financial Statement Findings
J
I

Not applicable. ' j

Section III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
\

Not applicable.

29-



NCHC 2023-2024 Board of Directors

President & Chair. (O)
Ken Gordon

ChiefExecutive Officer, Coos County Family Health Sen>ices
. I "

Vice President & Secretary (O) i
Michael Peterson ,
President <5 ChiefExecutive Officer, Androscoggin Valley Hospital

1

Treasurer(O)
Ann Duffy I
ChiefFinancial Officer. Collage Hospital ,

Directors: |
Ed Duffy, MD

Executive Vice President/ChiefMedical Officer. Lillleion,Regional Healthcare

Greg Cook
President & ChiefExecutive Officer, Upper Connecticut Valley Hospital

Jaimie D'Alessandro

Community Member \

Jeanne Robiliard I
Chief Executive Officer, Tri-County Community Action Pt^pgram,

Karen Woods ,
Vice President of Physician Practices, fVeeks Medical Center

Kristina E. Fjeld-Sparks I
Director, New Hampshire Area Health Education Center (AHEC)

Margo Sullivan ;
Executive Director. Androscoggin Valley Home Care | •

I

Suzanne Getjcns-Oleson I
ChiefExecutive Officer, Northern lluman Services '

Tiffany Hayes
ChiefNursing Officer. North Country Healthcare



DocuSign Envelope ID; 6ADFBB38-8897-476D-BB52-A15F73CFA7FE

Bob Thompson
Email

Address

Phono

Objective {

Continue pursuing a career in the education^ substance tnisuse provcnlioru and behavioral health fields that

improves the lives of others, provides professional fulfillment, and is compadble witli personal lifestyle interests.

Experience

Senior Program Manager

North Country Health Consoitium

Littletorv NH

September 2019 - Present

Director, Ofhce of Student
Wellness

Berlin Public Schools

Berlin, NH

April 2015 - September 2019

Program Manager

North Country Health Consortium

Littleton, NH

March 2007 - April 2015

Programs Manager

Trl>County Commiulty Action Programs

Alcohol and Other Drug Division

Berlin, NH

Octobcr-1997 - March.2007

Responsible for oU management and oversight responsibilities

associated vrith the Consordum's Substance Misuse Portfolio,

Manage SAMHSA fmided Project AWARE, Sy.stems of Care
Wraparound Services, and Restorative Justice grant programs. Direct

all Office of Student Weflness related activities.

Responsible for oil management level responsibilities associated with

the Consortium's Substance Misuse Prevention portfolio.

Managed iall Impaired Driver Intervention Programs; developed and

managed A' dolescenl Substance Abuse Prevention (ASAP) program in
Carroll, Coos, and northern Grafton County district courts.

Education

Bachelor of Science

San Diego State University -1979

Master of Sdenoe

Granite State College - 2014

Major: Geography/ Envirorunental Studies
Minor: Bidlogy/Conservadon

Leadership/Project Management

Skills and Credentials «

Certified PrcventkmSpeciaiist, 2011-prcscixt Positive Behavioral Interventions BiKlSuppoiisTruincd Trainer Program at University of

ConnecHcut,2016-17; Board Certified Behavioral Analyst education pcogmm, Florida Institute ofTechnology 2017; Sclectfnan.Townof

Jackson, 2012 - present. I



Anne:^Marje ;Gagr^

Education

Berlin HlgK School

Nptr^/.panie ̂ ll?gcj

;1<?75-.197P

C^ile'sCfbr Lifelong Liedrhing^ ii99!9r20,00.

';^4y.9'^ced tbqchex-^j'd^'iS^_  . . - . -»v. ^ ^ .

iParaeducqtorilTCert^^^ '

i

Wh i te.'Moun to i n ̂Cpm m u n1ty 'Sojlege.!^E^.rl j n". ® H

Training ;

2002-200,4'

ifrajning,

2022-present'

2022-12023

Conscious Discipline.Facilitator

^ram1d ,/^odel .Proc

Biraj!inld"Ho^eJ SEU^qch

Cnsis'PFevirntidn Intervention Certified"2017^2023

2020^2023

•  ̂ ..
Lin's.. LesleyJJniversi.ty'Combridge./MA. 2020

"the'impqct.-of:Trauma on Legrnrng/DeveiofTin

TrdufnaiSensltive'SclTOols |
j

_  -

§3dhqna-Ypgq.ScHM^ liSeene, rNH 20J 7-|.Q|8
iReglstered Yoga' Tedclier'Trainin^ 200.'

iCHild's!'Y6gd .Cdrtificatidn~95c

Mi'ndfui.lP'rdcilce's

!SEL Specialist Gertificdtion.

201d-2017

Ej^nence

,North (!^untry>Heqlth Consortium

'Sch'odI SEL'C6brdlnato>7/23-pres^nt-

•Wor^';with .the Ojpioid'Abatement'PrdjeCt Director'

to coprdinqtethe deyeiopment.\of'a cpmprejiensiyej

•assessment of "Coos p'nd Ndttheai' Grq^n' 6qu@

Schbdl-Admihistrdtive Units '(SAU)'td idcntify"ahcl

..^dress.gqpsjn'y.haviq^ HbdltjviqndjSoc^^^^

E^otjonql ledmin^supiw

;dnd CddsTCoung SAUsv

•^Prdmdte. deii.very'oT MuRl-.Seredr.S^^^

Supporte (MTSSt

•^ersec training progrdfns focusing orTiOge^

d^r(^ndt€ 'SEL opportunities fOrstudents.-

■ VVpriowit^^ ^U's tp1dejnSfy.stgJ interestJ.P.

Become in^jsirict cer^fie^'Mjndfu^ PrqcUces'S^^

cducdtbrs";

-Ens.urje. MUs Baye.:effeAMYe'?ddj_s:tOj^^^^

' connect • withjs^d en a I i Tbqc 1^ rou nds]

.-FacilitdteMmprbved resources aridrreferfai

relation'siiips,lbetween";sCh'ools and.'communityi;

■ bps.ed}age.nci_es....

iBe?lih^Ercmeh^'ry/Sc^^

'Berlin; New Hdmpshirel

LSEL Specialist/ .

!Behqyipr Inten/cn't|pmst^

Titlen Pdrdprofessibndl

l-,i Pdrdprbfessional

'r998^*/2023

i2.03'iiy2023j

1200.1-!2017'

n 9^200}

■lprqyi,^e training to s^.ff an<£'fbcu1ty-p_n Everyday;
!SEL' Best Rrqctices'^'Yo^ga.; and niihdfulhessf
- .Orgdnize/preparCi-dnd)cdn"duct-^^ ;'2.-.&3 SEL-

jinteryentlon materials dn^shdre-withRedchers'.-



JOY NOEL

Opioid Abatement Program/ Substance Misuse Prevention Program Manager

CONTACT PROFILE

L

Enthusiastic professional with a strong sense of

-dedication, motivation and responsibility to help

cultivate and enrich local, rural communities.

SKILLS

Business Leadership

Community Relations

Resource

Development

Communications

Strategic Planning

Event Management

Recruitment

Computer Proficiency

EDUCATION

NH Community

Technical

College- Nashua, NH

2005-2007

Business

Administration

EXPERIENCE
I

OAP/SMP Program Manager
Consortium- Littleton, NH

I

2023-PRESENT

North Country Health

Overall program management for NCHC's
Substance Misuse Program which includes staff
supervision, program, and budget management,
and ensuring compliance with all coritractual and
regulatory obligations related to program budgets,
contracts, work plans, evaluation plans, and
reporting.
Collaborate with staff from other NCHC SMP

program areas to ensure alignment of programs
across the team and efficient utilization of

resources.

Provide oversight and management of the Opioid
Abatement Program budget.
Be responsible for managing contracts and
comrhunications with NH Division of Public Health

Services staff, including contract renewal,
ameridment, and reporting.
Serve as a liaison v/ith academic, state, federal,

and private agencies involved with prevention
work.'

Fosterj partner engagement to build upon the
successful innovative collaboration for improving
the health status of the region.

Build positive relations within the team and external
parties by keeping all stakeholders up to date with
relevant project information, communicating to
ensure maximum efficiency and participating as a
team member to complete program deliverables.
CollatDorate with NCHC staff on grant writing
activities and sustainability planning as requested.
Cross collaboration wth other NCHC program areas
as required.
Participate in NCHC's Leadership Team meetings
on a regular basis and join l^lCHC's management
team meeting as requested.



•  Duties, responsibilities, and octivities may ctiange,
or new ones may be assigned at any time with or
without notice.

I

Director|of Operations | AHEAD, Inc.-Littleton, NH

20U-2023
i

Oversee day-to-day corporate administration and
resoOrce development operations.

t

Work collaboratively with senior managers, board
menibers, comrhittees, community partners and
staff to effectuate the organization's mission.
Assist with analysis, development and adherence of
the annual budget.
Prepare organizational publications such as annual

reports, appeal letters, email campaigns, social
media blasts, marketing materials and newsletters
for internal and external communications.

Plan, organize and deploy special events; solicit

corporate sponsorships and donations accordingly.
Devise and implement donor stewardship while
adhering to ethical fundraising principles.
Manage systems of soliciting, receiving, processing,
acknowledging and reporting contributions using
donor management software.
Writeifunding requests and grant applications to
obtain supplemental funds as needed.
Co-le|ad Race, Equity, Diversity, Inclusion (RED!)
Committee which involves identifying opportunities
and executing effective strategies.
Cultivate and maintain strong relationships in the
comrhunity in addition to recruiting board,
comrnittee members, volunteers and advocates.

Administrative Assistant/Accounting | McLure's-

Littleton, NH
!

2016-2023

•  Performed accounting duties such as accounts
payable for two companies, purchase orders,
receipts of goods and production entries.

•  Completed scheduled inventory counts of raw
materials and finished goods and supply audits to
track shrinkage.

•  Coordinated shipments from production to end-
user and scheduled weekly pickups and deliveries.

•  Provided administrative and management
assistance to auditor and directed activities in the

office!
•  Condijcted standardized inspections to check

processes and adequacy of internal control
structure.

•  Researched quality control specifications for
finished goods and generated analysis certificates.

•  Oversaw the Preventative Maintenance Program
including SOP and SSOP systems.



ANDREW BROWN

Systems Administrator end IT Project Manager

CONTACT PROFILE

User-focused systems odministrator, with an emphosis on

deploying flexible technologies and evaluation tools to serve

the needs of a tost paced, constantly evolving multi-goal non

profits. I view technology as a tool that should serve a larger,

cause. As such, my goal is leveraging technology and data as

a tool to erhpower positive community change.

SKILLS

Office 365 Administrator

Active Directory

Administrator

Windows Support

Administrator

Solestorce Administrator

Population Health

Tracking and Analysis

Help Desk ■

Mobile Device

Management

Data Analysis

Program Evaluation

EDUCATION '

UVM

2002-2004

BA in Political Science

EXPERIENCE

I

Junior Engirieer - Ammonoosuc Computer Services

2002-2003 ■

Responsible for assisting senior engineers in resolving a variety of

calls at a managed service provider with dozens of business

clients in Northern NH and VT. Support of domain controllers,

web servers, networking and desktop support across a variety

of deployrrient types.

I

NCHC Systems Administrator

2005-20U '

Took the lead in managing all information technology systems

at a nonprofit managing a variey of grant-funded initiatives.

Included helpdesk, server support, windows desktop support,

management of a SQL database for client screenings and a

mobile dental clinic EHR. Also assisted in evaluation, including

aggregation of several multi-agency reporting initiatives:

Management Information Systems Administrator

2016-Current
I

Manages all information technology systems at a nonprofit

managing d variety of grant funding initiatives and a 24/7
residential sOd treatment facility. Included helpdesk, server-
support, winljows desktop support, cloud-based services

I

(including office 365 and Solestorce), video surveillance systerri.

Took the lead in project managerrient tor tech improvements,

including a successful CRM implementation and migration of

key services to cloud-based assets. Handled transition of

organization! remote work during the COVID-19 pandemic
and operation and eventual closing of 24/7 treatment site.



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.
)

Job descriptions not required for vacant-positions.
«

I

Contractor Name: ' North Country Health Consortium

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL SALARY

Bob Thompson Sr. Programs, Manager $27,372.00 $84,791.00

Anne-Marie Gagne SEL Coordinator $53,200.00 $53,560.00

Joy Noel OAP Project Manager $48,289.00 $60,770.00

Andrew Brown IT Coordinator . $2,436.00 $81,757.00

$0.00 $0.00
i

1 $0.00 $0.00



Lori A. Wctver

Connisloaer

KatJ*S.F6x
DtrccMr

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
•t ' •

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Division FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

i29 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
. 603-271-9544 1-000^-3343 Ext 9544

Fax; M3-27l^332 TDD Access: 1-000-735-2964 w^.<lhhs.oh.eoy

I  March 25. 2024
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council I

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the'Departm€;nt of Health arid Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing agreement yvith the Grantee listed below In bold for the contihupd
development and implementation of opiojd. abatement programs, by exercising a Gi^;
Agreenoent renewal option, with no change to the overall price limitation of $6,541,114 and
extending the completion date from May 3, 2024 to May 3, 2025, effective upon Governor and
Council approval. 100% Other Funds (Opioid Abatement Trust Fund).-

The original agreements were approved by Governor and Council on May 3. 2023, Item
#13. ■ "

Grantee Name
Vendor

Code

1

Area Served
i

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Archways

(Tjlton. NH). 310158tB001

i

Central Nl^ $284,034 $Q $284,034

Boys & Girls Club
of Greater

Nashua, Inc:

(Nashua. NH)
16708^-8001 Greater Nasllua $353,350 $0 $353,350

County of
Cheshire

(Keene. NH)
177372-B001 Cheshire County $173,888 $0. $173,888

County of
Mefrimack

(Boscawen, NH)
17743^8001

1

1
1

Merrlmack County
1

1

$209,365 $0 $209,365

County of.Sullivan
(Newport, NH) 177482-8004

1

t

Sullivan County
1

$453,847 $0 $453,847

Dismas Home of

New Hampshire:

(Manchester, NH)

'

290081-8001

'i

1

Statewide j $800,000 ,$0 $800,000



Hi9 ExceDency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Hor>orabie Council •

Page 2 of 4

Elliot Hospital of
the City of
Manchester

(Manchester, NH)
177179-B005

1

Statewide
1

i
1

1

$200,000 $0 $200,000

Greater Seacoast
Community

Health

(Somersworth,
.  NH)

166629-B001

(

Statewide

1

1

1  »:•

$575,737 $0. $676,737

Hope on Haven
Hill

(Somersworth,
NH)

275119-B001

!

Statewidel
1
1
1

$269,645 $0 $269,645

Makin' It Happen
Coalition for

Resilient Youth

(Manchester. NH)
319209-B001

(

i

Greater Manchester

i

$574,350 $6 $574,350

Mid-State Health

Center

(Plymouth, NH)
15B055-B001

1
Southern Grafton

County ! "
$217,028 $0' $217,028

New Hampshire
Harm Reduction

Coalition

(Dover, NH) 330454-B001 Statewide
1

$875,000 $0. $875,000

North Country
Health

Consortium

(Littleton. NH)

168557-

8001

1

North Coun^
1

$263,787 $0 $263,787

The tJpper Room,
A Family

Resource Center

(Derry, NH)
174210-B001

1

Greater Derry, NH
1

1

1

$264,000 w. $264,000

TLC Family
Resource Center

(Claremcnt. NH) 170625-B001

1

Sullivan and Lower

GraftonCoun^
)

I

$568,813 $0 $568,813



His ExottSeiKy, Governor Chrtstopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Pa9e3of4

Weeks Medical

Center

(Lancaster, NH)
177171-B001

1  '

Coos and Upper
Graflon County

1

$458,270 50 $458,270

- Total: $6,541,114 $0 $6,541,114

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Yeara 2024 and 2025, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, If needed and justified.

I

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Grantee to continue developing and Implementing
the opioid abatement projects approved by the Opiold Abatement Advisory Commission
(Commission) through a no-cost renewal as directed by the Corhmlssion. Unused funding from
State Fiscal Year 2024 will be carried forward to State Fiscal Year 2025, resulting in no additional
cost to the Opioid Abatement Trust Fund.

I

Individuals withT or at risk of developing, opioid use disorders (CUDs) and any co-
occurring substance use disorder or mental health (SUD/MH) issues; and/or children impacted
by substance use will be served through May 3,2025.

The Grantee will.continue to develop and implement the Student Weliness and Support
program, Juvenile Restorative Justice program, and Youth Leadership Through Adventure
program. The. Grantee will contiriue to provide training, coordination, and support for public school
programs and services to help studerits with Opioid Use Disorder (CUD) and any co-occurring
Substance Use Disorder/Mental Health (SUD)^H) issues, or students who have been affected
by CUD ar^j any cp-occurring SUD/MH issues within their families: Add'rtionaiiy, the Grantee will
continue supporting evidence-based prevention programs and services that promote healthy,
drug-free lifestyles; reduce isolation; build skills and confidence; and facilitate and strengthen
community-based prevention efforts.

The Department will continue to monitor services by reviewing annual reports and
conducting regular meetings with the Grantee.'

-  • t • \

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Grant Agreement Provisions, of the
original agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available furxJing, agreement of the
parties and Governor and Council approval, the Department is exercising its option to renew
services for one (1) Year of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Grantee will
be unable to fully develop and implement, the opioid abatement projects, leaving local public-
school personnel less equipped to support students with OUD and any coroccurring SUD/MH
issues. Additionally, the Grantee would not.have the ability to administer evidence-based
prevention programs focused on healthy, drug-free lifestyles; Isolation reduction; and skills-
building. Efforts to facilitate and strengthen! community-based prevention activities will be
hampered as well. I

Area sen/ed; North Country.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sunumi
end the Honorat>le Council !

pege 4 of 4 '

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer avaiiatiie. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program. |

Respectfully submitted,

tori A. Weaver.

Commissioner

\

Tht Deportmtnlof lleoUh and Human Services'Mution it to Join communiiiet and fomilia
.  in providing opporlunilies (or eiliunt to achieve heoUh and independence.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
FtSCAL DETAILS SHEET

I05-95-92.920510-39500000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS. OPIOID ABATEMENT TRUST FUND (100* Other Funds)

Ar/«Kufaw« frifrtwrttffimfiiftrTIHon Area Family Resource Center ! VOR 310158-B001

.  State Fiscal
Class/Account Class Title' Job Number

Current

. Amount

.  Increase/

(Decrease).

Ro.vlsed

Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92053950 523.670.00 $0.00 $23,670.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Piooram Services 02053950 $142,017.00 $0.00 $142,017.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 02053950 $118,347,00 $0.00 $118,347.00

Sub Total $284,034.00 $0.00 $284,034.00

h nf^rnater NA^hllA 1

VOR r 167081 -

6001

State Fiscal
Class/Account''  Class Titio" '-1 ■ Job Number

Ciirreni

Amount

increase/ *.

(Decrease) .

Reylaod
Amwnl'"'

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92053950 $29,021.00 $0.00 $29,021.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92053950 $179,225.00 $0.00 $179,225.00

2025. 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92053950 $145,104.00 $0.00 $145,104.00

Sub Total $353,350.00 $0.00 $353,350.00

A  . :

VOR-177372-

B001

State Fiscal.
'Class/Account

(

Class Title- • Job Number
t

Currant

Amount

Increase/

(Doc'roaso)'

Re^Md

Amount'

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92053950 $14,491.00 $0.00 $14,491.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Servloos .92053950 586.944.00 $0.00 $86,944.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts (or Prooram Services 92053950 $72,453.00 $0.00 $72,453.00

Sub Total $173,888.00 $0.00 $173,888.00

BCk • i

i
1

VOR-177435 •

B001

State fiscal
Class'/ Account '  Class Tltlej | '  Numl^r

'  1

Currant •

•' • Amount'

Increase/ ■

(D'ecroaso) <

*  Revised S

'Amount ■ '

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Ser,ficos 92053950 $17,152.00 $0.00 $17,152.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92053950 $106,455.00 $0.00 $106,455.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Propram Services 92053950 585,758.00 $0.00 .  $85,758.00

Sub Iota 5209.365.00 $0.0G $209,365.00

VOR-177482-

B004

SWe Fiscal'
'Class/Account * •••= ' ClassTiiloT 1 * Job Number

Current^
Amount

tncroa'so/.
(Docroesb)

.Revised. <

Amount'- '

2023 102-500731 - Conlracts for Propram Services 92053950 $75,641.00 $0.00 $75,841.00

- 2024 102-500731 Contracts (or Program Senrices 92053950 $378,206.00 $0.00 $376,206.00

Sub Tola! $453,647.00 $0.00 $453,847,00

^iew Hampshire
BOOi

'  State FIsMi
Class/Account, Class fitlolOO'.OOp. j .Job Number

Current.

Amount

Incroasof

(Decrease) '

Revised -

Amount

2023 102-500731 Conlracts for Prooram Services 92OS3950 $500,000.00 $0.00 $500,000.00

2024 • 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00

2025 102-500731 Conlracts for Program Services 92053950 $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00

Sub Total $600,000.00 $0.00 $600,000.00

1

I

VDR- 177179-

B005

1 State Fiscal Clssa,/Account" Class Title'- ' '
:u 1

, Job Number
• Current

Amount

increase/.

;  (Docroaso)

-Royisod-

Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92Q539M $16,667.00 $0.00 $16,667.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950- $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $83,333.00 $0.00 $83,333.00

Sub Tola $200,000.00 $0.00 $200,000.00

Greater Soacoas Communitv Health. 1 B001

State Fiscal

'■ .. year,'
,Class/Accqunt* •  " Class Title'

>

'' Job Number
Current'

1.^' Amount-
increase/ <

(Docroaso)-
.  Revised

1, Amount.



2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services • 92053950 $43,227.00 $0.00 $43,227.00

2024 102-500731. Contracts for Prooram Services 92053950 $316,375.00 $0.00 $316,375.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $216,135.00 $0.00 $216,135.00

Sub Total $575,737.00 $0.00 $575,737.00

Hope On Haven Htll

VDR-275119-

B001

': state Fiscal

Year
Class / Account -  Class Title • j Job Number

Current

Amount

increase/' ;

(Decrease) '

Reylsbd
„Amoum

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $27,608.00 $0.00 $27,608.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $103,999.00 $0.00 $103,999.00

.  2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $138,038.00 $0.00 $138,038.00

Sub Total $269,645.00 so.oo $269,645.00

•1
.MaKinIt Happen Coalition for Resilient Youth BOOl

^ -Stato.Flscai

Year
CiSMVAccount- Class Title ' ( -..C Job Numl>er'

Cun;ont
Amount

increase ;
(Decrease);/

.V [Revised.
Amount-

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $45,492.00 $0.00 $45,492.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $301,400.00 $0.00 $301,400.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $227,458.00 $0.00 $227,458.00

• Sub Total $574,350.00 $0.00 $574,350.00

Mid-State Health Center 1 B001

■ State Fiscal

Year
Clas,s/Account Class Title !

I
Job Number

Current

Amount

Increase/

(Docroase)'-
1  Re'^sod'

Amount ■ ■

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 523.371.00 $0.00 $23,371.00

2024 102-500731 ■ Contracts (or Program Services 92053950 $76,800.00 $0.00 $76,600.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts (or Program Services 92053950 $116,857.00 $0.00 $116,857.00

Sub Total $217,028.00 $0.00 $217,028.00

!

.New Hampshire Harm Reduction Coalition

VDR - 330454 ■

8001

' State Fiscal.

Year >
Class/'Account Class Title Job Numbor

Current

Amount

IncroBM/ k

(Dacroase)

Revised''*

*  Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $62,500.00 $0.00 $62,500.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $500,000.00 $0.00 $500,000.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $312,500.00 SO.OO $312,500.00

SublTota! $875,000.00 $0.00 $875,000.00

North Country Health Consortium

VOR-158557-

B001

• Stato.Flscai

Year
Class / Account Ciass^TWo- ,•

'V.
'  Job Number

Current'

Amount

incroaso/,'..

(Oecroaso)',

Rb.vlsqd -r
Amount

•  2023 102-500731 Conlracls for Program Services * 92053950 •$43,964.00 $0.00 $43,964.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $219,823.00 ($23,823.00) $196,000.00

2025 •102-500731 • Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $0.00 $23,823.00 $23,823.00

Sub Tola! $263,787.00 $0.00 $263,787.00

The Upper Room. A Famity Resource Center B001

Slate [Fiscal
Year"

Class/Account,■ .'Ciass Title : i '  .hob Numbor Current
Amount'

Increase/
(Decrease)

['' Revised- ^
Amount

2023 .  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $22,000.00 $0.00 $22,000.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $132,000.00 $0.00 $132,000.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $110,000.00 SO.OO $110,000.00

Sub Total $264,000.00 $0.00 $264,000.00

TLC Family Resource Center 1 VOR - 170625-

; Statp.Fiscal
Year

.Class/.A'ccoimt Claes.Title •
'  ■ 1

Job Nurnbor
■ Curroril

Amount
' incrdaso//
(Dbcroase)'

Revised
Am'ount.

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 S48.810.00 $0.00 $48,810.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 .  $275,951.00 $0.00 $275,951.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sendees 92053950 $244,052.00 $0.00 $244,052.00

Sub Total $568,813.00 $0.00 $568,613.00

Weeks Medical Center
i

VOR-177171-
•' Stato.Flscai;

Year"
Class/.Account Ctass'-Jltle ' J6b:Nurhte'r Current'•

Amount
■ increase/!''

• (Docroasb)'
Revised;
Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts (or Program Sen/ices 92053950 S40.7 73.00 $0.00 $40,773.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $213,635.00 SO.OO $213,635.00



2025 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Se»vicas S2053950 $203,862.00] $0.00 $203,862,001
SOb Total S456.270.00l $0.00 $456.270.00l

Overall Total $6,541,114.00

- State Fiscal

Yoar
Class/Account "j! Class TItIa' j Job Number

i

*  Amount-

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sorvicas 92053950 si,034,387.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $3,259,007.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $2,247,720.00

Sub Total $6,541,114.00
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment
1

This Amendment to the Opioid Abatement Programs contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and North Country
Health Consortium ("the Contractor"). \
WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 3. 2023 (Item #13); the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General F^rovisions. the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties Kereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7; Completion Date, to read:
t

May 3. 2025 j
2. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in'the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, Budget, Amendment #1 and Exhibit C-2 Budget, Amendment #1.

3. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget by deleting and replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-1, Budget,
Amendment #1, which is attached heretoiand incorporated by reference herein.

4. Add Exhibit C-2, Budget, Amendment #1,1 which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein. i

North Country Health Consortium

RGA-2023-DBH-01-OPIOI-14-A01
v7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page l[of 3

Contractor Initials

Date
3/25/20?T
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval:

i

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set iheir hands as of the dale written below,
I

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

3/25/2024

Date

— by.

S.

NTmeWt-jTV. FOX
Title. Q.)

3/25/2024

Date

North Country Health Consortium

i9^r>«d by:

P.
,ame^»ff-Pearson
Title: Executive Director

North Counlfy Health Consortium

RGA-2023-OBH-01-OPIOI-14-A01
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3
I

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. i

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

3/25/2024

Date

?OocwSlBn*4 by;

Qarne:^'^y"'"Guari no

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify.that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on:, (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

North Country Health Consortium

RGA.2023-DBH-01-OPIOI-14-A01
V, 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 3'of 3
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BT1.0 ExhlbUC.1, Budgti, Amendment 01 ftGA-2023-DeH4}|-OPtOt-l4-A01

NewHamp

Grantee Mame:

Budget Regueet for:

Budget Period

Indirect Coat Rate (if applicable)

shIre Department of Health and Human Services

North Country Health Consortium

Qpto/d Abatemeni Programs

GSC Approval Data to 6/30/2024

30.4% Salaries and Wages onty
!

Line Item" '•; Program Cost • Funded by DHHS '
"" '

1. Salary A Waaee

u  . 1 $114,697

1

.

2. Frinoe Benefits

1  $28,481

•

3. Consultants $01

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Aooendb(IVto2CFR200.

1  •

1  ■ . $0

5.(a) Supplies • Educaiional j
i  $682

5.fb) Suoolles-Lab $0

S.fc) Suooiles • Pharmacy ;  $0

5.(d) Sui>Dlies • Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office 1

!  $2,775

I

6. Travel

$10,592
1

i

7. Software

1  $1,819

1

8. (a) Other • Marketing/
Communications '  ■' ■ w
6. (bi Other • Education and Trainino $0
8. fc) Other • Other (soeclfv belowl

Other /otoase soociM so
' Other (otease soeciM - " i so

Other (please speciM ^  $0
Other (please soedM so

9. Subrecloient Contracts

!  $40,026
1

t
,

Totai Direct Costs 1  S197.052
1

;

Total Indlroct Costs $42,912
1

TOTAL $239,984

f%ge 1 of 1 3/25/2024
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BT 1.0 Eihiblt C-2, Budgil, Amondment #1 RCA-2023-DBH-01-OPIOI-14-A01

NewHampshIrt Oopartment of Health and Human Sarvtcos

GrantM Name: North Country Health Consortium

Budget Requeit for: OpkM AtMtermnt Prngmms .•

Budget Period 7/1/2024 to 5/3/2025 •.

Indirect Coat Rate (If applicable) 30.4% Salaries and Wages only

Line Item. Program Cost.-Funded by OHMS

1

t
$11,386

1. Salary AWaoes !
,;

2. Frinoe Benefits

j  $2,627
1

3. Consullants $01

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rale cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Aooendlx IV to 2 CFR 200.

t
I  JO

3.(8) Supplies • £ducatior\ai 1

t
•  1 $318

5.(b) Supplies-Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies • PharmacY $0

S.(d) Supplies - Medical 1  $0

S.{e) Supplies Office
$25

t

1

1

$1,052

6. Travel

*  I
$181

7. Soltv«re 1

8. (a) Ot^ • Martceting/
Communications

8. (b) Other • Education end Training $0

8. fc) Other • Other (specify below)

Other fpfease soecrfy) :  $0
Other (Diease soeciM SO
Other (olease soeclM !  ■ SO

Other'tolCDse soeclM 1  ■ • $0

. .  . $3,974

9. Subrecipient Contracts i

Total Direct Costs '( $19,563

!

Total IrKllrect Costs 1  $4,260
1

TOTAL 1  $23,823

Page 1 ol 1 3/25/2024
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMEPfT OF HEALTH AJVD HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BBHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STRECT. CONCORD. NH 03301
60-271-9S44 l-S00452-3M5eit.9S44

Fftt:603-27M332 TOD Acccu: 1-^735-2964 www.dhbj.nli.(ov
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13

April 18. 2023

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Siinunu
end the Monorebte Coundi

iState House

Concord. Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Autlwrtze the Department of Health and Human Services, Olvislon for Behavioral Health,
on behalf of the Opioid Abatement Adw'sory Commissiori. to award grant agreements to the
Graritees listed below In accordance RSA 126-^83-88, in an amount not to exceed $6,541,114
for the development and implementation of pplold abatement programs, with the option to renew
for up to twd (2) additional years, effective upon Governor and Council approval through the dates
specified below. 100% Other Funds (Opiold Abatement Trust Fund).

Grantee Narno Vendor

Code

Area Served
i
1

1

Agreement
Amount

Expiration
Date*.

Archways

(Tillon. NH) 310158-

B001

1

1

Central NH

i
$284,034

24 Months from

G&C approval

Boys & Girls Qlub
of Greajter
Nashua. Inc..

(Nashua, NH)

167081-

BObl

1
Greater Nashua

I

t

i

$353,350

24 Months from

G8C approval

County of
Cheshire

(Keene, NH)
■177372-
8001

(

Cheshire County
I

1

$173,888

24 Months from
GiS>C approval

Coufity of
Merrirnack

(Boscawen.NH)
177435-
B001

Mernrn JcK County
i "
1

$209,385

24 Months from
G&C approval

County of
Sullivan

(Nevypoft. NH)
177482-
8004

Sullivan County
i

$453,847

12 Months from
G&C approval

Olsrnas Home of
NewHampshjre

(Manchester, NH)
290061-
^.1

1

Statewide
1

^00,000
96 Months from .
G&C approver*
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and the Honorable CouncU |
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Elliot Hospttel of
the Ci^ of
Manchester

(Manchester, NH)

177179-

B005

1

Statewide •

t

$200,000

24 Months from

G&C approval

Greater Seacoast

Community
Heatth

(Somers worth,
•  NH)

166629-

BOOI

\

Statewlde $575,737

24 Months from

G&C approval

Hope on Haven
Hill

(Somersworth.
NH)

275119-
B001

Statewide $269,645

24 Months from

G&C approval

Makin' It Happen
Coalition for

Resilient Youth

(Manchester, NH)

319209-

B001

Or
Man

eater

Chester

$574,350

24 Months from

G&C approval

Mid-State Health

Center

(Plymouth. NH)
158055- ■

B001

}

• - 1
1

Southern Grafton

County
1  . \

$217,028

24 Months from

G&C approval

New Hampshire
Harm Reduction

Coalition

(Dover. NH)

330454-

8001

' ♦ 1 « s

statewide
!

1
(
1
1

$875,000

24 Months from '

G&C approval

North Country
.Health

Consortium

(Littleton. NH)

156557-

B001

North

"v'
Country

1

.  $263,787

12 Months from

G&C approval

The Upper Room,
A Famliy .

Resource Center

(Derry. NH)

174210-

8001

j
Greater Derry, NH

1  ,

.  1
1

$264,000

24 Months from

G&C approval

TLC Family
Resource Center

(Claremqnt. NH)
170625-

.BOOt

1

Sullivan and Lower

Grafton County
$568,813

24 Months from

G&C approval

Weeks Medical

Center

(Lancaster. NH)
177171-

BbOl

1  ̂

Coos and Upper
Graftprj County

$458,270

24 Months from
G&C approval

■ iA t'- ' .'i;--. Total $6,641,114
,



His Excellency, Governor Clulstopher T. Sununu
and Iho Honor^e Counci)
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'Grant agreements Include one (1) or two (2) year project periods based on the Grantees'
applications.

••Grant agreement includes an extended :96-month term end additional requirements due to
the purchase of property.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through theBudget Office, if needed and justified. |

See Fiscal Details Attached

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Grantees to develop and implement the approved
opiold abatement projects recommended by the Opioid Abatement Advisory Commission
{Commission). ReyJsed Statutes Annotated (RSA) 126-A:83 established the Opiold Abatement
Trust Fund (Trust Fund), overseen by the Ojpioid Abatement Advisory Commission (Commission),
for the State to receive and deposlt.funds from all consumer protection settlements or judgments
against opioid manufacturers or distributors. Funds are distributed from the Trust Fund for
qualifying projects recommended by the . Commission pursuant to RSA 126-A:84-86. "The
Department anticipates presenting one (1) additional agreement resulting from this Request for
Grant Applications (RGA) to the Govemor-and Executive Council at a future meeting.

Individuals with, or at risk of developing, opioid use disorders (OUDs) and any co*
occurring substance use disorder or mental health (SUO/MH) issues; and/or children Impacted
by substance use will be served. - |

The Grantees will develop and Implement opioid abatement projects that include the
following categories: j
• Statewide Systems to support mobile intervention, treatment, and recovery services, offered

by qualified professionals.

• Treatment access; referral to treatment'or connections to other services; and support public
and norvpublic school programs and services for students with OUD and any co-occurring
SUD/MH issues or Who have been affected by OUD and any co-occurring $UD/MH issues
withlnlheir family. j

•  Recovery to provide access to housing, including supportive housing, recovery housing;
provide or support transportation to treatment or recovery programs or services; and provide
employment training or ̂ ucational services for Individuals in treatment for or In.recovery from
OUD and any co-occurring SUO/MH. I .

•  Prevention.to support evidence-based prevention programs and services, Including efforts to
promote healthy, drug-free lifestyles, reduce isolation, build skills and confidence, and
facilitate community-based praventlon efforts.

• Workforce to provide scholarships and.supports for certified addiction counselors and other
mental and behavioral health providers Involved in addressing OUD and any co-occurring
SUD/MH Issues.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing annual reports, and conducting regular
meetings with the Grantees.
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The Department conducted a competitive bid process, on behalf of the Commission, using
a Request for Grant Applications (RFGA) that was posted on the Department's website from
August 6, 2022 through September 12. 20^. The Department received 45 responses that were
reviev^d by a team of qualified irxtividuals and presented to the Commission for consideration.
The Scoring Sheet is attached. |

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Grant Agreement Provisions.
Subsection 1.1., the parties have the option to extend the agreement for an additional two (2)
years, subject to the contihued availability of funds, satisfactory grantee performance, agrMmant
of the parties, recommer^ation of the Opioid Abatement Advisory Commission, artd Governor
and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council'not authorize this request. Individuals, families and
communities across the state may experience delays in accessiitg prevention, treatment and
recovery aervices related to opioid use disorders (OtJOs) and any co-occurring substance use
disorder or mental health (SUD/MH) Issues.

Area aerved; Statewide

Source of Other Funds: Opioid Abatement Trust Fund

In the event that the CMher Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program. >

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

TTir Ikfierimtnl o/HeolOt ond Hu/non StriAcn' Mission Is UtfoinconmuniUes and families
in providing opporiuniliu for <itinn$ la aeHitvt health and independenct.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

0S-95-92.92O51O-395OOO<IO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF. HHS:
DIVISION FOR DEHAViORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCSj ClPlOID ABATEMENT TRUST FUND
(100% Othar Funds) . [ ^

2023 102-500731 Conlrscts (w ProQrom'Safvicas 92053950 S23.670.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram'Services 92053950 S142.017.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram'Services 92053950 S118.347.00

Sut) Total S284.034.00

SlStltfiFlCal/r MM
2023 102-500731 CoAirocta for Proarom Services 92053950 329.021.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Servicos 92053950 S179.225.00

2025 102-500731 -Conlrscts for Proqram Sorvtces 92053950 $145,104.00

1 Sub Total $353,350.00

County of Cheshire '*'■ VDR- 177372-8001

2023 • 102-500731 ■ Contracts for Proqram Services 92053950 $14,491.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 92053950 $8d.944.X

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 92053950 $72,453.00
1 Sub Total .  $173,688.00

County of Merrimadt ^ • • l - . i-.. v VDR - 177435-B001
KSt'a'talE IscaUCmCJWWwXITIhV*

2023 102-500731 ■Contracts for Proqram Services 92053950 ^  .$17,152.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proqram Services 92053950 $106,455.00

2025 , 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $85,758.00
1 Sub Total $209.365.M

1 a.rgn.T^ry'f'n'.'?

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $75.641;00

.  2024 102-500731 Contracts for.Program Services 92053950 $378,206.00
7. : Sub Totet $453,847.00

Dlimas Homo of Now Hompshlre VDR-290061 -8001.

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services '  92053950 $500,000.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $150,000.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $150,000.00
1 Sub Totet $600,000.00

«  ; f

EOiotl HosDilal ' . VDR. 177179-8005

2023 102-500731 Conlracls for Program Services 920S39SO $16,667.00

2024 102-500731 ^ Contracts for Proqrem Services 92053950 $100,000:00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $83,333.00
1 Sub Tola! S200.000.00

Greater Seacoosl .Community Health. VDR-168629-.BCWI
-iilu/SJtt3ESC3 l^otKNumlScirA't

uOaKBctiEaL'
2023 •  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services "92053950 $43,227.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $316,375.00

2025 102-500731 Conlracls for Proqrem Servicos 92053950 $216,135.00
Sub Total $575,737.00



Hope On Haven HiJ VOR. 2751l9-eOOV.

•: SlatoTtfcal.?.3
.. .♦.-.YoBr/.-.'Aii

•"•'nlhnVmi'v■(4t^A^H.outiouei:^7do$9
2023 102-500731 Contracts for Progrom Services 92053950 $27,606.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92053950 $103,999.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92053950 $138,036.00

Sub ToU) $269,645.00

Makin it Happen Coalition for ResiDent Youth .  . . .VOR-319209 - 6001

Yfla fAAawr*
2023 102-500731 Contracts lor Proorant Services 92053950 $45,492.00
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 920539S0 $301.400.X

-  2025 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92053950 $227.4S8.X
• - Sub Total $574.350.X

Mkt-St8te Health Center
ri^i

VOR'ISdOSS-BOOl

2023 102-500731 ConifecU tor Pfog/am Servteee 92053950 $23,371.00
2024 102-500731 Contracis tor ProQfam Servlcaa 92053950 $76,600.00
2025 102-500731 ContfBCto tor Pfoqrem Services 92053950 $116.657.00

Sub Total $217.028.00

New Hampslilfe Harm Reduction CoallLion VOR - 330454 • B001
i>fSl8te':Blif«:(iin

2023 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92053950 •$62;500.X
2024 102-500731 Contracts lor Proprnm Services 92053950 $500,000.00
2025 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92053950 S312.500.X

Sub Total $875.0M.«

North Country Health Consortium VDR - 156557 - B001

IMas^cE^^ rmfiiSfizdrfiliiScj )|too6AtimlEw3Sa5ww»#wS»?C5
2023' 102-500731 • Contracts lor Program Services 92053950 $43.964.X
2024 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92053950 $219.e23.X

■ Sub Total $263.787.W

The Upper Room. A Famllv Resource Center VOR. 174210-B001.

2023 ■102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92053950 $22.000.X
2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $i32.ooo:m
2025 ■ 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 SI 10.000.x

1  Rub Total ■ S2640XX

TLC Famllv Resource Center VOR- 17X25 - 0001

Al-. .. I'.'.w
2023 —
2024

•• •102-S00731---
102-500731

—contracts-lor rrogram-bervices—
ConlracU lor Program Services

92053950
92053950"

1  - -MbiOIOiOO
1  $27S9S1.M

2025 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92053950 $244.0S2.X
1  Sub Total SS68ei3.X

Weeks Medical Cisriler. 1 VDR-177171-BWI.RS^tgEHM^
m

2023 102^500731 Contracts lor Program Sorvtces. 92053950 $40.773.X
2024 102-500731 Contracts lor Program Services 92053950 $213.635.x
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $203.X2.X

"• i  Sub Tolal $4S8270.X

Ovorall Totall $6.541.114,00]



*»»»

SStSl^lgai^
fa«>' ̂ "i Vfi nrf>^if^iK)

2023 102-500731 Contracls for f^roQ;^m Services 02053950 SI 034.307.00

9024 102-500731 Conlracis lor Program Services 92053950 S3 282.830.00

202S 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92053950 $2,223,697.00

Sub Total S6 541 114.00



RGA-2023-DBH-01-OPIO1: Opioid Abatement Programs

Applicant Name Project Title

i

Funding ■

Request

Recommended by

the Commission

Archways ' Pccr'Rccovcry: Youth Program and Community
Corrections 1

S284,034 . Yes

Boys & Girls Club of
Greater Nashua, Inc.

Positive Youth Development & Prevention
Collaborative j

$353.3S0 Yes

Manchester Police

Deoartment

Youth Restorative Justice: Juvenile Court Diversion

i
$160,000 Yes

County of Cheshire Drug Court Recovery Support Services $173,888 Yes

Dismas Home of New

Hampshire, Inc.

Program Expansion for Women's Community Re
entry 1

$800,000 Yes

Elliot Hospital of the City
of Manchester

Behavioral Health Workforce: Recruitment &

Rcicnilon * i

$200,000 Yes

Greater Seacoast

Community Health

Peer Recovery Supports: Criminal Justice Program
!

$575,737 Yes .. .

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Recovery Housing for Pregnant and Postpartum
Women. i

$269,645 Yes

Makin' It Happen

Coalition for Resilient

Positive Youth Development & Prevention: Project
UPSTREAM .

$574,350 Yes

Merrimack County Program Expansion for Supportive Services $209,365 Yes

Mid-State Health Center Transportation for Rural Treatment & Recovery
Supports '

.  $217,028 Yes
I*

New Hampshire Harm

Reduction Coalition

Harm Reduction Expansion: CapEx Initiative
t

$875,000 Yes

North Country Health

Consortium

North Country Wellncss and Recovery Friendly
Proaram • "

$263,787 Yes ,

County of Sullivan Transitional Housing &. Community Re-entry:
Sullivan House

$503,847 Yes
!•

The Upper Room, A

Family Resource Center

Positive Youth Devclopnjcnt & Prevention: .
Adolescent Wellness Programs

$264,000 Yes

TLC Family Resource

Center

Program Expansion of Drop-in Peer Recovery
Supports 1

$568,813 Yes

Weeks Medical Center Opioid Treatment Program Oversight Improvement $60,810 Yes

Weeks Medical Center Behavioral Health Workforce: Recruitment &

Retention |
$331,000 Yes

Weeks Medical Center Intensive Outpatient Program, Transitional Housing.
&. Mental Health Inpaticni Services Development &
Planning |

$66,460 Yes ii;

ARCNH . Peer Recovery Support 1 $642,962 No

City of Manchester, Fire.
Department

Community Response Unit $566,882 No

\i



County of Cheshire Cheshire County Department of Corrections
Medication-Assisted Treatment Program

$506,476 .  No

Eliiot Hospital usi'Treatment $785,899 No

Elliot Hospital Roads to Treatment $263,056 No

Friends of NH Drug

Courts

mproving graduation rates and treatment outcomes
"or adults ilh any substance use disorder in New
Hampshire Drug Courts

$1,239,780

I*

No

Greater Scacoast/SOS

Recovery

SOS RCO Social Enterprise Restaurant $170,895 No

Hillsborough County

Dept. of Corrections

MAT- ;
t  •' * '
\

$329,189 No

JSI Reearch & Traming

institute

The Partnership at Drug Free NH
1

$1,5)3,678 No

Lamprey Health Lamprey Health Care MAT/SUD Services Support $539,727 No

D a rtmou ih - H i tchcock Recovery Support Services for Opioid Abatement . $57.8,332 No

Merrimack County • Merrimack County DOC : MAT Reimbursement $486,458 No

Nashua Prevention

Coalition

Project Impact: Community Action Partnership $1,783,598 No

NH Alcohol & Drug

Abuse Counselors

Clinician Wcllbcing Netwjork $1,000,000 No

NH Coalition of Recovery

Residences

Market Analysis of the Recovery Housing Ecosystem
inNH . 1

$94,458 No

NH Juvenile Court

Diversion Netvs'ork

Juvenile Court Diversion I^DC
1

$834,750 No

NH Teen Institute NH Teen Institute Prevention Project $153,849 No

Pinetree institute Greater Scacoast Social Care Payment Project $590,000 No

Plymouth Area Recovery Whole Person Whole Lifc^ Recovery Project $327,430 No

Rockingham County Dept.
of CofTCClions

Rockingham County Integrated Inmate Treatment
Initiative

$725,349 No

Strafford County Medication Assisted Treatment Program $1,732,750 No ■

Sullivan County Recovery Clinical Support $401,340 No

Sullivan County Future Funding for MAT t ■  $901,076 No

Sullivan Count. Reimbursement $837,653 No

Weeks Medical Center School Based ProgramminR $157,780 No

Easter Seals New

Hampshire inc.

Famum Center Co-Occuring Disorder Treatment
Program

$1,600,680 Disqualified
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I

Subject: Qpiotd Abatement Programs fRGA»2625-DBH-Ql-OPlOI-14)

1

GRANT AGREEMENT

FORM NUMBER G-1 (version 11/2021)

The Stale of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IdentincQtlon and Definitions. !

1.1. State Agency Name |
1

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human
Services i

1.2. State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3. Grantee Name

North Country Health Consortium

1.4. Grantee Address

262 Cottage Street, Unit 230

Litileion.NH 03561 •

1.5 Grantee Phone «

(603)259-4785

1.6. Account Number

35-095.092-920510-

59500000-102-500731

1

1.7. Completion Date

12 Months from G&C

Approval

1.8. Grant Limitation

$263,787

1.9. Grant OfTicer for State Agency [
t

t

Robert W. Moore, Director |

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

if Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signing this form wc certify that we hove complied with
any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant, including if applicable RSA 31:9S-b."

l-lUJiM6fi,fl%naturc 1 |

1  4/7/2023 j
1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signer 1

Lauren Pearson Executive oirector

Grantee Signature 2 Name & Title of Grantee Signer 2

Grantee Signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signer 3

4/10/2023

1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

Katja S. FOX . Director

1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: j ^,«i«ii5t5Slstani Attorney CJcncral,On: 4/11/2023
1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: 1 On:

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange'for grant funds provided by the State ofNcw Hampshire, acting
through the Agency idcntincd in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee identified in
block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly
described in the scope of work attached hereto^ EXHIBIT B (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to
as "the Project").

Page 1 of3.
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4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.1.

5.4.

3.5.

7.

7.1.

>; 7.2.

8.

8.1.

1.2.

1.3.

9.

9.1.

ARKA CQVKRF.O. £x(epl u Mhervvite (peciOctUy provided Tor he;'d^ Ihe
Crenlee shall perform (he Project in. end nith respect to. ihc State of Kew
Hampshirr, ' 9.2.
KFKF.CTIVK PATH: COAIPLF.TiON OF PROJECT. I
This Atreetneni. and all oUtgoiions of the ponies hereunder. shall txcttne
efTcoivc on the dole on the date of approval of this A^mcnt by the Govtinor
end CouncD of the State of Next* Hampshire if required (block I.I6).'0' «pon 9.3.
signeturt by the Stele Agency uthoxvn in WocV 1.14 ("the Effective Date*).
Enepi as olhcA^ist specirically provided herein, the Project. mcEudini ell reperu 9.4.
required by this Agretmeni. shall be completed in ITS entirely pnor to the date in
' block 1.7 (hcreinaAcr referred toes The Completion Oac").
CHANT AMOUNT; UMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHKkS:

PAVMENT.

The Crent Amount is identified end more poniculerly described in EXHIBIT C. 9J.
. eitaehed hereto. [
The manner of, end tcheduk of payment shall be asset forth in CXHIOITC. 10.
In eceordanee with the pnn-isloru set forth in EXHIBIT C. artd in consideration
of the satisfactory pcrfortnanee of the Project, as determined by the Sutc. end u
liniiied by subparagmph SS of iheu gcncrol proxniiona, the Stale dtall pa>' Ihc
Grentec the Grant Amount. The.Staic shell xviihhoU from the emouni oiher>vtsc
payable to the Grantee under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums requlied, oi
permitted, to be x<nihhe1d pursuant to N,H. R5A 80:7 ihcou^ 7<. i
The psymem by the Siste of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete

■ paj-meiu lo ;he Grantee for all c.<tpeftses. of Hhalrvrr nature, incurred ib)' the
Grerxlet in the performance hereof, and shall be the onl)*. atxd the compirtc. 11,
contpenssiion 10 the Cremee for the Projca. The State shall have no liabiliiiesio II.I.
the Grantee other than tlK Grant Amouru. j
No(xxithsiendin8an)'ihittg in (his AgrccrtKnt to the contm/)-, end itoixxiihsianding II. 1.1
unexpected eircwnutartecs, in no event shall the iota) of all p9)'nKnis outhoritcd, IJ.1.2
or tciially made, hncxnlcr exceed the Craru limitation set forth in block l.t of 11.1.3
these general prox-isions. j 11.1.4
COMPLIANCE RV CRANTF.E WITH i.ANVS AND RF.CUI^TIQXS In 11.2.
connection xx-iih the performaiKe of the Project, the Grantee shall comply xxiih all
statutes, laxxs rcguhiiorts. and orders of federal, state, county.- or municipal 11.2.1
authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the CrarUec, including
the acquisHiort of any and all necessary pcrmiu and RSA 3l>95>b. |
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS , |
Bclxxcm (he Eficcd'xe Date end (he date scxen (7) ̂ran aflrr the Complc(ion
Date, titlen otherwise required by ihe grant terms or the Agency, the Grantee 11.2.2
shall keep detailed accounts of ell cxpenKS iiKurrcd irx connection xviih the

. Project. iiKlxidiAg, but not limited to, costs of administration, trensporuiiotx, -
truurancc. idcphonc caJb. and citriea) materials arid serx-iees. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bilb and other similar documents.!
DctxttcA (Ik Effceiix-e Date arxd the date scx-ctx (7)'>xan alia the Completion 11.2.)
Dale,'unless oihcr\xise required bj-the grant terms or the Agency pursuant to
subparagraph 7.1, at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours, end as 11.2.4
oRcn as the State shall demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State ail

records pertaining to matters coxvrcd by this Agreement. The Crarxteclthsll 12.
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits 12.1.
of ell coniriets. invoices, materials, payrolls, records ofpctsonnel.dau (as thai
term bhereirxalVrdcfiwd). and other inforfflation relating to all maitcts eovcied
by ihb Agreanenl. As used in ihb pongraph. "Crtntee" tneludes all persons,
naitiral or ficiional. affilieied xxith. eonirolM b)-. or under common owner^p
xvith, the entity ideniified as (he Grantee in block 1.3 of these prox-bions i
t'KRSONNEt- { 12.2.
The Grantee shall, at its oxx-n expense, provide all pcfsormel neccssaiy to perform
the Project. The Craruee xvamnu that all persotvKl cnpgcd in (he Project shall
be qualiffcd to perfam such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authoriad
lopaform such Piojeei under all applicable laxxs. 12.3.
The Grantee shaU not hire, and it shall rxot permit any subconirscioi. siAgrantcc.
or other person, fufh or corporaliotx vxiih xxhom it is engaged in a combined effon
to perform the Project, to hire any person xrho has a cooiraciual relationship xxiih
the Slate, 0( xrho is ■ State ofUcer or employee, elected or appointed. i
The Grant-OfTteer shall be the representative of the State hereurxder. InihcWem 12.4.
of any dispxAC hereunder, the interpmuion of thu Agieemeni by the Cram
Officer, and hisAxer decision on any dispute, shall be fmaL I 13.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA; ACCHSS. |
As used in this Apeemeni, (he xx-ord "data" shall mean all irtformation and things
dex-cloped or obtouKd during the perfunnancc.of, or acquired or developed by
rcasotx of. this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies! reports.Tiles,
fomiuloe, survey's, maps, chans, sotmd recordings, x-idco recordings, pietMial
rrproductions.dnxvings.analyses, graphic representations, '

computer programs, computer printouti. noies, kllen, mcnxortnda. paper, end
documents, all xxhcihcr finished or unfinbhed.

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Dote the Crahtcc shall grant lo
the Suie, or any person designated by it.' unrestricted access to ell data for
rxaminitioA. duplication, publicaiion, i/onslaikyv sale, disposal, or for ony other
purpose xxhatsocwr.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any oihet'eeuniiy by
onyotxe other than the Suie.
On and oRer the Effective Dale all data, and any property ulxicb has been received
from the State or purchased with Rmds prox'ided for that purpose under this
Agiccnicni. shall be the property of the State, and thail be retuiricd lo tlxe State
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreemrni for any rcasorx, xxhichevcr
shall firii occur.

The State, orxd anyone it shall designate, shall have uruesiricted authority to
publish, disdosc. disuibuic and othcrxvxK use, in xtftole or irx part, all data.
CQiVOITION'Al. Nature OR AGREEMKNT. Notxxiihstxixding anything in
ihis AgfcemerM to Ihe corxiruy. all obliptions of tlxc State hereunder, ineluding.
without limitiiiion. ihe'CoruinxarKC of payirxerxu hereurxder. are coniingcm upon
the Dx-ailability or continued appropriaiion of fxmds, and in no event shall Ihe State
be liable for any* paymcnii hcrcuixder irx c.xceu of s>ch axrailabic or appropriated
fxmds. In the event of a mduction or lermirxation of those funds, the State shall
have the right to withhold poymcnl until such funds become avaibbte, if ever, and
shall hax-e the righj iq terminal this AgrcciTKnt immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such lermirxation.
EVRNTOFnFKAHl.T; RF.AIEniFA

Any orxc or more of(he folloxxing acu or omissions of(he Grantee shall constitute
an event of default hcivimlcr (hereinafter rcfencd to as "Events of Default*');
Failure to perform Ihe Projcti tatisbcterily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any rrpon required bcreundcr, or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to. the records required hercuxder, or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and corxdiiions of th'is Agrcemerxt.
Upon the occxffrcnce of any Event of Default, the State may take any one. or more,
or all, of the following aciions;
Give the Grantee a xxrittcn notice specifying the l;x-cm of Default arxd requiring it
to be remedied xv(thin. in the absence of a greater or lesser specificaiion ofiitnc,
thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Ex-cni of Default is rxot
limrty remedied, tcrminsic this Agrecmeixi, elective two (2) days after giving Ok
Crwxtet notice of lermmatioo; ird
Give (he Grantee a wTttlcn notice cpcci^'ing the Even! of Dcfauii and tuspcixding
all paymems to be made under (his Agrremem and ordering thai the portion of the
Grant Amount xvhich x\uuld othcrwiK accrue to the Grantee during the period
from the date of such rxotke until sxKh lime as the State determines that the
Craruee Txas cured the Exxni of Default shall nextr be paid to the Grantee; orxd
Set offBpmsi any other obliption the State may oxvt to (he Grantee any damages <
the State suTers ̂ 'reason of any Event of Default; and
Trrai the egrrcmeni as breached and pursue am- of its remedies at lawor in equity,
or borh.- ,
•JERMINATION.

In the event of any early termination of (his Aireemcnl for any reason other than
the coraptrtion of the Projeei. Ihe Grantee shall deliver to ihc Crent Oft'ieer, not
later than (iflccrx (15) day's after the date of ttrminaiion. a report (httcinaftct
relmed to as the Tcrminallon Repen") describing in detail all Prqject Work
perfomxed. and iTk Grant Amourv camcd, to and including the date of tennrxution.
In the event of Temrrnation under paragraphs 10 or .12.4 of these general
provisrorxs. the approval of such a Terminaiion Kcpon by the State shall crxtillc
the Ciimee to receive that ponion of the Grant amount corned to and Including
the date of lerminaiioa

In the exxnt of Termination under potagnphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
prox-xsions, the approval of lurh a Terminaiiorx Repon by the State shall in no
event relieve ihe Grantee from ony end all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the Sine as o resuh of the Granire's breach of its obligatietxs
hercxuxder.

.Notxvxihstanding anything in ihU Agreement to the contrary, either the State or.
except xx4xerc rxotice dcfauii has been gix-cn lo the Craixtrc hereunder, the Cnntcc,
may iciminaie this Agreement withoxrl cause upon thiny (30) days xxrilttn notice.
CON'ELICT OF INTEREST. No onicc/. member of employee of the Grantee,
and no lepresenisiix-c. ofTKcr or employee of the Srate of New Hampshire or of
the govenxtng body of the localiiy'or localiliu in xxhich the rrcjcci is to be
performed, xxhe exercises any funeikxxs or rcsponii'biliiics in the rcviexx' or
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•pprovil of iIk uMknakiAt or carrying out of tuch Project, thai! pankipstc in I7J.
.uiy ecciiion rebitng to tha Agreement whieh •fTccU his or her pcnonal imaot
or the interest of an>- corporation, partnership, or tMocioiton in nhich he oi she
is directly or indirectly •ntcrestcd. nor shali he or the have any personal or
pecunoiy inlcrcsi. direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.

H. CRANTKF.'S RFJ^TION TO Till- STATC. in the perfofniance of this
Agreement the Grantee, la eAtp!0}Tes. and any subconiracior or subgrimcc of 11.
the Grantee arc initll respects in^pendenl eeniractors, and ere neither ageou
twr employees of the State. Neither the Gramce nor any of its lOfTiecrs,
employccj, agents, members, subconirtctori or tubgraniecs, shall have atrthority
to bind the Stale nor are they entitled to any of the bciteriis. Mcirkmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by iKe State to its employees,

\K ASSir.NMKNT AND .SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not asiign. br 11
othervssc transfer any interest in this Agreement rvithoul the prior urhten
consent of the Suie; None of the. Project Work shall be subcontraaed or
Subgrani^ by the Grantee other than u set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of the Slate. i Id.

14. tN'DKAlM Ft CATION. The Grantee shall defend, indemnify a^ hold
harmless the State, its oHIcers artd employecs.Trom artd against arty' ai^ all
losses tufTered by the Slate, its ofTiecrs and employrci, and any end all eltiins.
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Stale, its oflkcri and etnplojxcs. by- 21.
or on behalf of any person, on account of. based on, resulting from, arising out
of(or which may be claimed to arise out of) the acu or omissions of ihe^Crvitce
or fubcontracter. or rubgrmmce or other ageni of the Griniee. Noiwiihflending
the foregoing, nothing hetcin contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver
of the sovereign immunity of the Sute. which immunity is hereby reserved to
the State. This covenant shall survitx Ihcicrmirolion of this agreement! 21.

17. INSURAhTF-

17.1 The Cranicc shall, at its owtt cipcnx. obtain and maintain in force, or shall U.
require any rubeonlracior. cubgrMce or assignee performing Project >vort to
obuin and naintain tn foree. both for the benefit of the Sute. tlw foDotring-
insurinec: I

17.1.1 .Statutory wnitcrt' eorhpcn.«Biion and emplnixcs liability iatucance for all 24.
employxes engaged in the pcrformanec of the Project, nnd '

17.1.2 General liabtllty insurance apinsi all claims efbodily injuries, death or (kopeny
'  damage, in amoimts not less than SI.OOO,000 pet oecuiicncc and S2.0b0j)00

aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and SS(X).000 for propcrt)'
damage in an)' one incident; and |

The policies described in subperagraph 17.1 of(his paragraph shall be the sundaM
form employed in the State of Nriv Hampshire, iss^ by urtderwritrn acceptable
to the State, end auihorited to do business in the State of New Hampshire. Giomee
shall furnish to the Slate, ccitiricates of insurance for til rcnewalts) of insurance
rctiutied under this Agreement no later than ten (10) daji prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.
NVAIVKR OK BRflACH. No fhilure by the Slate to enforce any provisions
hereof aOer any Event ofOefauii shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard
ID that Event, o( any subsequent Event. No express «v«ivcr ofany Event of Ocfauh
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiva
shall be deemed a wawxr of the righi of the State to cnforec each and all of the
provisions hereof tgton any further or other default on the pan of (he CrBnlec.
NOTICK. Any notice by a pany hereto to the other parly shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the lime of mailing b>' certifted mail, postage
prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties, at the addiesKS
fim above gl\-en.
AiMF.N'D.MRiVT. Thit Agreement may be amended, waived or diseharged only
by an instrumeni in writing ligried by the parties hereto and only after a^^oral of
lueh amendment, traivcr or diKharge by the Governor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, f rerguiicd or by the signing State Age/Ky.
CONSTHUCTIQ.N QKaC.RFRME.VT A.ND TCRMS. This Agreement shall
be construed in accordance vrith the lavv of (he State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the bencftt ofilW paniei and their respective successors
and assignees. The captioru and.cdnicnts of (he'''subjcci*' blank are used only as
a mtrier of convenience, and ve rwi to be considered a pon.of this Agreement or
to be used in determining ihe intend of the panics hereto.
TJHRfl PARTIES. TTk panics hereto do not intend to bencrit any third panics
and this Agreement shall not be constnied to confer any such benefit.
KiVTIRK AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be oceeuted in a number"
of coumcrparu, each of utiieh shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and urtdcrstanding between the ponies, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understarxlingi relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISION5L The additional or modifying provisions set forth in
E.xhibii A hereto are ineorpenied as pan of this agreement.

Pftfic3of3
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New Hampshire Department of Heal
Opioid Abatement Programs

EXHIBIT A

h and Human Services

•Revisions to Standard Grant Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form G-1, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 4. Effective Date; Completion of Project, Is amended by adding
subparagraph 4.3 as follows:

4.3 The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years
from the Completion jOate, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 8, Personnel, subsaragraph 8.1, Is amended as follows:

8.1 The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary .to
perform the Project. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Project, properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Project unde^ all applicable laws, and have undergone all
applicable background and registry checks.

i

1.3. Paragraph 11. Event of Default: Remedies, subparagraph 11.2.2, is amended
as.follpws: |

11.2.2 Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending payments,' in whole or in part, to be made under this
Agreement, until the State determines the Event of Default is cured.

1.4. Paragraph 12, Termination, subparagraph 12.4 is amended as follows:

12.4 Notwithstanding a'nythirig in this Agreement to the contrary, the State may
terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice
to the Grantee.

1.5. Paragraph 15, Assignment
subparagraph.15.1 as follows:

and Subcontracts, is amended by adding

15.1. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Grantee and the Grantee is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those! conditions. The Grantee shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work.to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written agreements
shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The Grantee shall
manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take
corrective action as necessary. The Grantee shall annually provide the
Stale with a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement
and notify the State of ariy inadequate subcontractor performance.

i  . p
North Counlfy HcflWi Coftjorlium • G-A t.l Gianlee InHlab • ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Opioid Abatement Programs !

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Grantee must provide the qualifying opioid abatement project as approved
by the Opioid Abatement Trust Furid Advisory Commission (the Commission)
in accordance with New Harrlpshire Revised Statutes Annotated 126-A:83-86.
and as described in this Agreement.

1.2. The Grantee must ensure services are available in the North Country of New
Hampshire (North Country). |

1.3. For the purposes of this Exhibit B. all references to days sha.H mean business
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.4. For the-purposes of this Agreement, all references to business hours shall
mean Monday through Friday from 8 AM to 5 PM.

1.5. The Grantee must provide training, coordination, and support for public school
programs and services to help students with Opioid Use Disorder (QUO) and
any co-occurring Substance tjjse Disorder/ Mental Health (SUD/MH) issues, or
who have been affected by CiUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH issues within
their family by developing and, implementing a Student Wellness and Support
Program (SWSP). The Grantee must ensure the SWSP; .

1.5.1. Provides opportunities for all students to be successful learners in the
natural school setting;

1.5.2. Improves access to, Social Emotional Learning (SEL) supports and
positive youth development opportunities;

1.5.3. Assists the school system to become a trauma-sensitive school
district Including:

1.5.3.1. Behavioral!Health Intervention Teams (BHIT) to identify and
*- provide for student SEL and Mental Health (MH) needs; and

1.5.3.2. Systems that work at the community level to identify .children
and youth in need of increased levels of behavioral supports
in order to be successful in natural school settings;

1.5.4. Aligns with the evidence-based Positive Behavioral Interventions and
Supports (PBIS) Framework's three (3) tiered system that supports
students' behavioral

and

academic, social,- emotional, and mental health;

1.5.5. Delivers SEL/MH interventions to students based on the following tiers:

1.5.5.1. Tier 1: All students;.
I

1.5.5.2. Tier 2: Students who need additional supports to "be
successful'in the natural school setting; and

North Country HerflhComortium iO-B-l.O Gronlee InWels..
•  1 4/7/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Opioid Abatement Programs

EXHIBIT B ' ̂
I  •

1.5.5.3. Tier 3: Individualized interventions to students needing more
SEL/MH supports to succeed in the natural school setting.

i

1.5.6. The Grantee must ensure each participating school receives the
opportunity for two (2) staff to become certified SEL educators. The
Grantee must ensurje each Certified SEt Educator:
1.5.6.1.. Has effective tools to authentically connect with students of

all backgrounds;

1.5.6.2. Learns how to Implement SEL and mindfulness;

1.5.6.3. Understands the 'why' behind these critical skills;

1.5.6 4. Engages in self-care and community building with peers
from across the country; and

1.5.6.5. Receive professional development credits and clock hours
through trainings,

♦

1.5.7. The Grantee must|ensure the personnel, provided for the SWSP
includes: i f -•

(

1.5.7.1. One (1) SEL Coordinator, who:

1.5.7.1.1. 'Has completed the two (2)-year Mindful
I Practices Program, developed by the
'[Collaborative for Academic, Social, and
Emotional Learning (CASEL);

1.5.7.1.2. jSupporls North Country schools In becoming
{trauma-sensitive institutions;

1.5.7.1.3. Provides technical assistance and guidance to
jlmpiement a Behavioral Health Intervention
Team (BHIT) approach that addresses the social

■" jand emotional needs of students;

1.5.7.1.4. 'Increases awareness and understanding in
schools of the impact of Adverse Childhood
Experiences (ACEs) within the community;

1.5.7.1.5. Collaborates with educators to coordinate
delivery of SEL supports;

1.5.7.1.6. Trains school staff on programs that improve
jstudent social and emotional development; and

1.5.7.1.7. ildentifies and advances effective, innovative
linterventions in the region.

1.6. The Grantee must support evidence-based prevention programs and seryicies.
'  including efforts to promote healthy, drug-free lifestyles, reduce isolalioifr^

North CourtUy Heolih ConMrtlum G-6 -1.0 Granlee Initials
4/7/2023
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EXHIBIT B

skills and confidence, and facilitate community-based prevention .efforts by
implementing a Juvenile Restorative Justice Program and Youth Leadership
Through Adventure. . j
1.6.1. Juvenile Restorative Justice Program

1.6.1.1. The Grantee must develop and implement Youth Diversion
Programs (YDP). using a Restorative Justice .Model; in the
North Country as follows:

1.6.1.1.1. Year 1: The Grantee must develop and implement
YDP in the towns of Berlin and Gorham, NH. .

1.6.1.1.2. Year 2: The Grantee must expand the YDP by
developing and implementing up to three (3)
additional YDPs in other areas of the North

•Country.

1.6.1.-2. The Grantee must work with local police departments and
communities to:

1.6.1.2.1. Create formal structures, policies, and procedures
for each YDP;

1.6.1.2.2. Ensure the YDPs focus on the rehabilitation of
offenders through reconciliation with victims arid
ttjie community at large; arid

1.6.1.2.3. Achieve accreditation through the NH Juvenile
Court Diversion Network. ^.

1.6.2. Youth Leadership Through Adventure (YLTA)
i

1.6.2.1. The Grantee must ensure the YLTA is implemented:

1.6.2.1.1. As a.school-year long strategy with components
including, but not limited to:

I

1!.6.2.1.1'.1. Summer Leadership Academies. "
I  , _

116.2.1.1.2. Adult Advisor trainings.

l[6.2.1.1.3. Middle and High School annual
I  conferences.

116.2.1.1.4. The Regional YLTA Team.

lj.6.2.1.1.5. Kids in Prevention (KIP) retreats.
1.6.2.1.2. Using experiential educational techniques based

on the 15 construcis of Positive Youth

Development.

Ndrtfi Country Heallh Consortium
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EXHIBIT B

1.6.2.2. The Grantee must reduce substance misuse and improve
school climate in every North Country middle and high school
through the evidence-based program, including:

1.6.2.2.1. Gorham High School;

1.6.2.2.2. Littleton High School;

1.6.2.2.3. Woodsville High School;

'  1.6.2.2.4. Gfoveton High School; .

1.6.2.2.5. Berlin High School;

1.6.2.2.6. Lisbon High School;

. 1.6.2.2.7. White Mountain Regional High School;

1.6.2.2.0. Haverhill Cooperative Middle School;

1.6.2.2.9. Monroe Consolidated Middle School;

1.6.2.2.10. Lancaster Middle School:
1:6.2.2.11. Whilefield Middle School;

1.6.2.2.12. Berlin Middle School; and
i

1.6.2.^13. Gorham Middle School.
I  • _ •

1.6.2.3. The Grantee must work with Adolescent Drug and Alcohol
Tools. Inc. (Adapt) to provide support from a trained trainer
to all schools to enhance the delivery of this evidence-based
program.

1 ;6.3. The Grantee must strengthen community efforts to address substance
use and misuse issues of concern in the communities identified
above, utilizing the following three (3) strategies:

■  1.6.3.1. Implementifig the Centers of Disease Control (CDC's). Opioid
■Overdose Prevention Program, evidence-based strategies for
Preventing Opioid Overdose;

1.6.3.2. Leverage existing leadership team to expand a community-
based, multi-sector coalition to address the substance misuse

.  issues of concern; and

1.6.3.3. Coordinate; with the NH Recovery Friendly Workplace
initiative to recruit, businesses and organizations in the

^  designated communities and connect them to (he Recovery
Friendly Workplace Initiative, making them eligible to receive
targeted recovery'training and support.

1.6.4. In coordination with the local Doorway, the Grantee must ens.ure_the_
provision of transportation to treatment programs for HIDTA

North Country He«ih Comoftwm G-6-t.O Of«f»lo« Ir*!{i8ls
4/7/2023
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EXHIBIT 8

communities in the North Country in order to improve access to
treatment and recovery supports for individuals with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH issues.

1.6.5. The Grantee must ensure the personnel provided to support the
Restorative Justice Programs and the HIDTA Support Program
includes: ; • . •

.1.6.5.1. One (1) Resiliency Coordinator, who:

1.6.5.1.1. Works with community stakehoiders on the
identification and response to risk factors
including:

1.6.5.1.1.1. ACEs;and
I

1.6.5.1.1.2. Trauma.
j

1.6.5.1.2. Works with consortium members and partners to
seek creative solutions that address the Social

Determinants of Health.
(

1:6.5.1.3. Provides guidance and support for implementing
^  strategies within:

1.6.5.1.3.1. Youth. Restorative Justice Program
1  development; and
I

1.6.5.1.3.2. Recovery Friendly Workplace
I  advocacy and recruitment.
I

1.6.5.1.4. Provides coalition development assistance in
fjJorth Country communities where coalitions do
not currently exist.

1.7. The Grantee must participate, in meetings with the Department on a monthly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

I

1.8. The Grantee must participate in operational site revievys on a schedule
provided by the Department. jAII deliverables, programs, and activities must be
subject to review during this time. The Grantee must:

1.8.1. Ensure the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of
Agreement compliance requirements; and

1.8.2. Ensure the Departrnent is provided with access that includes but is
not limited to:

1

1.8.2.1. Data. j

1.8.2.2. Financial'records.

1.8.2.3. Scheduled access to Grantee work sites,'locations, work
CB

spaces and associated facilities.
.

North Country Hestlh Consortium ' G-B-i.O Grantee lnft)»ls
I  4/7/2023

RGA.2023-DBH-Ot-OPIOI-l4 Pefle 5 of 8 Date J_J__



OocuSlQA envelope ID; 6ADF8B3ft^97^76(>«652-A1 &F73CFA7FE i

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Opioid Abatement Programs

EXHIBIT 8

1.8.2.4. Scheduled access to Grantee principals and staff.

.1.9. Reporting j

1.9.1. The Grantee must submit an annual report by August 1®'of each year,
in a format as required by the Commission, to the Department for
distribution to the Commission. The annual reports must include at a
minimum:

1.9.1.1. The name, mailing address, and physical address of the
Grantee;

1.9.1.2. The time period covered by the report;

1.9.1.3. The date the report was prepared;

1.9.1.4. A detailed account of funding spent on approved uses;

1.9.1.5. The number of individuals'served;

1.9.1.6. Aggregated and deMdentifted demographic information for
individuals served. Information in the annual report must
ensure tHat rio individual can be directly or indirectly
identified by the data submitted or the content of the annual
report; and

1.9.1.7. An analysis of the impacl{s), successes and challenges of
the pfojecl{s), program(s). and/or service(s) funded.

1.9.2. The Grantee may tie required to provide other key data and metrics
to the Department in a format specified by the Department.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Grantee must manage any confidentiaKdata related to this Agreement in

3.

accordance with

Requirements.
Additional Terms

the terms

3.1.

of Exhibit D. DHHS Information Security

3.2.

Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Grantee agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so asjio achieve
compliance therewith.

Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Grantee must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided

Nortfi CounUy HesSlh Consortium
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EXHIBIT B

meaningful access ̂to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting froni the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services. ^

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Depailment before printing, production,
distribution or use. |

3.3.3. The Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not liniited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.
t

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.
I

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.-

3.3.3.4.. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Grantee must riot reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without (jrior written approval from the Departmerit,

4. Records

4.1. The Grantee must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Grantee in the performance of the Contract, and all income received or
collected by the Grante;e.

4.1.2. All records must be, maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, arid which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original

'  evidence of costs suchiss purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department. [

4.2. During the term of this Agreerrient and the period for retention hereunJ^
North CourMry Health Consortium 0-6 • 1.0 Grantee (niilals

4/7/2023
RGA-202J-OaK<)1-OPIOH< Page 7 ol 8 Date



DocuSign Envelop* (0:6A0FB83d-88974760-e8»-Aisr73CFA7FE

I

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Opioid Abatement Programs

EXHIBIT B

Department, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Senrices, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the. Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

4.3. If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Grantee as costs hereunder, the Department
retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as^
are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Grantee.

"iJ:

Nonh Counlry Health Consonk/m

ROA-202M)BH-01-OPIOI-t4

G-B-1.0

Page 8 o( 8

Grantee Ir^llals

Date
4/7/2023



OocuSign Envelop* ID: 6ADF883&^97^76D^B52-Al5F73CFA7Fe

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Opioid Abatement Programs

•EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

This Agreement is funded by:j

1.1. 100% Other funds {Opjoid Abatement Trust Fund).

For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Grantee as a Subreclpient, In accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as sfjecified in Exhibit C-1. Budget.

The Grantee shall submit ari invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Grantee shall ensure each
invoice: ' i

4.1. Includes the Grantee's Vendor Number issued upon registering with New

1.

2.

3.

4.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

Hampshire Department of Administrative Services..
i

Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department. -I

identines and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month. j ,
Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting doumenation.
and is emailed to invoicesforcontracls@dhhs.nh.qov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street |
Concord. NH 03301 ^

The Department shall make payment to the Grantee within thirty (30) days of
receipt of each invoice and supporting documention for authorized expenses,
subsequent to approval of thejsubmitted invoice.
The final Invoice and supporting documention for authorized expenses shall be
due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the grant completion
date specified in Form G-1. General Provisions; Block 1.7 Completion Dale.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 20 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes

5.

6.

limited to adjusting amoUn

Noth Country HeaOh Consortium

RGA-202K)BH-Ol-OPlOi.-.l4

s within the price limitation and
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encumbrances between State|Fi5cal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be madej by written agreement of. both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council. If needed and
justified. I

8. Audits

8.1. The Grantee must ernail an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.Qov if.
any of the'following conditions exist;

8.1.1. Condition A - The Grantee expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the| most recently completed fiscal year.

i

8.1.2., Condition B - The Grantee, is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b. pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1.000.000 or more.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Grantee is a public company and required by
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Grantee shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to
dhhs.act@dhh$.nh.9oy within 120 days after the close of the Grantee's
fiscal year, conducleditn accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR
Part 200, Subpart F of:the Uniform Administrative Requiremenlsi Cost
Principles, and Audit fRequifements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Grantee shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Grantee shall
submit quarterly progress reports on the status of implemntation
of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition 8 or Condition C exists, the Grantee shall submit an annual
financial audit performed by an Independent CPA within 120 days after
the close of the Grantee's fiscal year.

8.4. Any Grantee that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Departmeril during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits perforrrted by an independent CPA if the Department's

^  risk assessment deterrtiination Indicates the Grantee is high-risk.

8.5. In addition to. and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, It Is understood and agreed.by the Grantee that the Grantee
shall be held liable for any state.or federal audit exceptions and shall
return to the Departrnent all payments made under the Contract to
which exception has been taken, or which have been disallowed
because of such an exception.

North Cwni/y Health COMortlum g^i.i Gtaniee tniiials,
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N*w Hampshire Oepartment o< Haalth and Hvman Service*

Compt«i9 9mbvitottlomfofmchSui»fbC4i YMttSu^gHPeriod.

OrsntM Name: C^lry Hctfth Consortium
Budget Rtguesl lor; Op'oWAdaiemant AreprBmj i*- •

BodgeiPoriod 12 Months homCtCApptwsl |RefTtfir*<JerclSFY23andPonk)no<SFV24l
Irtdirect Cost Rote (11 eppllcible) 30.4% Salaries and Waoes orly

•e'

Line Item

• •

Program Cost Funded by OHHS

1

■ Si 26.083

1. SalarvaWooM

2. Frinoe Benefits 'v
S29.088

r

3. Consuliants 1  - .SO
1

4. Equipmeni
Indlroct cost rate connot be applied to
equfpmeni costs per 2 CFR 200. t and
AooerxfixlVto2CFR 200.

"f

-n"v"

SO

i<r.- 1

S.(a} Suppfles • Educational

1  . S1-000
5.(0) Suocfies • Lab so
5.(c) SuOdCw • Pharmacv 1  so
5.(dJ SuppTtes • Me6cai i  so
5.(e) SuppdesOfrce !

I  S2.U)0
1

6. -Travel

1  • ■ . S11.644
1

i

•  . 1

7. Solhvaie
■-

S2.000

1

t. (a) Other* Madcating/
Comrmmicailons !  W
a. (0) Olher - Bdupatlon end Training ■ ' SO

1. (cl Other • Other (soedfy bdowl t

Other (ofaaso soodM SO
OfherToiease soeo'M SO
Other /ohaso soeo'M so
Olher fplesse toeoM $0

9. Subreidsient Conirscis

1

I  S44.000
'  /
.

Total Otreci Coaia I  S2tO.«15
.  1

1
Total Indirect Costs 1  t47.172 •

1
-  TOTAL 1  >253 787

i
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions |
I

The following terms may be reflect'ed and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss jof control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than

.  authorized purpose have access or potential access to pcrsonatly identmable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of F|ederal Regulations.

2. ■ "Computer Security Incident"] shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
■  Incident' In section two (2) of|NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Departmentof Commerce. ■ j

3. "Confidential Information" or "jConfidenlial Data" means all confidenlial information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. |Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or, accessed in the course of performing coritracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
stale Of federal law or regulation, This Information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Heallh Information :(PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, conlractof's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivalive data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

.  I '

5. "HIPAA" means the Heallh Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
■regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident' means an act that potentially-violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (eHhef failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of. hardcopy! documents, and misrouling of physical or electronic

VS L8SI update i6r09/ie ' Coniieclw inftiais.
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mail, all of which may have
access, use. disclosure, modi

the potential to put (he data at risk of unauthorized
Ication or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network' rheans any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Slate, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately'secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

" 1
I

8. "Personal Information" (or 'PI') means information which can be used to distinguistt
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19. biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined withj other personal or identifying inforniation which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc. .. 1 '

■  - . I
9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the'Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health.

Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 ar^d 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the UnitW
States Department of Health and Human Services.

1  ■
10. 'Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the

definition of "Protected Health|tnformation" In the HiPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F R §
160.103. . I

11. "Security Rule" shall mean trie Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health information jat 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subparl 0. and amendments
thereto. : .

'

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that Is
not -secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indedpherable to unauthorized Individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business .Use and Disclosure of Confidenlial lnformation.
I

•  I

1. The Contractor must not use. jdisclose. maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute .a violation

,  of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

;  .p
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DHHS IntormaUon

SecurityRBqul^ements * 4/7/2023
Page 2 oi 9 • Date



DocuSign Envelop« ID: 6ADFB83»-ed97-476C>-eBS2<A1&R3CFA7PE

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit D

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first inotifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure."

3. if DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and rriust not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

.  4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursujant to the terms of this Contract.

■  5. The Contractor agrees DHHS'Data obtained under this Contract may not be.used for
any other, purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract. j

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA
I

1. Application Encryption. If End User, is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidenllal Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices, End User may not use computer disks
or pprtable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

I

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confideritial Data If
.. email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data tranjsmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as propbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit

. Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User rhay only transmit Confidential Data via ce,r1iried ground
mall within the continental U.S. and v^en sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said.devices rnusl be encrypted and password-protected.

*

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. Lojlupdate l0rt)9/»8 j ExKNiO ContractorinJUaij
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wlreiess networt^. End User niust erhploy a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely trahsrhitting via an open wireiess network.

9. Remote User Communication. If'End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the ErnJ User's motiile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Pfotoc.ol.(SFjrP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transniit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sut>-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours). ■ J

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF, IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS
t

)

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must;

A. Retention •
I  -N

1. The Contractor agrees it ^1) not-store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with (he services rendered under this Contract outside of the United.
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the irhplemenlalion of
cloud computing, cioud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery jocations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to delect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
arid/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.,

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain at) electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data .
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Corifidential Data stored In a Cioud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes, and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and harcJened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, antl-sparn, antirspyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

vs. Lwlupdnte 10/09/16 ExWl D . Contractor Initials
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to 'and ensures its complete cooperation with the Stale's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

V

B. Disposition

I

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing- of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. Wheri no longer \n use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall'be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with Industry-aqcepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 600-88. Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and. Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerc€.| The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
lime of the data destructio.r), and will provide written certification.to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and !Co.ntraclor prior to destruction. .

t

2., Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy at! electronic Confidentiaf Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY |
I

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard .the OHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
. derivative data or files, as follows^

!

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services. ;

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

vs. Last update 10/09/18 | Exhibit D Contractor(niilsls
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable. ;

4. The .Contractor will ensure Iprop.er security monitoring, capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

i

5. The Contractor will provide! regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

•  1

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal prbcess or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring cornpiiance to security requirements that at a minimum
match (hose for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

I

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New-Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agr^ments as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement. j

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
r\^anagement Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabitities-that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey wnll be.completed,
annually, or an alternate time.frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the' survey be completed when the
scope of (he engagement between the Department and the Contractor ctianges.

I

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stale of New Hampshire
. or Department data offshore |or outside the boundaries of the United States unless

prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
teadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of (he breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Slate shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

'Oi,
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I  li'.
the breach, including but not limlled to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
.costs associated with website and telephone call center senrices necessary due to
the breach. t

12. Contractor must, comply with ail applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Conndential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope ofjrequirements applicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. parts 160 and 164) that govern protections.for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under Slate law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards, to protect the conndentiality of the Conndential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or,access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is notiless than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at ht1ps://www.nh.gov/do}t/vendor/index.hlm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of ariy security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspect^ breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
pedorm their official duties in connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure tbat all End Users:

a. comply wilh such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is- furnished by DHHS
under this Contract frorn loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic-deyices/media containing. PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Informatlor).

I

1
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.
I

f. Confidentia) Information received urvJer this Contract and, Individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS. Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persor^s
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys;
biometric (dentiHers. etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Conftdential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

i  • ■ ' •
h. In all . other instances Confidential Data must be. maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not i:>e
shared with'anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight' and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct ohsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordarice with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must rwlify the State's* Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches
Section VI.

Immediately, at the email addresses provided in

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance vwih 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents: i

2. Determine (f personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirrhed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents: and

I
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VI.

5. Determine whether Breach holiricalion is required, and. If so. identify appropriate
Breach' notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures. |

♦

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

PERSONS TO CONTACT "

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer: |
pHHSInformationSecuritypffice@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. Last update lO/OSns I  EjcNPII 0
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5

This Amendment to the Workforce Readiness 'and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
Opiold and/or Stimulant Use Disorder contract Is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services {"State" or "Department") and Granite Pathways ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18, 2019 (Item #19), as amended on February 17, 2021 (Item #20), as amended on October
13, 2021 (Item #35), as amended on Novemberj2, 2022 (Item #18), and as amended on September 20,
2023 (Item #42), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified In the Contract as amended and In consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregping and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7,j Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2025 j

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8', Price Limitation, to read:

$1,009,373 i
3. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Services; Section 2.23.3 to read:

2.23.3. Prior or current criminal justice involvement.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Services; by adding Section 2.29, to read:

2.29. The Contractor shall meet with the Department within 60 business days of the contract
effective date to review contract

services.

deliverables, grant guideline, and implementation of

5. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Services; by adding Section 2.30, to read:

2.30. The Contractor shall utilize the Department's closed loop referral solution, and If
applicable, the admission, discharge, and transfer solution (referred to collectively as the
NH Care Connections Network) for] referrals between health and/or human service
providers within New Hampshire as the option for referral management and care
connections. Utilization Includes Inputting information and data as necessary Into the
Department's NH Care Connections Network to facilitate referrals to participating
providers, signing any required Ne^ork Participation Agreement, and obtaining a
participant specific consent for services. Including, as required by 42 CFR Part 2!3^
identifying all uses and disclosures'of the individual's Part 2 record or Information by the
NHCCN. i
2.30.1. The Department's contractstfor the NH Care Connections Network incorporate all

the costs of developing and|maintalning the standards based Interface from which
the Contractor may choose to configure their systems to communicate securely
with the Department's NH Care Connections Network solutions. The Contractor
may opt to Interface with the Department's closed loop referral solution, and If
applicable, the admission, discharge, and transfer solution utilizing a Smart on
FHIR or HL-7 standard Interface process to connect Individuals to health and
social service providers. The costs for the Contractor's system or team ip

fil
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develop or utilize the standard Smart of FHIR or HL-7 based Interface are the
sole responsibility of the Contractor.

6. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scopejof Services; Section 4, to read:
4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall provide the; Department with client-level, non-identifiable data that
supports contract deliverables. Xhe Contractor shall ensure client-level, non-identifiable

.  data excludes information allowing the individual to be identified or constructively identified.
Constructively identified, means that by using the information provided and what is
reasonably and predictably available to a predictable recipient of the information the

.  individual could be identified. The Contractor shall provide non-identified data from which
there is no reasonable basis to believe that the data used alone or in combination with

other reasonably available inforrriation, could be used to identify an individual who is a
subject of the information. '

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure compliance with 42 CFR Part 2 and confidentiality consent,
notices, and requirements, as app|licable to any data collected or reported.

4.3. The Contractor shall collect data on services provided through this Agreement to ensure
progress towards program goals and deliverables. The Contractor shall ensure data
includes, but is not limited to: j
4.3.1. Number and type of recruitment activities for individuals with an OUD/StimUD.

4.3.2. Number of Individuals in the' program with demographics such as age, gender, race
and ethnicity. |

4.3.3. Vocational services provided per individual.

4.3.4. Start date of employment per individual.

4.3.5. Type of position per individual.

4.3.6. Name of employers per individual.
(

4.3.7. Length of employment per individual.
i

4.3.8. Number of employers recruited per month.

4.3.9. Types of supports provided^ to employers to recruit, hire, and retain individuals in
recovery per month. | '

4.3.10. Any/all exceptions of individuals not attending the training programs provided.

4.4. The Contractor shall report all, if any, exceptions for individuals who do not attend available
training programs. j

4.5. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department, on the 15th working day of
the following month, in a format and via a secure method approved by the Department,
inclusive of the Department-approved Closed Loop Referral platform, as applicable. The
Contractor shall ensure reports include client-level, de-identified data identified above.

4.6. The Contractor shall report on required data points specific to the SOR grant, as identified
by SAMHSA over the grant period. I

4.7. The Contractor may be required to prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to
periodic surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by the
Department or SAMHSA including Pll.

4.8. The Contractor may be required to [provide other key data and metrics to the Department
-OS
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in a format specified by the Department.
t

7. Modify Exhibit A, Amendment #4, Scope of Services; Section 5, to read:

5. Government Performance Results Actj
5.1. The Contractor shall administer or coordinate the administration of Government

Performance Results Act (GPRA)iOf 1993 and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010 initial
interview and associated follow-iips at six (6) months and discharge for all individuals
receiving program services. |

5.2. The Contractor shall provide individuals served with clear guidance about the uses and
disclosures of the information provided to complete the GPRA, and the use and disclosure
of the Part 2 information or other PHI required in order to complete the GPRA. The
Contractor shall also provide staff training regarding the confidentiality of the identifiable
Information included in the GPRA.'

I

5.3. the Contractor shall provide or doordinate ongoing follow-up and. support of individuals
engaged in services until a discharge GPRA interview is completed. The Contractor shall
ensure:

5.3.1. Staff confirms a confidential means of communicating with each individual engaged
in services to provide or coordinate ongoing follow up and support;

5.3.2. Contact with each individual is attempted during a time when the individual
would normally be available. Contact shall be made in person, by telephone,
or by an alternative method approved by the Department, according to the
following guidelines:

5.3.2.1. If the first contact attempt is not successful, a second contact
attempt shall be made no sooner than two (2) business days and
no later than three (3) business days after the first attempt; and

5.3.2.2. If the second contact attempt is hot successful, a third contact
attempt shall be made no sooner than two (2) business days and
no later than three (3) business days after the second attempt;

I
5.3.3. Each successful contact shall include, but not be limited to:

5.3.3.1. Inquiring 'on the status of each individual's recovery and
experience with their external service provider;

5.3.3.2. Identifying

5.3.3.3. Assisting t

individual heeds;.

le individual with addressing identified needs; and

5.3.3.4. ■ Providing early intervention to individuals who have resumed use;

5.3.4. When the follow-up identified above results in a determination that the
individual is at risk of self-harm, the Contractor shall proceed in alignment
with their crisis response policy and procedure; and

5.3.5. All efforts of contact are clearly documented in the individual's electronic
health record, or in a format approved by the Department, and are available
to the Department upon request.

5.4. The Contractor shall ensure the GPRA interviews are attempted at the following
intervals: '

5.4.1. At the time of intake jor no later than seven (7) calendar days after intake;
5.4.2. Five (5) to eight (8) months post intake. The window for this interview opens

Granite Pathways A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
1  11/19/2024 ^
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five (5) months after the Intake interview; and
i

5.4.3. Upon discharge from the initially referred service.

5.5. The Contractor shall ensure completed GPRA data Is entered into the Department-
approved system, at a minimum of the following intervals:

5.5.1. At the time of intake or no later than seven (7) calendar days after the GPRA'
interview is conducted;

5.5.2. Five (5) to eight (8)jmonths post intake; and
5.5.3. Upon discharge froin the initially referred service.

5.6. The Contractor shall document any loss of contact with participants in the
Department-approved system using the appropriate process and protocols as
defined by SAMHSA and through technical assistance provided under the SOR
grant.

5.7. The Contractor shall ensure contingency management strategies are utilized to
increase participant engagement in follow-up GPRA interviews. Contingency
management strategies may Include, but are not limited to, gift cards provided to
individuals for follow-up participation at each follow-up interview. The Contractor
shall ensure gift cards:

5.7.1. Do not exceed $30 in value, in accordance with federal guidelines, set forth
by SAMHSA; and '

5.7.2. Are used solely to incentivize GPRA interview completion and not used to
incentivize participation in treatment.

8. Modify Exhibit A. Amendment #4, Scope of Services; Section 6, to read:

6. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards

6.1. The Contractor shall ensure they, and any provider which referrals are made to:

6.1.1. Only provide and/or prescribe medications for Opioid Use Disorder (OUD), as
clinically appropriate, that are approved by the Food and Drug Administration;

6.1.2. Only provide medical withdrawal management services to Individuals supported by
SOR grant funds if the withdrawal management services are accompanied by the

■ use of injectable extended-release naltrexone, as clinically appropriate;

6.1.3. Ensure staff trained in Presumptive Eligibility for Medlcaid are available to assist
individuals with public or private health insurance enrollment; and

6.1.4. Comply with 42 CFR Part 2
services.

as applicable and related to any referrals and provider

6.2. The Contractor shall ensure individuals receiving services, rendered from SOR funds, have
a documented history or current diagnoses of Opioid Use Disorder or Stimulant Use
Disorders (OUD/StimUD) or are at ijisk for such.

6.3. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase, prescribe, or
provide cannabis or for providing treatment using cannabis. The Contractor shall ensure:

6.3.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of OUD/StimUD;

6.3.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual or "organization that provides or
permits cannabis use for the purposes of treating substance use or mental health
disorders; and

6.3.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and Memora

Granite Pathways A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
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Understanding that receive SOR funding.

6.4. The Contractor shall utilize SOR funding, as needed, to ensure Naloxone kits are available
to individuals receiving sen/ices through this Agreement.

6.4.1. If the Contractor intends io distribute test strips, the Contractor shall provide a test
strip utilization plan to the Department for approval prior to implementation. The
Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan includes, but is not limited to:

i

6.4.1.1. Internal policies for the distribution of test strips;

6.4.1.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

6.4.1.3. Other key data asjrequested by the Department.
6.4.2. The Contractor shall provide services to eligible individuals who:

,  6.4.2.1. Receive MOUD services from other providers, including the individual's
primary care provider;

6.4.2.2. Have co-occurring substance use and mental health disorders; or

6.4.2.3. Are on medications and are taking those medications as prescribed
regardless of the class of medication.

6.5. The Contractor shall ensure indivijduals who refuse to consent to information sharing with
the Doorways do not receive services utilizing SOR funding.

6.6. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who rescind consent to information sharing with
the Doorways do not receive any additional services utilizing SOR funding.

6.7. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded vendors, as
requested and directed by the Department, to improve GPRA collection.

6.8. The Contractor shall comply'with all appropriate Department, State of NH, SAMHSA, and
other Federal terms, conditions, and requirements.

9. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, to
read: I

1. This Agreement Is funded by 100% Federal funds from the State Opioid Response Grant, by
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA), Assisted Listing Number (ALN) 93.788, as awarded on:

09/30/2018, FAIN H79TI08168'5:1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

09/30/2020, FAIN H79TI083326
I

08/09/2021, FAIN H79TI083326

09/23/2022, FAIN H79TI085759
I

09/01/2023, FAIN H79TI085759

09/24/2024, H79TI087843.

and

10. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Method
read:

s and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 3, to

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item, as
specified in Exhibit B-1 Budget througfi Exhibit B-12, Amendment #5, SOR IV Budget.

11. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5.1.3.,

Granite Pathways
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to read: . • • |

5.1.3. Invoices shall not include unallowable expenses, as referenced below:

5.1.3.1. SpR IV Notice of Funding Opportunity, page 31: FY 2022 State Opioid
Response Grants {smhsa.gov); and •

5.1.3.2. SAMHSA's Standards for Financial Management and Standard Funding
Restrictions, page 36: FY 2024 Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA) Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) Application
Guide. I

12. Add Exhibit B-12, Amendment #5, SOR ly Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Granite Pathways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01 -AOS

v7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 6 of 8

■OS

Contractor Initials
11/19/207?

Date



Docusign Envelope ID; 7069F216-B25B-4B30-BFC0-5829F02C5C98

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall | be effective retroactive to September 30, 2024. upon
Governor and Council approval. ;

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,'the parties have set their hands as of the date writteri below,

I

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/20/2024

Date

11/19/2024

Date

•1 f DocuSlgnt

I
DocuSlgnv

;  ̂ CP»O05afW

d by:

F««
C0y<g--:

Narrie: KatJaT; Fox
Title:

Director

Granite Pathways

-DocuSigiMdby;

Name:

Title:' General Counsel

Granite Pathways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01 -AOS
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. I

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OeeuSign«d by;

11/20/2024

Date Name: Cuarino

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: J ' (date of meeting)

Date

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Name:

Title:

Granite Pathways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01 -AOS
V. 7.12.23
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Exhibit B-12, Amendment #5, SOR IV Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

j -

- Contractor Name: Granite Pathways

Budget Request for:

Workforce Readiness & Vocational Programs for Individuals with Opioid
and/or Stimulant Use Disorder

Budget Period SFY25 (9/30/2024 - 6/30/2025)

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable)0.1528

;

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS '

1. Salary & Wages $80,050

2.- Fringe Benefits $27,235

3. Consultants $1,125

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs

per 2 CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. t . $0

5.(a) Supplies - Educational !  $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab 1  $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy i  $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical 1  $0

5.(e) Supplies Office i  $150

6. Travel i  $0
7, Software 1  $0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/ Communications 1  $250

8. (b) Other - Education and Training 1  $200

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below) 1  $0
Other (please specify) 1  $0
Other (please specify) i  $0

Other (please specify) $0

Other (please specify) t  $0

9. Subrecipieht Contracts 1  $0

Total Direct Costs $109,010

i  • .

Total Indirect Costs. 1  $30,490
1

TOTAL }  $139,500

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A05

Contractor Initials:
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State of New Hampshire
i

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretar>' ofSlate of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify thai GRANITE PATHWAYS is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 08, 2009. 1 further certify that all fees

and documents required by the Secrctar>' of Slate's office havjg been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 613581

Certificate Number: 0006296051

%

8a.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I4th day of August A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secrctar\'of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Nick Brattan j. hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Granite Pathways
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on 11/9 , 2024 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date) '

VOTED: That

one person)
Kenneth Brezenoff

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

(may list more than

is duly authorized on behalf of Granite Pathwavs i
agreements with the State |

(Name of Corporation/LLC)

to enter into contracts or

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this

or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for

thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein. f—signtdby:

DatedlV9/2024. Met dyaiim.
aoiaaggga8r7<8c..

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Nick Brattan

Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20
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wii9iikrr. FEDCAREH1

ACORD, CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOmrYY)

10/01/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of siich endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USI Insurance Services LLC

333 Westchester Ave, Suite 102

White Plains. NY 10604

Faith Keegan

914 459-6200 610 537-4220

A0C>RES$: Faith.Keegan@usi.eom
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC«

914 4d9*b2UU
INSURER A Berkshire Hathaway Specialty Ins Co. 22276

INSURED >

Granite Pathways, Inc. | INSURER B Illinois Union Insurance Company 27960

INSURER C Technology insurance Company, Inc. 42376
000 ora Avenue, oin rioor

New York, NY 10017-6943
INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW| HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAyIhAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR .TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL

INSR
SUBR

WVP POLICY NUMBER
POyCY EFF

(mm/dd/t^)
POUCY EXP

(mm/dd/tyyyi LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABtUTY

)E 1 X|.OCCUR .
47SPK25564209 39/30/2024 09/30/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC $1,000,000

MED EXP (Any one person) $25,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000.

POLICY 1 t JECT 1 1 LOC
OTHER:

PROOUCTS • COMP/OP AGG $3,000,000

$

A

A

AUTOMOBILE UABILITY 47RWS14808210 1 [19/30/2024

39/30/2024

09/30/2025

09/30/2025

COMBINED SINGLE LIMrf
s1,000,000

X ANY AUTO All Other States

47SMA14808010

MA Only

BODILY INJURY (Per person) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

sc
Al
HEDULED

TOS
)N-OWNEO
rros ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

X X
NC
Al

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer acddwitl $

$

A

B

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS4AADE

47SUM14808310 1
XFLG47492075001|

1

39/30/2024

39/30/2024

09/30/2025

09/30/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE $10,000,000

AGGREGATE $10,000,000

DED X RETENTION $10,000 See Below sExces $5M/$5M

C WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LiABILnV y . „
WX PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVEi 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bakw

N/A

TWC4360732 | 12/08/2023 12/08/2024 V PER OTH-
A RTATin-F ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

A

A

Professional Liab

Sexual Abus/Moles

47SPK25564209

47SPK255S4209

39/30/2024

39/30/2024

09/30/2025

09/30/2025

$1MPerOcc/$3MAgg

$1M PerOcc/$3MAgg

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Rtmarlit Sc

** Excess Liability Information **

Carrier B - Illinois Union Insurance Company - Policy # XFLG47'

Eff Date: 09/30/2024 Exp Date: 09/30/2025

Excess Liability Each Occ Limit: $5,000,000

(See Attached Descriptions)

fiedute, may ba attachad If more apace la requlrad)

192075001

1  . . . •

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 1 CANCELLATION

State of New

Hampshire,Department of Health

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord, NH 03301

1 DM JiCjSt- .

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 2

#S46490780/M46460788

€>1988*2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
SAPZR
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DESCRIPTIONS (Continued from Page 1)

Excess Liability Aggregate Limit: $5,000,000

Evidence of Insurance

SAGITTA 25.3 (2016/03) 2 of 2

#S46490780/M46460788



8 msmber of THE PEOCAP GROUP

Granite Pathways Mission
Granite Pathways creofes opportunities for individuals and families to achieve

health and socioeconomic well-being, through a holistic approach.



Consolidated Financial Statements and

Supplerrjientary Information Together
with Report of Independent Certified
Public Accountants

The FEDCAP Group

September 30, 2023 and 2022



Contents

Report of Indefiendent Certified Public Accountants

Consolidated Financial Statements
t

I

Consolidated statements of financial position

i
Consolidated statements of activities

Consolidated statements of functional expenses

Consolidated statements of cash flowsj
Notes to consolidated financial statements

I

Supplementary (Information

Consolidating schedule of financial position
i

Consolidating schedule of activities

Page

3

6

7

8

10

11

34

35



@ Grant Thornton

ORANT TMORNTON LLP

757 ThnAve.,eth Floor

NowYortt, NY 10017.2013

D «1 212 999 0100

F  ■'1 212 370 4520

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors
The F EDGAR Group

i
I

Opinion ;
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The FEDCAP Group
(collectively, "FEDCAP"), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
position as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements
of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the fl nancial statements.

in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the fi nancial position of FEDCAP as of September 30, 2023 and
2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. i

I

Basis for oplnioii
We conducted our audits of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of FEDCAP and to meet our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our auditlopinion.

GT.COM

Emphasis of matter
As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated fi nancial statements, as of October 1,
2022, FEDCAP adopted FASB ASC 842, Leases. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement. whether
due to fraud or error.

Gram Thornton LLP it the U.S. memtwr firm of Grant Thornton (ntemailonal Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each of its fhemlier fimit
ere separate legal entitles ar^ are not a worldwide partnership.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to
evaluate whetherj there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about FEDCAP's ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a

substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

i

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS. we;

I

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. I

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and.perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. |

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of FEDCAP's internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about FEDCAP's ability to continue as

a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit
findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary information
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary infonnation is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures.



@ Grant Thornton

These additional procedures included comparing and reconciling the information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with US GAAS. In our
opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Li-f

New York, New YiOrk
February 15, 2024

L



The FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

.  I

As of September 30,

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenues

Advances from government agency
Current portion of finance tease llabillUes

Current portion of operating lease liabilities

Current portion of notes payable

Total current liabilities

Notes payable, net
Revolving loans

Finance lease liabilities, net

Operating lease liabilities, net
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Contingencies

Net assets

V\rithout donor restrictions

V\Athout donor restrictions - non-conlrolling interest
V\Ath donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

40.444.915

649,513
55.459.990

• 2023 2022

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $  25.187.907 $  55.878,023

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of

approximately $4,129,000 in 2023 and $3,241,000 in 2022) 59.466.388 48.355.344

Current portion of contributed space receivable 2,772.958 •

Contributions and grants receivable (net of allowance for

uncollectible contributions of approximately $250,000) 2,819.540 1.179.787

Inventories, net 323.810 415.327

Prepaid expenses and other assets 10.755.454 11.828,888

Total current assets 101.326,057 117.657,369

Investments 10.626.090 9.006,938

Property, plant and equipment, net 144.677.742 126.130,025

Operating lease right-of-use assets 88.970.362 •

Contributed space receivable, net 42.972.530 -

Beneficial Interest in trusts 4,735.763 4.398,082

Other assets i  999.332 994.564

Goodwill, net 144.000 251.669

Total assets !  $ 394.451,876 $ 258,438,647

42.855.716
10.646.471

40.206

1,259.819

9.866.603

1.214,654

65.883,469

23,680,632

29.312,466

78.499,317

82.228,115

18.293.459

297,897.458

$  45.905.077

12,901,051

564.276
532.198

1.181.142

61.083,744

24,731,624

25.893.587

78,523,502

19.922.198

210.154.655

36.895.261

2.406.738
8,981.993

96,554.418 48.283.992

$ 394.451.876 $ 258.438.647

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Th« FEDCAP Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTTVITiES

For the years ended September 30,

2023 2022

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions Total

operating Revenues
Contract services and products
Rehabilitation artd vocational programs
In-kind contribution

Contribution and grant revenues
Gain on Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments
Interest Income

Misctilaneous revenue

Net assets released from restrictions

$ 124.736.448

227.694.192

6.657.739

1,124.306

500.329

1,515.601

3,249.208

$

48.617.672

954.554

151.477

3,502

(3.249.208)

S 124.736.448

227,694,192

48.617,672

7.612,293

1.275,783

503.831

1,515.601

$ 117,491.258

223.896.100

11,070.378

10,718.192

(3,592,359)
770.513

1.037,731

669.536

5

200.000

47.221

(669.536)

$  117,491,258

223.896,100

11,270.378

10.718il92
(3,545.138)

770.513

1,037,731

Total operating revenues 365.477.823 46.477.997 411,955.820 362.061,349 (422.315) 361.639,034

Operating Expenses

Program services
Contract ser>rices and products

Rehabilitation and vocational programs
106.875.813

200.937.265
-

106.875.813

200,937.265

102.095.694

190.882.531
'

102.095,694

190.882,531
— - -

307,813.078
-

307,813,078 292.978.225
-

292.978,225

Supporting services
Management artd genera)
Development

51.993.670

3.035.092
•

51.993,670

3.035,092

60,400.583

4.631,342
-

60.400.583

4.631.342

55,028,762 - 55,028.762 65.031,925
-

65,031,925

Total operating expenses 362.841.840 . 362.841.840 358.010,150 . 358.010,150

Change In net assets from operations '2,635,983 46.477.997 49.113.980 4,051.199 (422.315) 3,626.884

Nonoperating Activities
Foreign exchange transaction (losses) gains (843.554) (843,554) 1.110.528 1.110,528

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1.792.429 46,477,997 48.270,426 5,161.727 (422,315) 4.739,412

Net assets at beginning of period 39.301.999 8,981,993 48,283,992 34.140,272 9,404,308 43.544.580

Net assets at end of period S  41.094.428 S  55.459,990 $  96.554,418 $  39.301,999 $  8.981,993 $  48.263.992

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The FEDCAP Group

CONSOUDATEO STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For th« year ended September 30.2023

Suppofdnfl Servlcee

Salaries end related expenses
Professional fees

Professional development and evaluation
Materials artd supplies
Commissions

Telephone
Postage and shipping
Insurance

Occupancy costs
Equipment rental and maintenar>ce
Equipment purcfiases
Cient transportation and travel
Subscription end printing

Technology
Interest expose
Bank charges and processing fees
Bad debt provision
,Subconlractof.expense. . . —-
Stipends
Security guard expense
Other

Total expenses before depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization

Total expenses

Contract Kehabilitation and

Services and Vocational Management

Products Programs Total and General OevslopmenI Total Total Expenses

$  81.120.996 S  96,426.600 $  177.547.596 S  14.663.616 $  1.222.119 $ 15,885,735 S 193.433.331

336.249 37.401,955 37.740.204 4,077.379 920.235 4.997,614 42.737.818

12.693 2.575,302 2.587.995 918.358 120 918.478 3.506.473

4.442.057 5.281.236 9.723.287 . 8.642 8.642 9.731.929

2.797.847 9.451 2.607.298 - • 2.807.298

117,759 844.106 961.865 684.816 3,697 688.513 1.650.378

138.716 41.594 180,310 283,570 11,060 294.630 474,940

1,695,570 1.491.054 3,166,624 1.422.314 29,980 1.452.294 4.638.918

1,551,787 23.694.514 25.246,301 6.976.357 95.202 7.071.559 32,317,860

974,306 380.656 1,355,164 96.521 44,827 141.348 1,496,512

239.225 186.472 425,697 17.643 626 18.269 443,966

515,604 2,593.122 3.108,726 1.133.413 182.859 1.316.272 4,424,998

113.325 364.007 477,332 1.135.5W 24.976 1.160.576 1.637,908

236.438 2,072.990 2.309,428 5.594.378 41.245 5.635.623 7.945.051

31.473 48.232 79,705 4.965.331 - 4.965.331 5.045,036

77.100 468.004 565.104 894.239 37.612 731.851 1.296,955
. 1.281.700 1.281.700 . . 1.281.700

12;172.307—- — - 16.621,606- — 28.993.912- 2.861.514-■  ■■ 329 2;86r,843" 3i;855.75'5'
46.637 4.667,406 4.714.043 479.235 31.851 - 511.086 5.225.129

21.195 288,664 309.859 21.440 516 21.956 331.815

49.283 2.315,506 2.364.789 1,435,855 367,072 1,802.927 4,167.716

106.692.567 199.274.372 305.966.939 47,461,577 3,022.970 50.484.547 356.451.486

183.246 1.662,893 1.848.139 4.532.093 12,122 4.544.215 6.390.354

S  106.675,613 S 200.937.265 S 307.813,078 S  51.993.670 $ 3.035.092 $  55.028.762 i 362,841,640

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.



The FEDCAP Group

CONSOUDATEO STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For Ih* yoar ondod Stptambor 30. 2022

Supporting Services
Contract Kehabilitation and

Services and Vocational Management

Products Programs Total and General Otveiopinent Total Total Expenses

Salaries and related expenses S  76,509,229 S  95,122,196 $  171.631.425 S  18.180,981 $  2.940.833 S 21.121.814 S 192.753.239
Professional fees 223.699 28,844,344 29.068.043 6.722,419 657.885 7,380.304 36.448.347

Professional development and evaluation 10,942 1.036,603 1.047.545 1.349,267 1.552 1.350.819 2.398.364

Materials and supplies 3,373,321 3,816,965 7.190.286 1.175,764 11.086 1.188.870 8,377.156
Commissions 2,791,910 11.328 2.603.238 48.149 . '  48.149 2.851.387
Telephone 164.753 1,043,759 1.208.512 1.215.075 4.723 1,219.798 2.428.310

Postage and shipping 144.814 136,560 -  281,374 188.409 5,385 193.794 475.168
Insurance 1.621.293 1,483,263 3,104.556 5.573.972 44,463 5.618.435 8.722.991
Occupancy costs 1.461,728 14.684,466 16,366.196 5.451.989 137,566 5.589.555 21.955,751

Equipment rental and maintenar>ce 959.072 474,310 1.433,362 272.156 37,441 309.597 1.742.979

Equipment purchases 302.142 116.338 416,480 201.200 23 201.223 619.703
Client transportation and travel 402.105 1,473,493 1.675.596 579,821 57.345 637,166 2.512.764

Subscription and printing 19,565 103.306 122.873 1,171.618 71.094 1.242.712 1.365.565
Technology 293.901 2.116.872 2,410.773 4,686.157 27.408 4,713.565 7.124.338
Interest expense 2.959 36.336 39.295 3.686.229 . 3,886,229 3.925.524
Bank charges and processing fees 92.732 164.669 257.401 887.729 55.616 1.043.345 1.300,746
Bad debt provision - 2.598.778 2.598,778 - . . . 2.598,778
Subcontractor exoense — 13.445.461 - 25.946.302" - 39,393,783 " 2.192.097 (977) 2.191.120 41.584.903
Stlpertds 147.646 6.580.876 6,728.522 476,327 994 477.321 7.205.843

Security guard expense 11.600 262.857 274.457 14.530 614 15.144 289.601

Other • 4,021.874 4,021.874 - 569.780 569.780 4.591.654

Total expenses t>efore depredation and emortizalion 101,998.892 190,277,499 292,276,391 54.373.909 4.622.831 58.996.740 351,273,131

Depredation and amortization 96,602 605,032 701.834 6.026.674 6.511 6.035.185 6,737,019

Total expenses S  102,095,694 %  190,882.531 S 292.978.225 S  60.400.583 S  4.631.342 $ 65.031.925 $ 356,010,150

The accompanying notes are an Integra! part of this consolidated financial statement.



The FEDCAP Group

1

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

1

For the years ended September 30,

Cash flows from operating activities: '

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities: I

Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of goodv/ill I
Bad debt provision I
Realized and unrealized losses (gains) on investments
Contributed space I
Lease amortization I
Paycheck Protection Plan loan forgiveness
Changes in assets and liabilities: I
Accounts receivable

Contribution receivable

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Beneficial interest in remainder trust <

Accounts payable and accnjed ItabiliUes
Deferred revenue ,
Other liabilities

Net cash (used in) provided by operaUng activities

Cash flows from Investing activities:
Purchase of investments

Capital expenditures

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Deaease in advances from government agencies
Change in revolving loans
Proceeds from Paycheck Protection Plan notes payable
Repayment of Paycheck Protection Plan notes payable
Repayment of rtotes payable
Repayment of finance lease obligations

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year

End of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow Information:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment through finance leases

Cash interest paid during the period

Supplemental disclosures of noncash financing activities:

Operating lease right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities
Finance lease right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities

2023 2022

$  48,270,426 $  4,739,412

6.282,685 6,230,114

107.669 506,905

1,281.700 2,598,778
(1,275,783) 3,545,138

(45.745.488) -

4,877,060 -

(10,718,192)

(12.392.744) 6,409,739

(1,639.753) 788,896
91.517 48,935

1.068.666 (2,974,588)
(337,681) 174,664

(3,049,361) 8,908,322
(2.254.580) 1,068,568
(1.628.739) 2.549,122

(6.344.406) 23.875,813

(343.369) (641,436)
(24.830.402) (6.653.430)

(25.173.771) (7,294,866)

(524,070)
3.418.879

(1,017.480)
(1,049,268)

828,061

(30.690,116)

55,878,023

(185,150)
(2,279,474)

537,005

(103.754)

(1,056.495)
(597,695)

(3.685.563)

12,895.384

42.982.639

$  25,187,907 $ 55.878.023

$  1.193.084 $ 43,909.705

$  5.045.036 $ 2,443,534

$  578,592

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these cpnsolidated financial statements.
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The FEDCAP Group

I
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September'30, 2023 and 2022

I

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES
I

I

The FEDCAP Group. Inc. (the "Parent"), established on October 1,2018, is a private, nonprofit organization
incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. The Parent is exempt frorn federal income taxes
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC"). The Parent or its subsidiaries are the sole
member of the following affiliates: Fedcap, Inc ("Fed Inc."), Redcap Rehabilitation Services, Inc ("FRS"),
Fedcap Investment Corporation ("Fed Inv"), Fedcap VR Technologies LLC ("Fed VR"), Wildcat Services
Corporation ("Wildcat"). ReServe Elder Services, ilnc. ("ReServe"), Community Workshops, Inc. ("CWS"),
Easter Seals New York, Inc. ("ESNY"), Granite Pathways, Inc ("GP"), Easter Seats Rhode Island, Inc
("ESRI"), Seacoast Pathways, Inc. ("Seacoast"), Single Stop USA Inc. ("SGST"), Benevolent, MVLE, Easter
Seals Central Texas ("ESCT"), Easter Seals f^orth Texas ("ESNT"), Easter Seals Mississippi, Inc.
("ESMS"), Easter Seals South Dakota, Inc. ("ESSD"), Easter Seals Oklahoma, Inc. ("ESOK"), Fedcap Apex'
Technical School Inc, Civic Hall Labs, Inc, New Yor1( Tech Alliance ("NYTA"), Fedcap Canada, These Our
Treasures, Inc. ("TOTS"), Fedcap UK, Kennedy Swtt, Limited ("KS"), Fedcap Employment Limited ("FED"),
Fedcap Employment Scotland Limited ("FES"), and Start Scotland Limited ("SS"). The Parent and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as "FEDC>^P."

FRS is a private, nonprofit organization incorporated under the laws of New York State. FRS is exempt
from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3i of the IRC.

FRS was founded to provide a comprehensive range of vocational and related services to individuals with
disabilities, and other work-related disadvantages, who face significant barriers to employment. FRS's goal
is to help each person achieve independence, integration into the community and full participation in the
economic mainstream. i

I

. I

FRS provides contract services and products within custodial, homecare, office services, and industrial
divisions, The primary customers in these divisions|are federal, and New York State and. City agencies and
certified home health agencies.

As part of FRS's rehabilitation and vocation programs, FRS provides vocational evaluations, training, and
employment services and other government-funded employment and job search programs. Evaluations
combine aptitude tests, computerized assessmerits, and vocational counseling. After evaluation, FRS
offers training in mail clerk/messenger services, tuilding/custodial services, culinary arts/food services,
data entry, office skills, document Imaging, hospitality operations, and security operations. FRS then seeks
to employ individuals who have successfully completed FRS's rehabilitation and vocational programs. FRS
also offers the Chelton Loft, a voluntary clubhouse program for people with a history of serious mental
illness. FRS also has a vocational education program and a licensed mental health program.

Wildcat Is a nonprofit entity that Is located in New York City and provides employment training, jobs
placement and "supportive employment" opportunities for individuals with barriers to employment.

ReServe is a nonprofit entity located in New York City that matches continuing professionals age 55+ with
organizations that need their expertise. ReServe (provides direct services, administrative support, and
capacity-building expertise in schools, social service agencies, cultural institutions, and public agencies.

CWS is a nonprofit corporation located in Boston, jMassachusetts, whose mission is to help people who
have barriers to work obtain employment and achieve greater self-sufficiency through job training,
placement, and support services. '

ESNY is a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide programs and services for people with disabilities,
assistance to people with disabilities and their families, assistance to communities in developing necessary
and appropriate resources for residents, and a climate of acceptance for people with disabilities which will
enable them to contribute to the well-being of the community.

r
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
i  '
I

September 30, 2023 and 2022

i

ESNY is the sole member of TOTS, a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to educate young children with
developmental disabilities in an atmosphere that embraces and accommodates individual differences and
helps children to achieve in the context of the larger classroom and school setting.

GP is a nonprofit entity whose mission is to provide services to empower and support adults with mental
illness to pursue their personal goals through education, employment, stable housing, and meaningful
relationships. i

ESRI is a nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide services to ensure that all people with disabilities or
special needs and their farnilies have equal opportunities to live, learn, work and play in their communities.

Seacoast is a nonprofit entity whose mission is to support adults living with mental illness on their paths to
recovery through the work-ordered day. !

SGST is a nonprofit entity that provides coordinated services to holistically connect people to the resources
they need to attain higher education, obtain good jobs, and achieve financial self-sufficiency.

Benevolent is a nonprofit entity that provides economic wellbeing to individuals and families in need,
through non-government sources. . |

i
MVLE is a nonprofit entity that provides employment, support and rehabilitation services to individuals with
disabilities in the Northern Virginia and Washington, D.C. area.

Fed Inc. was established as a private, noriprofit organizations under the laws of the State of Delaware. Fed
Inc. was formed to provide workforce development opportunities for people who face barriers to economic
well-being. |

ESCT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle through outpatient medical
rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration programs in the Central
Texas region. !

ESNT provides services to individuals with disabilities throughout the life cycle through outpatient medical
rehabilitation, workforce development and community housing and integration programs in the North Texas
region.

Fedcap UK was established and was registered as a UK Charity. Fedcap UK was founded to allow for the
advancement of social inclusion, by enabling economic independence, employment and opportunity to
participate in society for socially and economically disadvantaged and disabled individuals through various
workforce and economic development, educational|and occupational health initiatives.

I

Fedcap UK acquired KS, a United Kingdom company. KS provides high quality job support, placement,
retention and related services to people in the United Kingdom.

FED was established under the laws of the UnitedjKingdom. FED delivers employability solutions across
the United Kingdom to build communities through'a blend of local frontline professional teams and like-
minded supply chain partners. Fedcap UK Is the sole corporate member of FED.

■  ' [
FES was established under the laws of Scotland in the United Kingdom, FES delivers employability
solutions across Scotland to build communities through a blend of local frontline professional teams and
like-minded supply chain partners. Fedcap UK is the sole corporate member of FES.

FES is the majority shareholder and the Lennox Partnership is the minority shareholder with 49% interest
in of SS. SS is a value-driven organization that strives to put its custorners first, understanding their needs
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

SeptemberjSO, 2023 and 2022
}

!
I

and closely engaging with them on a personal level to help them on their journey to employment and
training. I

Fedcap Apex Acquisition LLC is a nonprofit entity that runs Apex Technical School ("Apex"), which is an
adult vocational technical school and offers seven.certificate courses designed to focus on basic trade skills
and labor skills for its students. The operations of Fedcap Apex Acquisition LLC were transitioned into a
newly created not for profit organization - Fedcap'Apex Technical School, Inc. - during fiscal year 2023.

I

Fedcap Canada was established as a not-for-profit organization according to the Canada Not-for-Profit
Corporations Act.' Fedcap Canada was founded |to advance the economic and social well-being of the
impoverished and disadvantaged by providing educational services, vocational rehabilitation, job training
and job placement services.

Civic Hall Labs, Inc., is a not-for-profit entity that provides a learning and collaboration platform focused on
advanced technology and problem-solving for the public good.

Civic Hall Labs, Inc. is the sole member of NYTA, an organization that supports the technology community
and ecosystems In their hometown, with the goal, of creating the most diverse, equitable and accessibletech ecosystems In the world. |
ESMS, a Mississippi non-profit corporation, is an organization providing services to chlidren and adults with
disabilities or other special needs and their families.

(

I

ESSD, a South Dakota non-profit corporation, is an organization to help children and adults with disabilities
or other special needs and their families and caregivers reach their maximum capabilities and secure
opportunities for their education, training, and employment.

ESOK, an'Oklahoma non-profit corporation, is an organization to provide services to ensure that all people
with disabilities or special needs and their families have equal opportunities to live, learn, work, and play in
their communities. |

Fed Inv, a Delaware non-profit corporation, is a community development financial institution founded to
serve economically distressed communities by providing credit, capital, and financial services that are often
unavailable from mainstream financial institutions. |
Fed VR, a joint venture between Fedcap, Inc. (as the majority shareholder) and UP360 US Holdings
Corporation (minority shareholder with 49% interest), and provides virtual reality software, know-how and
product development services for workforce training, development, and education.

.  I

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation i
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of FEDCAP have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") using the accrual
basis of accounting. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September|30, 2023 and 2022

FEDCAP classifies its net assets in the following categories:
1

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions
'  " ' 1

I

Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposedj stipulations and are, therefore, available for the general
operations of FEDCAP. Net assets without donor restrictions may also be designated for specific purposes
by REDCAP'S Board of Directors or may be limited by legal requirements or contractual.agreements with
outside parties. ,

Net assets without donor restrictions also includes the portion of net assets in a consolidated subsidiary
owned by non-controlling investors and are reflected on the consolidated statements of financial position
as net assets without donor restrictions - non-controlling interests.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Represent net assets which are subject to donor-irnposed restrictions whose use is restricted by time and/or
purpose. Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor-imposed restrictions that require FEDCAP
to use or expend the gifts as specified, based on purpose or passage of time. When donor restrictions
expire, that is, when a purpose restriction is fulfilled or a time restriction ends, such net assets are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported on the consolidated statements of activities
as net assets released from restrictions. '

Contributions with donor-imposed restrictions whose restrictions are met during the same fiscal year in
which the contribution was recognized are presented as contribution revenues without donor restrictions
on the consolidated statements of activities. |

•  I

Net assets with donor restrictions also includes the' corpus of gifts, which must be maintained in perpetuity,
but allow for the expenditure of net Investment income and gains earned on the corpus for either specified
or unspecified purposes in accordance with donor stipulations.

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions and the non-controlling interests in SS and Fed VR during
the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 is summarized below:

Total Without

Donor

Restrictions

Without Donor

Restrictions

Non-controlling
Interest

Balance, September 30, 2021 S  34,140,272 $  33,166,395 $  973,877

Change in net assets from operations
Change in net assets from nonoperating

activities

. 4,051,199

i  1,110,528

2,618,338

1,110,528

1,432,861

Balance, September 30, 2022 1  39,301,999 36,895,261 2,406,738

Reclassification

Change in net assets from operations
Change in net assets from nonoperating

activities

1  2,635,983

■  (843,554)

1,902,661
2,490,547

(843,554)

(1,902,661)
145,436

Balance, September 30, 2023
1

'$ 41.094,428 $ 40,444.915 $  649,513
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
1

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Measure of Operations
(

The accompanying consolidated statements of activities report changes in net assets by operating and non-
operating activities. Operating activities principally include all revenues and expenses that relate to
FEDCAP's programs and supporting activities. '

Non-operating activities include foreign currency exchange gains and losses and other items considered to
be incidental to operations or non-recurring in nature.

Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash '

FEDCAP considers all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the date of
purchase, including investments in short-term certificates of deposit and certain money market funds, to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents onithe accompanying consolidated statements of financial
position includes cash that is restricted under borrowing or other contractual arrangements amounting to
$3,824,255 and $2,500,000 as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

I

Revenue Recognition |

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC")
Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers {"ASC 606"), FEDCAP recognizes revenue when
control of the promised goods or services are transferred to FEDCAP's clients or outside parties in an

. amount that reflects the consideration FEDCAP expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or
services. The standard outlines a five-step mc^el whereby revenue is recognized as performance
obligations within a contract are satisfied. - i

FEDCAP has identified contract services and products and rehabilitation and vocational programs as
revenue categories subject to ASC 606. FEDCAP 'recognizes revenues from contracts with customers, as
goods or services are transferred or provided in accordance with ASC 606.

Payments received in advance of FEDCAP satisfying its performance obligations are recorded within
deferred revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position and totaled
$10,271.850 and $12,501,051, as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The changes in deferred
revenue were caused by normal timing, differences between the satisfaction of performance obligations and
customer payments.

FEDCAP's contracts with customers generally contain terms that are less than one year. Accordingly,
FEDCAP elected the practical expedients under ASC 606 to not assess whether a contract has a significant
financing component or disclose the information! regarding the remaining performance obligations for
contracts with customers. t

FEDCAP's revenue primarily relates to contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational
programs. Revenue recognition for these various 'revenue streams coincides with the completion of the
corresponding performance obligations to customers.

Contract Services and Products

FEDCAP's contract services and products revenue includes facility services, and other cost recovery
contracts. FEDCAP recognizes such revenue ratabiy over a contract's term for those with fixed rates as the
performance obligations are fulfilled accordingly over the corresponding contract term. For performance-
based contracts, revenues are recognized in the period when related expenditures have been incurred,
milestones have been achieved, or services have been performed in compliance with the respective
contracts, which are the perforrriance obligations under the contracts. FEDCAP also generates revenue
from the sale of related products, which is recognized at the time of shiprnent.
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Rehabilitation and Vocational Programs j
FEDCAP's rehabilitation and vocational program revenue includes medical services, tuition and job training.
FEDCAP recognizes such revenue ratably over a contract's term for those with fixed rates as the
performance obligations are fulfilled accordingly pver the corresponding contract term. For performance-
based contracts, revenues are recognized in thej period when related expenditures have been incurred,
milestones have been achieved, or services have been performed in compliance with the respective
contracts, which are the performance obligations; under the contracts. FEDCAP also generates revenue
from the sale of related products, which is recognized at the time of shipment.

Contribution and Grant Revenue

FEDCAP records contributions of cash and other assets when an unconditional promise to give such assets
is received from a donor. Contributions are recorded at the fair value of the assets received and
contributions with donor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets are classified as net assets with
donor restrictions. Contributions with donor restrictions that are received and met in the same fiscal year
are recorded as contribution revenues without' donor restrictions. Otherwise, once stipulated time
restrictions end or purpose restrictions are accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified
to net assets without donor restrictions as "net jassets released from restrictions" in the consolidated
statements of activities. Conditional contributions are recognized as revenue when the conditions on which
they depend are substantially met. Conditional contributions received in advance of meeting the associated
contributions are recorded within deferred revenue on the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial position and totaled $374,621 and $400,000, as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
There were no outstanding conditional contributions yet to be received as of September 30, 2023 or 2022.

I

FEDCAP recognizes revenue from contributions, grants and contracts in accordance with guidance
whereby FEDCAP evaluates whether a transfer of assets is (1) an exchange transaction in which a resource
provider is receiving commensurate value in return' for the resources transferred or (2) a contribution. If the
transfer of assets is determined to be an exchange transaction, FEDCAP applies guidance under ASC 606.
If the transfer of assets is determined to be a contribution, FEDCAP evaluates whether the contribution is
conditional based upon whether the agreement includes both (1) one or more barriers that must be
overcome before FEDCAP is entitled to the assets transferred and promised and (2) a right of return of
assets transferred or a right of release of a promisor's obligation to transfer assets.

Contributed goods and services are recognized (revenues and expenses, or assets, if capitalizable) at their
estimated fair value at the date of receipt and are reflected as in-kind contributions on the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities.

Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are derived from contract services and products, and rehabilitation and vocational"
programs. The carrying value of contributions and grants and accounts receivable are reduced by an
appropriate allowance for uncollectible accounts, and therefore approximates net realizable value.
FEDCAP determines its allowance by considering a number of factors, including the length of time
receivables are past due, FEDCAP's previous loss| history, the donor's current ability to pay its obligation,
and the condition of the general economy and the industry as a whole. Receivables outstanding longer than
the payment terms are considered past due. FEDCAP writes off accounts receivable when they become
uhcollectible, and payments subsequently received on such receivables are recorded as income in the
period received. All receivables are expected to be|Collected within one year.

16



The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Inventories

Inventories, mainly consisting of distress marker light products and related components, are valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined principally by the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets i
I

Fixed assets purchased for a value greater than $5,000 and with depreciable lives greater than one year
are carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation Is provided over the estimated useful life
of the respective asset and ranges from three to 40 years. Significant additions or improvements extending
asset lives are capitalized; normal maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Leasehold
Improvements are amortized based on the lesser of the estimated useful life or remaining lease term.

Functional Allocation of Expenses '

The costs of providing the various-programs andjother activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities. The classification is based on the function
and nature of expenses directly used in the program. Common expenses are allocated to the programs and
supporting services based on the benefit derived. The methods used for the allocation include square
footage and actual percentage of time dedicated to the program or supporting service.

Commissions

I

FEDCAP pays commissions to an unrelated not-for-profit entity and a New York State entity to provide
information on government contracts that need competitive bids for services. The contracts provide for
commissions to be paid to these organizations iri the range of 0.87% to 3.9% of the contract amount.
Commissions paid relating' to these contracts amounted to $2,807,298 and $2,850,048 for the years ended
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and are included within contract services and products
expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAR requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect thejreported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported jamounts of revenues and expenses. These estimates
and assumptions relate to estimates of collectability| of accounts receivable, accruals, useful life of property,
plant, and equipment, and impairment of long-lived assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value Measurements

FEDCAP follows guidance for fair value measurements that defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used to measure fair value and
enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. It maximizes the use of observable inputs
and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the observable inputs be used when
available.

Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on
market data obtained from independent sources. jUnobservable inputs reflect assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the best information available in the
circumstances. '
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The hierarchy is broken down into three levels, based on the transparency of inputs as follows:
I

Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the
measurement date. A quoted price for an identical asset or liability in an active market
provides the most reliable fair value measurement because it is directly observable to the
market. '

Level 2 - Pricing inputs other than quoted prices In active markets, which are either directly or indirectly
observable as of the measurement date. The nature of these securities includes investments

for which quoted prices are available but traded less frequently and investments that are fair
valued using other securities, the parameters of which can be directly observed.

I

Level 3 - Securities that have little to no pricing observability as of the measurement date. These
securities are measured using management's.best estimate of fair value, where the inputs
into the determination of fair value are not observable and require significant management
judgment or estimation. i

Inputs are used in applying the various valuation' techniques and broadly refer to the assumptions that
market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may include
price information, volatility statistics, specific and tiiroad credit data, liquidity statistics, and other factors. A
financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. Howeyer, the determination of what constitutes "otDservable"
requires significant judgment by the entity. FEDCAP considers observable data to be that market data that
is readily available, regularly distributed or updated^ reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in| the relevant market. The categorization of a financial
instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not
necessarily correspond to FEDCAP's perceived risk of that instrument.

Beneficial Interest in Trusts

Donors have established and funded trusts held by third parties under which specified distributions are to
be made to a designated beneficiary or beneficiaries over the trusts' term. FEDCAP's beneficial interest in
trusts consists of interests in both charitable remainder trusts and perpetual trusts. Under charitable
remainder trusts, FEDCAP will receive the assets remaining in the trust upon the termination" of the trust.
Under perpetual trusts, FEDCAP has the irrevocatlle right to receive all or a portion of the income earned
on the trust assets either in perpetuity or for the life |of the trust. FEDCAP recognizes its interest in trusts as
increases to net assets at the fair value of trust assets, less the present value of the estimated future
payments to be made under the specific terms of the trusts. Fluctuations in the fair value of these assets
are recorded as changes in net assets with donor restrictions in the consolidated statements of activities.

At September 30, 2023 and 2022, FEDCAP's beneficial interest jn trusts are reflected at fair value in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position and are classified as Level 3 within the fair
value hierarchy.

Balance, beginning of year

Distributions

Appreciation/(depreciation)

Balance, end of year

2023 2022

$  4,398,082 $ 5,435,630

(139,016) (131,208)
476,697 (906,340)

$  4,735,763 $ 4,398,082
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t

Impairment of Long'lived Assets ]

FEDCAP reviews the carrying values of its long-lived assets, including property and equipment and other
assets, for impairment whenever events or changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
such assets may not be fully recoverable. Recoverability of long-lived assets is assessed by a comparison
of the carrying amount of the asset to the estimate|d future net cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset. >

i

If estimated future net cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, the asset is considered
impaired and an expense is recorded in an amount to reduce the carrying amount of the asset to its fair
value.

Tax-Exempt Status

FEDCAP follows guidance that clarifies the accouriting for uncertainty in tax positions taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return, including issues relating to financial statement recognition and measurement. This
guidance provides that the tax effects from an uncertain tax position can only be recognized in the financial
statements if the position is "more-likely-than-nof to be sustained if the position were to be challenged by
a taxing authority. The assessment of the tax position is based solely on the technical merits of the position,
without regard to the likelihood that the tax position may be challenged.

FEDCAP is exempt from federal income tax under IRC Section 501(c)(3), though it is subject to tax on
income unrelated to their respective exempt purpose, unless that income is otherwise excluded by the IRC.
These organizations have processes presently in' place to ensure the maintenance of their tax-exempt
status, to identify and report unrelated income, to determine their filing and tax obligations in jurisdictions
for which they have nexus, and to identify and evaluate other matters that may be considered tax positions.
FEDCAP has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions that require recognition or
disclosure in the consolidated financial statements!

While FEDCAP does hot pay income tax within thejunited States, it does accrue Value-Added-Tax ("VAT")
for liabilities its United Kingdom subsidiaries incur on goods and sen/ices purchased overseas. The amount
of VAT liability accrued within the accompanying |consolidated financial statements for the years ended
September 30,2023 and 2022, is $1,346,514 and $2,503,334, respectively, and is reported within accounts
payable and accrued liabilities on the. accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

Goodwill j
Goodwill was established through the acquisition of Apex in 2020 and KS in 2019. The value reported on
the consolidated statements of financial position represents the residual difference between the
consideration paid and the fair value of the net assets acquired. FEDCAP has elected under relevant
guidance to amortize goodwill on a straight-line basis over 10 years and to perform a goodwill impairment
analysis at the entity or reporting unit level when a triggering event occurs that indicates the fair value of
the entity or reporting unit may be below its carrying amount. Impairment charges totaling $107,669 were
recognized during the year ended September 30, 12023. There were no impairment charges recognized
during the year ended September 30, 2022.

Adopted Accounting Pronouncement (Change in Accounting Principle)

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). This ASU requires lessees to
recognize a lease liability and a right-of-use ("RQU°) asset on a discounted basis, for substantially all
leases, as well as additional disclosures regardirig leasing arrangements. Disclosures are required to
enable users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising
from leases. In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-11, Leases (Topic 842): Targeted Improvements,

19



The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
I

September 30,2023 and 2022

i
I

which provided an optional transition method for applying the new lease standard. Topic 842 can be applied
using either a modified retrospective approach at the beginning of the earliest period presented or, as
permitted by ASU 2018-11, at the beginning of the period in which it is adopted, {i.e., the comparatives
under Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 840 option).

I

FEDCAP adopted Topic 842 on October 1, 2022;{the effective date), using the comparatives approach
under ASC 840 transition method, which applies ̂ opic 842 at the beginning of the period in which it is
adopted. Prior period amounts have not been adjusted in connection with the adoption of this standard.
FEDCAP similarly elected the package of practical expedients under the new standard, which permits

•entities to not reassess lease classification, lease identification or initial direct costs for existing or expired
leases prior to the effective date. FEDCAP has lease agreements with non-lease components that relate
to the tease components. j
FEDCAP determines if an arrangement is a lease or contains a lease at inception of a contract. A contract
is determined to be or contain a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of identified
property, plant, or equipment (an identified asset)! in exchange for consideration. FEDCAP determines
these assets are leased because FEDCAP has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefit
from and the right to direct the use of the identified asset. Assets in which the supplier or lessor has the
practical ability and right to substitute alternative assets for the identified asset and would benefit
economically from the exercise of its right to substitute the asset are not considered to be or contain a lease
because FEDCAP determines it does not have the right to control and direct the use of the identified asset.
FEDCAP's lease agreements do not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive
covenants.

In evaluating its contracts, FEDCAP separately identifies lease and non-lease components, such as
common area and other maintenance costs, in calculating the ROU assets and lease liabilities for its office
space. FEDCAP has elected the practical expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components and
classifies the contract as a lease if consideration in the contract allocated to the lease component is greater
than the consideration allocated to the non-lease component.

Leases result In the recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position.
ROU assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease liabilities represent
the obligation to make lease payments'arising fromjthe lease, measured on a discounted basis. FEDCAP
determines lease classification as operating or finance (previously capital leases) at- the lease
commencement date. |
At lease inception, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments over the lease
term. The ROU asset equals the lease liability adjusted for any initial direct costs, prepaid or deferred rent,
and lease incentives. FEDCAP has made a policy election to use a risk-free rate per U.S. Treasury
instrument for the initial and subsequent measurement of all lease liabilities. The risk-free rate is determined
using a period comparable with the lease term. |

The portion of payments on operating lease liabilitie's related to interest, along with the amortization of the
related ROU, is recognized as occupancy expense.'This occupancy expense is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. The portion of payments on finance lease liabilities related to interest
and the amortization of the ROU assets under finarice leases are reflected within occupancy expense on
the accompanying statement of functional expenses.

The lease term may include options to extend or to terminate the lease that FEDCAP is reasonably certain
to exercise. Lease expense is generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

FEDCAP has elected not to record leases with an initial term of 12 months or less on its statement of

financial position. Lease expense on such leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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i

Operating lease ROU assets and operating and finance lease liabilities are presented separately while
finance lease ROU assets are presented within property, plant and equipment, net on the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial position. ! -

The most significant impact of adoption was the recognition of operating lease ROU assets and operating
lease liabilities of $39,523,718 and $42,620,262, respectively. As part of adopting the standard, previously
recognized liabilities for deferred rent related to operating leases were reclassified as a component of ROU
assets. The standard did not significantly affect FEDCAP's changes in net assets or cash flows.

Reclassifications i

Certain reclassifications were made to the fiscal 2022 consolidated financial statements in order to conform

to the fiscal 2023 presentation. Such reclassifications did not result in a change to total net assets,
revenues, expenses or changes in net assets as previously reported in the fiscal 2022 consolidated financial
statements.

i

NOTE 3 - CONTRIBUTIONS AND GRANTS RECEIVABLE

At September 30. 2023 and 2022, contributions arid grants receivable consisted of receivables amounting
to $2,819,540 and $1,179,787, respectively, net ofen allowance for doubtful accounts of $250,000 for each
year. j

(

Approximately 46% and 24% of the contributions and grants receivable (gross) was due from one donor at
September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. ]

I

NOTE 4 - CONTRIBUTED SPACE RECEIVABLe]
In fiscal 2023, upon commencement of the lease, Ja contributed space receivable and in-kind contribution
with donor restrictions was recognized totaling $48;617,672 related to the below market rate lease for Civic
Hall's 85,000-square-foot learning and training center at 14th Street, Union Square, New York City. This
amount represents the present value of the difference between the fair market rate and the contracted
payments due under the lease over the lease term. The fair market rate was determined based upon the
lease rates for comparable space at the time of the lease commencement. The lease has a 25-year term
and the contributed space receivable will be amortized over that period. During the year ended
September 30^ 2023, $2,872,184 of the contributed space receivable was amortized and reflected within
occupancy costs on the accompanying consolidated statement of functional expenses.

NOTE 5-INVESTMENTS I

Investments, at fair value, consisted of the following at September 30:

Money market funds

Mutual funds

FEDCAP's mutual fund investments are classified

2023 2022

$  1,061,835 3)  561,734

9,564,255 8,445.204

$  10,626,090 3)  9,006,938

as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy. FEDCAP's
money market fund investments do not meet the definition of a security under U.S. GAAP, and as such, the
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements are not applicable.
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NOTE 6 - INVENTORIES, NET |

Inventories consisted of the following at September 30;

Inventories

Raw materials

Work-in-process and finished goods
Reserve

NOTE 7 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Fixed assets, net, consisted of the following at September 30:

Land

Building improvements
Buildings
Finance leases - buildings
Furniture, fixtures and computer systems

Leasehold improvements

Less: accumulated depreciation

2023 2022

$  106,392 $ 136,294
307,418 369,033
(90,000) (90,000)

$  323,810 $ 415,327

2023 2022

$  1,617,809 $ 1,617,809
4,896,701 4,599,099

39,742,759 39,742,759
79,828,252 79,828,252

.  31,241,392 26,960,289

34,337,156 12,773.557

191,664,069 165,521,765

(46,986,327) (39,391,740)

$ 144.677,742 $ 126,130,025

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 was $6,282,685
and $6,230,114, respectively.

NOTE 8 - REVOLVING LOANS

Investors Bank

On October 27, 2020, FEDCAP entered into an agreement with Investors Bank for (1) a revolving line of
credit agreement with a borrowing limit of $42,500,000. with a maturity date of October 27,2022 and interest
payable quarterly at a rate of prime plus 0.75% but n'o less than 4.00%. The maturity date was subsequently
extended to January 27, 2023. As of September 30,12022, FEDCAP had borrowings on this line of credit of
$25,893,587 at an interest rate of 3.06%. On January 27, 2023, the line was refinanced with Provident
Bank.
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Provident Bank I

On January 27, 2023, FEDCAP entered into an agreement with Provident Bank to refinance certain of its
previous debt arrangements as well as to provide for additional liquidity for operations. Iri connection with
the refinancing, FEDCAP entered into (1) a revolving line of credit agreement (Facility A) with a borrowing
limit of $42,500,000, with a maturity date of March' 25, 2025 and interest payable quarterly at a rate of one
month CME Term Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR") plus 2.90% but no less than 5.00%; and
(2) an additional $7,500,000 credit line (Facility B) interest payable quarterly at a rate of one month CME
Term SOFR plus 2.90% but no less than 5.00%. The revolving line of credit agreement requires that
FEDCAP maintain minimum unrestricted liquid assets of $15,000,000. The proceeds from the revolving line
of credit were used to repay the existing revolving credit line held by Investors Bank, mentioned above. As
of September 30,2023, FEDCAP had borrowings on Facility A of $29,345,101 at an interest rate of 8.22%.
There were no outstanding borrowings under Facility B as of September 30, 2023. The balance reported
on the accompanying cpnsolidated statement ofifinancial position as of September 30, 2023 is net of
unamortized debt issuance costs of $32,635. |

I

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Notes Payable |

On October 21, 2004, TOTS entered into a $700,000 mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition of
the building located in Bronx, New York. The note was secured by the property and all of the assets of
TOTS. The interest rate is 5,0% and principal and interest of $4,960 is payable monthly through the maturity
date of November 1, 2024. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, the outstanding principal balance was
$67,284 and $121,884, respectively. !

FEDCAP entered into an agreement with Investors Bank for two term loans in the amounts of $6,000,000
and $6,600,000, with a maturity date of November 1,2045 and November 1, 2030, respectively, along with
monthly payments of principal and interest at a rate of 4.00%. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, the
outstanding principal balance of the term loans was $11,137,729 and $11,659,271, respectively.
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Bonds Payable |

In December 2013, FRS entered into a Loan Agreement with Build NYC Resource Corporation ("Build
NYC"), a local development corporation, for Build NYC to issue bonds to finance the purchase of the sixth
floor of a building located at 633 Third Avenue in New York City and related expenses..Build NYC issued
$18,450,000 of tax-exempt revenue bonds ("Series 2013A"). Monthly payments of interest commenced in
June 2014. The Series 2013A bonds have a coupon rate of 4.2% with a maturity date of December 1,2033.
The Series A bonds were placed with Israel Discount Bank ("IDB") and, as part of the bond purchase and
continuing covenant agreement between FRS and IDB, FRS must maintain a minimum balance with IDB
of $4,000,000, which is included within investments in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial position at September 30, 2023 and 2022. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, the outstanding
principal balance of the Series 2013A bonds was $14,235,000 and $14,840,000, respectively. The following
is a summary of minimum principal payments due on the notes and bonds at September 30, 2023:

Year Ending September 30, Notes Payable Bonds Payable Total

$  584,654 $  630,000 $  ■ 1,214,654
544,230 655,000 1,199,230

541,215 685,000 1,226,215

548,331 715,000 1,263,331

555,193 745,000 1,300,193

8,431,390 10,805,000 19,236,390

$  11,205,013 $  14,235,000 25,440,013

(1,214,654)
(544,727)

$  23,680,632

2024

2025

2026 j
2027

2028 i

Thereafter . i

Total

.Less: current portion j
Less: bond issuance cost

I

Long-term debt, net of current portion |
I

1
NOTE 10 - ADVANCES FROM GOVERNMENT AGENCY

During fiscal 2023 and 2022, FEDCAP received contract advances from various New York City government
agencies. The refundable balance related to these advances as of September 30, 2023 and 2022 is
$40,206 and $564,276, respectively. These advances are non-interest bearing and will be offset by future
receivables within these programs.

NOTE 11 - FORGIVABLE CAPITAL ADVANCES

ESCT has received financial assistance for property acquisition costs from Housing and Urban
Development ("HUD") and the Austin Housing Finance Corporation ("AHFC"). Under the terms of the
agreements, funds were provided to ESCT in the form of forgivable capital advances to purchase
34 housing entities. The principle and any interest [are not due and will be forgiven upon maturity, as long
as ESCT continues to meet the requirements to maintain the housing units available for low income persons
with disabilities. ESCT believes that the possibility that repayment will occur is remote and as such that the
treatment of the advance as a contribution upon receipt is appropriate. Accordingly, the advances were
recorded as contributions with donor restrictions that are released from restriction over the life of the
agreement. |

24



The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

i

September 30, 2023 and 2022

The following table summarizes the forgivable capital advances as of September 30, 2023:

•  Amount of

I  Original Advance
Housing I j -

U.S. Department of HUD. interest rate of 5.375%, due unless forgiven on October 11.2045,
secured by six rental housing units. At September 30. 2023 and 2022, $228,010 and
$238,335, respectively, was included In net assets with donor restrictions related to the Note. $ 413,000

t

I

Housing II <
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 5,250%, due unless forgiven on April 1, 2048, secured

by 10 rental housing units. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, $438,567 and $456,407,
respectively, was included in net assets with donor restrictions related to the Note. ■ 713,600

I

City of Austin passed through AHFC, interest rate of 0%, due unless forgiven on May 1, 2049,
secured by 10 rental housing units, subordinate to the $713,600 loan. At September 30, 2023
and 2022, $319,792 and $332,292, respectively, was included in net assets with donor
restrictions related to the Note. ] 500,000

Housing III
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 4.125%, due unless forgiven on Decemt)er 1, 2050,

secured by eight rental housing units. At September 30, 2023 and 2022, $502,517 and
$521,013, respectively, was included in net assets with donor restrictions related to the Note. 739,900

City of Austin passed through AHFC, interest rate of 0%, due unless forgiven on November 30,
2050, secured by eight rental housing units, subordinate to the $739,900 loan. At
September 30, 2023 and 2022, $336,010 and $348,379, respectively, was included in net
assets with donor restrictions related to the Note. ^ 494,740

Housing IV j
U.S. Department of HUD, interest rate of 4.125%, due unless forgiven on February 15, 2053,

secured by 10 rental housing units. At September 30', 2023 and 2022, $790,191 and
$813,950, respectively, was included in net assets with donor restrictions related to the Note. 1,070,400

City of Austin passed through AHFC, interest rate of 0%, due unless forgiven on February 28,
2053, secured by 10 rental housing units, subordinate to the $1,070,400 loan. At
September 30, 2023 and 2022, $456,561 and $475,183, respectively, was included in net
assets with donor restrictions related to the Note. i ^ 624,898

t

Total $ 4,556,538

<
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

t

September 30, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 12-LEASES

FEDCAP has entered into operating and finance lease commitments for space, office equipment and
vehicles at various locations for its programs and'administrative activities, which expire on various dates
through July 2067. I

I

The lease cost and other required information relevant to the lease commitments for the year ended
September 30, 2023 are: '

Lease cost '

Operating lease cost ' $ 15,299,969
Finance lease cost

Amortization of right-of-use assets 297,686

Interest on lease liabilities | 3,586,628
Sublease income ' (1,465,264)

Total lease cost 5 17,719,019

Operating cash flows from operating leases ; $ 15,299,969

Operating cash flows from finance leases I 2,881,967
Financing cash flows from finance leases 1,049,268

I

Right-of-use assets, obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities $ 52,158,869
Right-of-use assets, obtained in exchange for new finance lease liabilities 578,592

Weighted-average remaining lease term: ^
Operating leases . 18.57 years

Finance leases 25.56 years

Weighted-average discount rate: |
Operating leases 3.45%
Finance leases ' 5.70%
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30,2023 and 2022

Future minimum payments under FEDCAP's leases are due as follows:

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

Thereafter

Total future undiscounted lease payments

Less: interest

Lease liabilities

Operating
Leases

Finance

Leases

$  11,321,897 $ 4,795,398
8,875,761

7,181,551
5,656,326

6,821,861

90,537,854

5,026,816

5.066.961
5.015.962

4,934,652

111,810,670

130,395,250 136,650,459

(38,300,532) (56,891.323)

$  92,094,718 $ 79,759,136

Disclosures Related to Periods Prior to Adoption ofASC 842

Total rent expense for the year ended September 30, 2022 was $15,289,496. Rent expense related to
lease agreements was recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Future minimum lease commitments under non-cancellable operating leases as of September 30, 2022
were as follows: I

Year Ending September 30, ' Amount

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

Total

$  14,593,814
13,093,972

12,245,259
10,557,672
8,763,622

92,407,054

$ 151,661,393
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Future tininimum lease commitments under non-cancellable finance leases as of September 30,2022 were
as follows; j

I

I  • • ■ •

Year Ending September 30, \ Amount

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

Total minimum lease payments

Less: amount representing interest

Present value of net minimum lease payments

$  3,707,389 -
4,471,864
4,465,407
4,803,639
4,803,639

116,983,515

139,235,453

■  (60,179,753)

$ 79,055,700

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES

FEDCAP is engaged in various lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the opinion of management, the
ultimate outcome of pending litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position and results of operations of FEDCAP.

FEDCAP participates in a number of federal and state programs. These programs require that FEDCAP
comply with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the
programs in which it participates. All funds expended in connection with government grants and contracts
are subject to audit by government agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of
government contracts by government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion
of management, have a material effect on FEDCAP's financial position or change in net assets. Accordingly,
no provision for any such liability that may result has been made in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

!

September 30,2023 and 2022

NOTE 14-TUITION REVENUE ,
.  . • t

FEDCAP receives funding for Fedcap Apex Techhical School Inc (d/b/a Apex Technical School) and for
the Career Design School from the New York State Education Department, administered by the Bureau of
Proprietary School Supervision. Gross tuition incorne has been included within rehabilitation and vocational
programs in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities for the years ended September 30,
2023 and 2022 as follows:

2023

Tuition

Less: book and tool sales

Less: application and insurance fees

Subtotal

Add: student Refunds and Returns to Federal Farnily Education
Loan Programs included above

Gross tuition for tuition assessment calculations
•  I

Tuition

Less: book and tool sales

Less: application and insurance fees

Subtotal

Add: student Refunds and Returns to Federal Farnily Education
Loan Programs included above 1

Fedcap Apex
Technical

School Inc

d/b/a Apex
Technical Career Design
School School

$  20,636,905 $  100,478
(664,857) -

(136,301)

19,835,747 $100,478

543,070 .

$ 20,378,817 $  100,478

2022

Fedcap Apex
Technical ■

School Inc

d/b/a Apex
Technical Career Design
School School

19,824,972
(566,428)
(119,444)

19,139,100

505,802

$  287,248

287.248

Gross tuition for tuition assessment calculations $  19,644,902 $ 287,248
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 15-NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following purposes as of September 30,:

I  2023 2022

For use in future periods for
Employment and job search programs $ .236,488 $ 260,388
ESCT HUD capital advances ' 3,071,648 3,186,559
Time restricted - beneficial interest in remainder trust 2,577,709 2,395,008

Time restricted - general 47,416.091 1,137,964

53,301,936 6,978,919

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts and endowment funds
subject to appropriation and satisfaction of don'pr restrictions 2,158,054 . 2,003,074

I  $ 55,459,990 $ 8,981,993

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts and endowment funds are comprised of the following as of
September 30: i

2023 2022

Easter Seals - beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
ReServe endowment j

CWS endowment I

$  1,993,803 $ 1,842,325
85,471 82,306
78,780 78,443

$  2,158,054 $ 2,003,074

'  I ' '

Net assets released from restrictions during the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 amounted to
$3,249,208 and $669,536, respectively. |

Net assets released from restrictions are compriseci of the following as of September 30:

i
!  2023 2022

Time Restricted - general
ESCT HUD Capital Advances

Employment and job search programs

$ 3,084,970 $

113,913 113,913
50,325 555,623

$ 3,249,208 $ 669,536

NOTE 16 - RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A CWS Board member is a trustee of the Eaton Fund. CWS leases its facilities from the Eaton Fund.

The rent paid to Eaton Fund for each of the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022 was $130,000 and
$97,500, respectively. I
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

1

September 30, 2023 and 2022

NOTE .17 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS ]

Effective January 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under Section
403(b) of the IRC for employee voluntary salary reduction contributions. Employees are eligible to
participate in the plan as of their employment date.j

Effective October 1, 1991, FEDCAP established a'Tax Deferred Annuity Retirement Plan under Section
403(b) of the IRC for employees working on government contracts with a defined contribution pension plan
based on a contractual formula. Employees are eligible to participate in the plan upon satisfactory
completion of a three-month probationary period. ^

Effective October 1, 1994, FEDCAP established a iDefined Contribution Plan under Section 403(b) of the
IRC for qualified participants, primarily employees who do not work on contracts. In November 1, 2010, the
Defined Contribution Plan was amended to allow all employees to participate in the plan immediately upon
hire. FEDCAP matches employee contributions up to 3% of their salaries. Employer matching contributions
fully vest after three years of employment.

Plan contributions are invested in one or more of the funding vehicles available to participants under the
plans. Each participant is fully and immediately vested in emplpyee contributions. Employer contributions
to the plans amounted to $13,520,332 and $12,381,925 for the years ended September 30,2023 and 2022,
respectively. :

NOTE 18-CONCENTRATIONS |
I

FEDCAP provides building services for federal buildings, which comprised 18% of total revenues during
the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022. FEDCAP provides offsite data entry personnel, custodial
and other services to various branches of the state and city government through one New York State
organization, which comprised 5% of total revenues'during the years ended September 30,2023 and 2022.

I

i

Financial instruments that potentially subject FEDCAP to concentrations of credit and market risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit' with financial institutions, which from time to time may
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Cdrporatiori limit. Management does not believe that a significant
risk of loss exists due to the failure of a financial institution. . .

i
I

NOTE 19 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
j

FEDCAP regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual
commitments. FEDCAP has various sources of liquidity at its disposal, including cash and cash equivalents,
marketable debt and equity securities, and lines of credit. See Note 8 for information about FEDCAP's lines
of credit.

For puiposes of assessing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period,
FEDCAP considers all expenditures related to its oijigoing activities.
In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, FEDCAP
operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general
expenditures.

As of September 30, 2023 and 2022, the following tables show the total financial assets held by FEDCAP
and the amounts of those financial assets that could readily be made available within one year of the
balance sheet date to meet general expenditures.
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The FEDCAP Group

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023 and 2022

Financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months;

;  2023

Cash and cash equivalents .
Accounts receivable, net
Contributions and grants receivable, net

Investments

Total financial assets available within the next 12 months

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditure due to:
Donor-imposed restrictions |
Minimum liquidity and collateral requirements under borrowing
and other arrangements

. Total financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next 12 months

2022

$ 25,187,907 $  55,878,023
59,466,388 48,355,344
2,819,540 1,179,787

10,626,090 9,006,938

98,099,925 114,420,092

(4,772,847) (4,583,655)

(18,900,000) (17,500,000)

$  74,427.078 $ 92,336,437

NOTE 20 • SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

FEDCAP evaluated its September 30, 2023 consolidated financial statements for subsequent events
through February 15, 2024, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance.
FEDCAP is'unaware of any events which would require recognition or disclosure in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements other than what is described in this note.

On October 24, 2023, FEDCAP entered into anj agreement with Provident Bank for a non-revolving
construction line of credit In the amount of $10,000,000. The line of credit will be used to finance the
construction of certain improvements related to the Civic Hall lease. The line of credit has a maturity date
of December 31, 2027 and fixed interest rate of 7.l|4%.
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a mamber of THE REDCAP GROUP

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Nick Brattan^ Chairman

Board Date 6/13/2018

Profession: President - NE Document Systems Inc

William Rider

Board Date 2009

Profession: CEO/President-Greater Manchester Mental Health

Lynne Westaway, Treasurer

Board Date 8/1/2007 ,

Profession: CPA/Partner-WIPFLI

James Sweeney PhD

Board Date 10/1/2020

Profession: PhD, Counseling
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Peter Burke

Board Date 4/1/21

Profession: Community Education Manager (®|St. Joseph Hospital

Cassandra Durand

Board Date 3/16/23

Profession: Director of ProHealth Integrated Primary Care

Kate Turcotte

Board Date 3/6/24

Profession: MSW, Professor and Therapist

Patrick Long

Board date 4/12/2026

Attorney

^  6/23



WHITNE\| H. BROWN
wbrou'n@granitepathways.org

OUALIFICATIONS/LICENSURE

Association of Community Rehabilitation Educators - ACRE (MaVch 2022)

NH Licensed Acupuncture Detoxification Specialist

Certified Sober Parenting Journey Facilitator (NoV| 2018)
Certified Recovery Support Worker Supervisor. (CRSW Supervisor, license 148)

Mental Health First Aid National Instructor (certified April 2018)
NH Licensed Nursing Assistant (2015-2020) I

EDUCATION

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Master of Social Work (Leave of Absence)

UNH INSTITUTE ON DISABILITY

Building Futures Apprenticeship

GRANITE STATE COLLEGE

• Micro Credential in Addiction Studies

UNH PROFESSIONAL EXTENSION SCHOOL

Introduction to Grant Writing

Introduction to Basic Project Mgt, Get 2019

CIP^ UNIVERSITY,OF NEW YORK ■

Marketing Principles

Business Law in the Digital Age

BOSTON COLLEGE

Durham. NH

October 2022
I

Oct 2021 - May 2023

Jun 2020-Jun 2021

Durham. NH

Concord, NH

Durham, NH

Sept 2019

Fall 2010

Spring 2011

BA in International Studies Sept 2004 -

INTERNATIONAL UNIV.OF BUSINESS & ECON.

Semester Abroad in Beijing. China

EXPERIENCE

New York. NY

Chestnut Hill. MA

May 2008

Jan 2007 - May 2007

Oct 2022-Present Portsmouth. NHSAFE HARBOR RECOVERY CENTER

Director |
Responsible for all day-to-day operations as an SUD outpatient treatment facility

Provide and oversee quality and person-centered direct recovery support service for clients with co-
occurring disorders

Ensure client safety and triage and/or perform crisis intervention
Appropriately respond to displays or communication of imminent threat and/danger •

Hire and train new staff •

Develop and implement new. strategies, programs, policies and procedures

Design and implement marketing strategy and initiatives

SAFE HARBOR RECOVERY CENTER Oct 2021 - Oct 2022 Portsmouth. NH

Center Manager

Manage the Job Launch Program

Manage the Parenting Journey in Reco\^ery Program
Manage the Homeless Outreach Program

Manage Peer Recovery Support Services

Supervise all staff and volunteers I
Advance and sustain all recovery community organizational activity

Cultivate donor relations

Establish and develop community partnerships

Ensure HIPAA and 42 CFR compliance |

JOB LAUNCH OF GRANITE PATHWAYS

Contract Manager & CRSW

WHBl

Sept 2020 - Oct 2021. Portsmouth. NH



WHITNEY H. BROWN
i

Manage contract deliverables j
Qualify and quantify key performance indicators

Supervise staff and interns j
Assist in employee professional development and licensure
Ensure HIPAA and 42 CFR compliance I
Educate employees and volunteers in cpnfidentiality practices

Support business development

Draft and submit grant proposals

Develop service integration with other Statewide workforce and recovery initiatives

Assist participants in career exploration jand development
Place participants in recovery-support work environments & Recovery Friendly Workplaces

Facilitate vocational classes in SUD treatment settings

JOB LAUNCH OF GRANITE PATHWAYS

Employment Specialist & CRSW

Feb 2020 - Sept 2020 Portsmouth, NH

Offer direct peer recovery support services through motivational conversation

Facilitate and coordinate Power of Possible work readiness curriculum

Conduct psychosocial intakes j
Establish and maintain client relationships on peer recovery support basis

Initiate and cultivate relationships with client referral sources

Formulate initial comprehensive serviceipians /
Coordinate with and delegate to Job Developer in service of clients'needs

Structure referral processes , j ■
Navigate privacy and confidentiality laws of telehealth and recovery coaching practice

Draft and submit to Contractors quarterly reports '. '

Formulate records retainment procedures

Contribute to creation of programmatic materials including marketing brochure

Assist with work readiness activities including resume drafting and proper interviewing

SAFE HARBOR RECOVERY CENTER Sept 2018-Feb 2020 Portsmouth, NH

Facilitator/ Parenting Journey Coord. & CRSW|

Assist individuals in defining and articulating their desired pathway of recovery

Monitor and support individuals in achieving desired pathway of recovery'

Motivationally interview participants to develop actionable goals

Validate and advocate for recoverees seeking expanded parental rights

Navi^tion of and proficiency with family court system and parental rights in NH

Leverage existing community resources

PRIVATE DUTY HOME HEALTHCARE

Personal Care Assistant

MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES

Licensed Nursing Assistant

NEW CASTLE FIRE DEPARTMENT

Member; Support Medical Team

RISE ABOVE SOBER LIVING

House Manager '

GUNDERSON DETTMER. et al

Legal Secretary

Receptionist

INTERNATIONAL VENUE GROUP

USA Pavilion Server

MANDARIN PRIVATE TUTORING

English Tutor

to level obstacles in the way of health stability

March 2017-Sept 2018 Kittery, ME

March 2016 - March 2018 Manchester, NH

Oct 2016 - May 2020 New Castle. NH

Aug - Oct 2015 Nashua. NH

Nov 2010-April 2012

Nov 2011-April-2012

Nov 2010-Nov 2011

March 2010-Aug 2010

Nov 2009 - Feb 2010

New York, NY

Shanghai, PRC

Shanghai. PRC

WHB2



MANDARIN ORIENTAL HOTEL

Asana Server

WENTWORTH BY THE SEA HOTEL

Server

WHITNEY H. BROWN

Sept 2008 - May 2009

Summers 2002 - 2008
I
I

Boston, MA

New Castle, NH

WHB 3



Terri Varney
tvarney@granitepath\vays.org

OBJECTIVE

To obtain a position in education or human services that serves individuals, families and the community.

EDUCATION
t

NEW HAMPSHIRE PROFESSIONAL CERTIFIED COACH ~ 2010

University of New Hampshire ~ Coaching Children & Teens

MASTER OF EDUCATION ~ 2006

University of Massachusetts, Lowell, MA

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CERTIFJEDRECOVERYSUPPORTSPECIALIST-Rockingham County NM 2018-prcscnl

Most recently at Safe Harbor Recovery Center ~ PoUsmouth, NH

EVENING ADULT EDUCATION TEACHER ~ York Adult Education, ME. 2016 - 2017

PARAPROFESSIONAL ~ Portsmouth, Durham and York School Departments - 2015-2018

DISABILITY SERVICES COORDINATOR ~ Great Bay Community College Portsmouth 2008 - 2014

LANGUAGE ARTS/READING TEACHER-Whitticr Technical High School Havcrhill, MA pre 2008

COMMUNITY SERVICE

K REIKl PRACTITIONER MASTER Volunteer - Safe Harbor Recovery Center, Portsmouth, NH 2017
and Portsmouth Regional Hospital, Portsmouth, NH 2010-2015

Provided sessions for hospitalized individuals and/or in recovery from substance use disorders

TRANSFERABLE SKILLS

Interpersonal communication, organizing, collaborating, and facilitating learning



EDWARD J. MILLIKEN

i
cmillikcn@granitepathways.org

PROFILE

Recently retired executive with proven experience in leading, developing, and implementing programs, products, and services in
non-profit and for-profit organizations.

CORE COMPETENCIES

Program and People Leadership/Management • Strategic, Budget and Operations Management
Partnership Development • Cross-Functional Team Management

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

SHRC) 2022-PresentGranite Pathways/Safe Harbor Recovery Center
Job Placement Specialist
Safe Harbor Recovery Center (SHRC), established in 2016, is a peer-to-peer based recovery resource center for adults and youth
affected by substance use disorder (SUD). Under the auspices of its parent organization. Granite Pathways; SHRC offers peer
mentoring and coaching.

Joined SHRC as a Volunteer in July, 2022 and was asked, in May 2023, to assume the part time role of Job Placement Specialist in
the organization's Job Launch program. Coach and mentor clients in various aspects of the job search process (resume
development, career decision making, application process, interviewing, etc.) as clients move back into the job market as the
next step in their recovery process. Continue coaching and mentoring clients to ensure success in their job and in their recovery.
Obtained licensure as a Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) in May, 2024.

Facing History and Ourselves (FHAO), Brookline, MA 2014-2021
Director of Program Operations and Regional Stijategy
FHAO is a non-profit organization focused on professional developmentfor educators with the mission ofengaging students in an
examination ofracism, prejudice, and anti-semitism to the development of a more humane and informed citizenry.

Established and directed the program strategic planning process, oversaw the regional office planning for headquarters and 8 US-
based and 2 international offices and execution of program goals, and worked to improve the program delivery, systems, and
processes. Led a team of 10 responsible for diverse functions throughout the organization (project management, DEI, business
development, educator support, regional program teams, etc.). I retired from Facing History and Ourselves in June, 2021.

National Association of Elementary School Princi
Associate Executive Director

)als (NAESP), Alexandria, VA 2013-2014

Directed a cross functional team tasked with the revitalization of NAESP's professional learning programs designed to meet
member and non-member development needs. Oversaw the organization's nationally recognized Principal Mentor program.
Annual Conference, National Principals Resource Center, and National Leadership Conference.

ASCD, Alexandria, VA
Managing Director and Interim Chief Program Development Officer

2011-2013

Led the strategic and operational direction of all ASCD's professional development efforts, including conferences and institutes,
long-term field-based work with slate, district, and school level leaders, and oversight of ASCD's $3,000,000 Gates Foundation
Grant. Total annual budget responsibility exceeded $15,000,000. In addition, I .assumed the additional executive level
responsibilities of Interim Chief Program Development Officer,
for 90+ professionals in the Program Development Unit.

accountable for a $43,000,000 revenue target and staff responsibility



•  Oversaw the design and development of the organization's entire portfolio of print and digital publishing products as well
as its face-to-face and virtual domestic and international programs and services.

•  Developed and executed ASCD's cross-functional program/product response to educational initiatives such as the Common
Core State Standards to meet the needs of state, district, and local level educators.

•  Planned and implemented a wide range of educational, strategic, and operational initiatives to support ASCD's mission,
including virtual and blended professional learning options, marketing/professional development collaboration, a broader
content acquisition strategy, and content-specific faculty recruitment/ development.

•  Maintained and developed relationships with educational thought leaders, subject matter experts, existing and aspiring
ASCD authors, and key business.and educational partners throughout the United States. '

Staff Development for Educators (SDE), Peterborough, NH 2002-2011
Director, New Program/Content Development |
SDE uw a nalionally recognized provider of professional development services and resources for the K-I2 market.

Directed the conceptualization, design, development, and delivery of multiple new SDE professional development projects valued
at $20,000,000 in annual sales and had direct responsibility forj 25+ in house and virtual staff plus a cadre of independent content
development contractors.

Advanced the development of the organization's public professional development program by managing teams to research, program,
and review more than 1,000 public programs annually throughout the United States and Canada.

Established a content development team that created a wide range of proprietary product suites and professional development options
including books, printed materials, in person training, and interactive digital offerings.

Maintained a.national educational consulting corps through the continued recruitment, development, and management of more, than
200 educational presenters, consultants, authors, subject matter experts, and thought leaders.

The Monadnock Training Council, Amherst, NH
The Training and Education Center of New England
Owner/President

1998-2002

1999-2002

Established strong partnerships with colleges and universities to develop and distribute graduate and undergraduate programs of
study for off-campus employee enrollment in businesses, service organizations, and community entities.

1994 to 1998

trainingfirm focusing on closing the achievement gapfor minority

The Efficacy Institute
Senior Consultant/ Trainer

The Efficacy institute is a nationally recognized consulting and
students, primarily in large urban school districts.

My work centered on the restructuring of leadership and instructional practices in client school districts with particular focus on the
use of data in classrooms to improve student outcomes.

Adams and Thayer, Inc.
Vice President/Senior Consultant

1986 to 1994

My work encompassed: assessments (including the MBTI and others), facilitation and consultation; the design and delivery of
outplacement consulting to middle and senior managers including interview preparation, career coaching, and resume preparation.

ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Previous positions include Director at The Learning Center of New Hampshire, and middle and high school English and
Language Arts Teacher in New Hampshire public schools.

EDUCATION

Post-Master's Degree Work (ABD), Policy Studies and' Program Administration Boston University Boston, MA
Master of Business Administration, Human Resource Management Rivier College Nashua, NH

Master.of Education, Reading Boston University Boston, MA
Bachelor of Arts, English University of New Hampshire Durham, NH



Justin Younger

Jvounger@gra'nitepathwavs.org

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Safe Harbor

CRSW, Recovery Specialist, Outreach, Volunteer Coordinator

Providing one on one Recovery Coaching session with members of Safe Harbor. I intake both walk ins and
appointments to become a member of Safe Harbor. I supervise the Volunteer program, and the volunteers, on
both their professional development track, and if they are looking to volunteer to help their community. I also
Coach \A/orking Feilds clients, as we are one of their partners. I attend any community resource meetings. I also
work with other partnering agencies in the area, by doing presentations about our services. Assist clients with
developing personal coping skills and strategies, and with identifying connections to sober support systems, and
any other resources they can utilize. Facilitate Narcan training to agencies in the area. Entering data with several
different software programs that are required by our funding organizations. I create and update policies and

procedures for Safe Harbor. I am also the head of Safe Harbors social media accounts and postings. I create
workflows for the team and myself. I also log all trackable items and create new trackers for the team. I work ,
with Microsoft TEAMS, Recovery Link, Single Stop,

Location- 865 Islington Street

Portsmouth, NH 03801

January 2023- Present

Turning Point Case Manager

Southeastern Services New Hampshire Drug and A

Location- 272 County Farm Rd, Dover NH 03820

May 2019-Present

Unite Us, and MMIS.

cohol Abuse Services

Provide case management assistance to clients in the low-intensity treatment program
Collaborate with the treatment team to provide clients with individualized case management and treatment

plans

Assist clients with developing personal coping-skills and strategies

Assist clients with identifying connections to sober support systems, including introduction to the 12-step
recovery process

Assist clients with improving relationships and communication with family and other primary supports

Facilitate and create daily programming groups fotj the clients
Ensure clients follow all program rules and regulations

Observed, recorded, and reported on treatment, behavior, and progress of clients

Assist in establishing and implementing agency pojides and procedures
Maintain records of clinical work per the standards of the profession using the \A/ITS operating system

Integrated Delivery Network Case Manager

Southeastern Services New Hampshire Drug and A

Dover NH

April 2018-May 2019

cohol Abuse Services



Assisted patients with the transition from a hospitalized setting into substance abuse treatment

programs

Responded to client requests and concerns

Educated hospital employees about recovery resources, including medication assisted treatment, SUD
outpatient and lOP services, mental health treatment providers and primary care doctors

Collaborated with IDN staff and treatment team members

Addiction Recovery Center (ARC) Residential Assistant

Southeastern Services New Hampshire Drug and Alcohol Abuse Services

Dover NH

September 2016-April 2018

Facilitated and helped create psycho-educational groups

Ensure clients follow all program rules and regulations

Observed, recorded, and reported on treatment, behavior, and progress of clients

Helped provide clients with the knowledge and skills needed to achieve a stable.recovery

Observed medication calls

Maintained records per the standards of the profession using the WITS operating system

Assisted with training new employees

Floor Manager

Bonfire Recovery

Dover, NH

September 2014-March 2016

Observed, recorded, and reported on treatment, Behavior, and progress of residents
Help the residents accountable for their behaviors

Assigned the chores and other duties to residents

EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Recovery Support Worker-as of October 2018-Prest

Certified Recovery Coach-as of April 2018

CPR Certifled-as of September 2019

Narcan Trained-January 2016

Central High School Diploma 2002



NH Department of Health and Human Services

i  ■
KEY PERSONNEL

j

f

List those primarily responsible for meetingthe terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

I

Contractor Name: Granite Pathways

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL SALARY

Whitney Brown Program Director , $16,537.97 $65,149.58

Teresa Varney Recovery Employment Specialist $32,548.83 $38,466.79

Edward Milliken Recovery Employment Specialist $17,051.65 $20,151.95

Justin Younger Recovery Specialist $4,128.33 $48,789.41

TBD Recovery Employment Specialist $18,747.22 $45,760.00

1 $0.00 $0.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
•  I

DEPARTMENT'of HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

pmSlON FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

1» PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-27I-9544 l.S0O4S2:334S ExL'9544
Fax: ̂^271-4331' TDD Accw: l-80(Iu73S^29M www.dhhs.nh.80v

September 1, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Ghiistopher T. Sununu
andthe Honprabte Council

State House
Concord,' New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize.lhe Department of Health and Human Seivices, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into Sole Source amendments to existing contracts, which were originally competitively
bid,' with the Contractors listed below to continue providing Workforce Readiness arid Vpcatibnal
Training Programs for iridividuals with bpioid and/or stimulant use disorder, by increasing the total
price limitation by $316.060-from $1,164,936 to $1,480,936 and by ejrtending the completion
dStes from Septernber 29, 2023't'o September.29, 2024, effective September 29, 20^3 upon
Governor and CburidI approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Contractor

Name

..yendor
C^e

Area Served Current

Amount .
.  t .

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

GSC

Approval

0:08/14/19
(Item #10)'

Archways
310168-
8001

Greater Tilton

Area-
$481,063 $130,000 $611,063

A1:,02/17/21

(ItemiKO)

A2:10/13/21

(Item #35)

A3: 11/02/22
(Item #18)

0:09/18/19

(ltem#19).

Granite
Pathways

228900-
Bppi

Statewide $683,873 $186,000 $869,873

:A1: 02/17/21
(Item #20)

A2: .10/13/21
(Item #35)

A3: 11/02/22

(Item #18)

Total; $1,164,936 $316,000 $1,460,636

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024'and 2025,-with
"the authority to adjust budget^linV iterns vyiltiin the price limitation and encurnbrarices between
state flsMl years through the Office, if needed and justified.



Hi&ExceMency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu ' '
and the Honorable Coundl

Page 2 of 2

See attach^ fiscal details.
explanation

♦  1

This request is Sole Source because the Department is requesting to extend the
contracts, which were originally competitively bid, beyond the completion dates and there are no
renewal options available. Due to the limited timeframe between the funding notification from the
Federal awarding agency and the contract expiration date, there are no known viable alternatives
to these Contractors, who have expertise with worlcfoi^ readiness programs that are specifically
tailored for individuals with opioid and/or stimulant use disorders. This request will allow the
Contractors to continue to serve current participants without gaps or delays in service and avoid
reduced or loss of access to these critical supports.

The purpose of this request Is for the Contractors to continue providing vocational training
supports and worldorce readiness programs for individuais with opioid and/or stimulant use
disorders who are in treatment and recovery Isettings, and who are seeking to join or re-join the
workforce. In coordination with the Recovery Friendly Workplace Initiative, which empowers
workplaces to provide support for individuals! recoveiing from substance use disorder, services
provided through the contracts support individuals in attaining gainful employment, which is a
critical aspect of continued recovery.

Approximately 100 individuals will be served from September 29, 2023 to September 29.
2024, who, on average, engage with the vocational training supports and workforce readiness
programs 300 days during the ohesyear pjeriod.

The Contractprs will continue Integrating workforce readiness programming into treatment
and recovery settings, including creating vockional profiles in order to determine an individual's
skill level, strengths, and readiness to gain 'employment. The Contractors will continue linking
individuals to appropriate vocational trainings by providing training stipends arid other resources
that assist the individuals on the path to employment. Vocational training includes providing
assistance with resume writing, completing job applications, and improving interviewing skills.

The Department vyill continue to monitor services through the review of monthly data
reports and periodic surveys.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request. Individuals in
recovery seeking a better quality of life and ernployment opportunities would have limited options.
Workforce participation and consistent employment are critical components of an individual's
ability to remain in recovery and gainfully participate in their communities.

Area served; Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.788, FAIN's H79TI081885.
H79TI083326,' H79T1085759, and TBD

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds vrill not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

(v-'

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The DeparOiienl 0/Health and Human Seruieet'Miuhn is to /om communities and fonuliu
in-providing opportunities for ci^nJ to achieve and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEAlTH ANO HUMAN SERVICES
FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS;

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, SOR GRANT

100% Federal Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title • Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

.2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057040 $70,081.00 $0.00 $70,081.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services. 92057040 $27,748,00 $0.00 . $27,748.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $29,234.00 $0.00 $29,234.00

2021 • 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $66,667.00 $0.00 $66,667.00

2022 ■  102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $33,333.00 $0.00 $33,333.00

2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $93,000.00 $0.00 $93,000.00

2023 074r500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $31,000.00 $0.00 $31,000.00

2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $97,500,00 . . $0.00 $97,500.00

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance .  92057059 $32,500.00 $97,500.00 $130,000.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $0.00 $32,500.00 $32,500.00

Sub Total $481,063.00 $130,000.00 $611,063.00

Vendor Name Granite Path\vays Vendor # 228900 '

State Fiscal

• Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

•2020 102-500731 Cohtracts for Program Services 92057040 $72,683.00 $0.00 $72,683.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services .  92057040 $45,338.00 $0.00 $45,338.00

2021 • 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057046 $43,852.00 $0.00 $43,852.00

2021 .102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 92057048 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services •  92057048 ■ $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

^2022 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rel 92057048 $139,500.00 $0.00 $139,500.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for- Pub Asst and Rel' 92057048 • $46,500.00 $0.00 $46,500.00

2023 074-500589 ■ Welfare Assistance 92057059 $139,500.00 $0.00 $139,500.00

"  2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 •  $46,500.00 $139,500.00 $186,000.00

2025 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057059 $0.00 $46,500.00 $46,500.00

Sub Total $683,873.00 $186,000.00 $869,873.00

Overall Totall .$1.164.936.001 $316.000.001 $1.480.936.00!

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Hunian Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for Individuals with
Opioid and/or Stimulant Use Disorder contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Granite Pathways ("the
-Contractor"). - ■ .

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Con ract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 18, 2019 (Item #19), as amended on February 17,' 2021 (Item #20), as amended on October
13. 2021 (Item #35). and as amended on November 2. 2022 (Item #18), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and »••• •■

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract rhay be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation and ^modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
September 29, 2024'

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read: .
$869,873

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Robert W.. Moore, Director

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services by replacing it in Its entirety with Exhibit A, Amendment #4,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. to
read:

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Federal funds from the. State Opipid Response Grant, by
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse arid Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA), Ass\s\ed Listing Number (ALN) 93.788, as awarded on:

09/30/2018, FAIN H79TI081685;

09/30/2020, FAIN H79TI083326;
I

08/09/2021. FAIN H79TI083326; ,

09/23/2022. FAIN H79T1085759: and

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

'1.4.

T.5. Date and FAIN TBD pending receipt of the Notice of Award from SAMHSA, which is
anticipated to .be effective 9/30/2023.

6. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment,- Section 3, to
read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement, basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreemerit, and-shall be in accordance with the approved linftrlt^, as

*  specified in Exhibit B-i Budget througti Exhibit B-11, Amendment #4, SOR III Budgfe
Granite Pathways A-S-jl.2 ■ Contractor Initials ;
RFP-2019-8DAS-12-WORKF-01-A04 Page1of4 Date
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1

7. .Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #1. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 5,
..Subsection 5.1. Paragraph 5.1.3, Subparagraph 5.1.3.1, to add Parts 5.1.3.1.9 through 5.1.3.1.11,
"as follows:

■ 4.1.3.1.9. Promotional items Including, but not limited to. clothing and commemorative items
with added logos for distribution to clients and the community, including but not limited
to. pens, mugs/cups, folders/folios, lanyards, and conference bags. See 45 CFR

•  75.421(e)(3) ■ I
4.1.3.1.10. Direct payments to individbals to enter treatment or continue to participate in

prevention or treatment services. See 42 U.S.C. § I320a-7b

4.1.3.1.11. Sterile needles or syringes for the hypodermic injection of any illegal drug.

8. Add Exhibit 8-10, Amendment #4, SOR ill Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

9. Add Exhibit 8-11. Amendment #4. SOR
reference herein.

j Budget, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by

•; • (

Granite Pathways

RFP.2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A04

A-S-1.2
1

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Iniliats

Date!^^
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All. terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by.this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective September 29, 2023, upon Governor and
Council approval. |

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below.
I  . -

' ' State of New Hampshire " ~
Department of Health and Human Services

9/5/2023

Date

9/5/2023

Date

~0«CuSl9n*4 bjr

FOX

Title: Director

I.:
Granite Pathways

vlarne;^"'^^^ srezenoff
Title:- Authori zed Representati ve

Granite Pathways

RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A04

A-S-j1.2
Page 3 of 4.
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. . ' ' . I

;  1

OFF CE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

9/5/2023

Date

-^•OocuSiontd by:

^=7i»n*ffnpTTOr— :
^lamentooyn Cuanno

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: J {date of meeting)

OFF CE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Granite Pathways

RFP.2019-BOAS-12-WORKF.01.A04

A-S-1.2
I

Page 4 of 4
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i

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for Individuals with OUD

Exhibit A Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance.
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date..

1.2. the Contractor agrees that, to,the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact
on the Services described herein, the Slate Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements.under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the ■ purposes ■ of this Agreement, the Department has identified' the
Contractor as a Subrecipient, iri accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

■1.4. The Contractor shall provide Workforce Readiness and Vqcational Training
Programs for a minimum of one hundred (100) individuals with Opioid Use
Disorder and Stimulant Use Disorder (OUD/StimUD) in the Seacoast region.

2. Scope of Services t
2.1. The Contractor shall ensure individuals who participate in Workforce

Readiness and Vocational Training programs are referred to treatment and
recovery services when applicable.

2.2 The Contractor shall provide workforce readiness programrriing to individuals
with OUD/StimUD who are receiving treatment or recovery support services.
The Contractor shall ensure workforce readiness programming includes, but is
not limited to:

2.2.1.

2.2.2.

2.2.3.

2.2.4.

2.2.5.

2.2.6.

2.2.7.

2.2.8.

2.2.9.

2.2.10.

Job specific skills training.

Resume and cover letter assistance.

Communication skills.

Time management ski Is.

Budgeting and financial management skills.
Customer service training.

Job retention approaches.

Networking skills.

Application and interview assistance, including mock interviews.
Connections to employment resources.

Granite Pathways

RFP-201S-BDAS-12-WORKF-01 ■A64

"Exhibit A -Amendment #4

Page 1 ol10

Contractor Initials

Date
9/S/2023



OocuSIgn Envelope ID: 9EE25EAA-4O2p-44Bd-867F-S7O46FB0B8dE {

I  j
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for Individuals with OUD j

Exhibit A-iAmendment #4

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure the facility is open weekdays from 8;30 am,
Eastern Standard Time (ESJ), until each evening's programming ends and on
Saturdays from 8:00 am untir2:30 prri (EST).

2.4. The Contractor shall recruit indij/iduals through methods, that include, but are
not limited to: j

" 2.4.1. Social media. . j •

2.4.2. Regional Providers. i
I

2.4.3. Doorways.

2.4.4. Community members, i

2.4.5. Employer groups.

2.5. The ■ Contractor shall implement a process to identify, recruit and engage
individuals with an OUD/StimUD, including individuals not currently receiving
services from the Contractor, who may be interested in pursuing employment
and/or educational opportunities or who may be underemployed and are
seeking a living wage. . |

2.6. The Contractor shall screen potential center participants with OUD/SlimUD
who are unemployed, underemiDloyed or seeking to make a career transition-
and schedule same .day appointments, when available, with the Employment
Specialist to initiate the intake process. .

2.7. ■ The Contractor shall provide information regarding its workforce, job placement.
and e,mployer education and sujiport programs via mailings and presentations
to community partners through meetings and other relevant forums to describe
its workforce program and to prbmote the quality of its labor pool.

2:8. The Contractor shall refer participants to treatment to and/or accept referrals
from:

. 2.8.1. Treatment providers.

2.8.2. Recovery housing for niolhers and children.

2.8.3. Other recovery houses In their region.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure all participants are advised, informed or made
aware of all services available, including but not limited to:

' " 2.9.1. Recovery housing.

2.9.2. Aftercare services.

2.9.3. Employnient support services.

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure all services are provided in a manner that
demonstrates operations are managed according to the five (5) tenants oj^:"

Aa
Granite Palhsvays ' ^Exhibit A-Amendment #4 Contractor iniUals

9/5/2023
RFP-2019-BDAS-12-WORKF-01-A04 Page 2 of 10 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Workforce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs
for Individuals with OUD j

•' Exhibit A- Amendment #4

2.10.1. Urgency.

. 2.10.2. Ownership.

,2.10.3. Learn by.doing.

2.10.4. Lifelong learning.

2.10.5. Motivation through productivity.

2.11. The Contractor shall accept evaluation results from referring providers and
have an intake process that includes the following:

2.11.1. Psychosocial evaluation;

2.11.2. Career essentials review; and

2.11.3. Comprehensive service plan. - • : •

2.12. The Contractor shall determine appropriate,level of program engagement and
activities for each participant based on a comprehensive intake/assessment
process, current life circumstances, and current level of treatment. If any, which
may include:

2.12.1. Recent intensive treatrjnent defined as fifteen (15) or more hours per
week that results in an individual being assigned to receive V^prk

'■ Readiness 101/Career Exploration services.

treatment defined as less than 15 hours per
an individual receiving concurrent workforce

readiness activities and treatment hours erisuring workforce activities
are scheduled in consideration of the participant's treatment schedule
to avoid any scheduling conflicts.

I  •

2.12.3. No active treatment that results in the individual t)eing placed on a fast-
track ensuring other ancillary barriers to employment are addressed
and accelerated suite of job preparation services are provided to move
individuals rapidly to job placement.

2.13. The Contractor shall ensure serjvices are offered in a flexible manner in multiple
modalities including, but not limited to:
-2.13.1. Instructor led, .class-based training.

2.13.2. Group-based activities^
2.13.3. 'One-on-one training sessions.

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure individuals are enrolled in other services and
■  supports that aid individuals in ijecoveiy who are seeking to enter the workforce

for which they are eligible, as appropriate, including, but not limited to;

2.12.2. Current non-intensive
we.ek, that results in

Granite .Pathways
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Exhibit A- Amendment #4

2.14.1. The Community Develbpment Finance Authority Recovery Friendly
Workplace Initiative Program Development Pilot.

2.14.2. The' NH Department of Labor National Health Emergency
Demonstration grant for individuals in recovery.

2.14.3. The Governor's Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative.

2.14.4. NH Works.

2.14.5. NH Employment Security.

2.15. The Contractor shall provide Power of Possible Work Readiness curriculum,
which includes but is not limited to:

2.15.1. Access to 240 hours of job search/job readiness content via FedCap
Academy, an online web-based learning management tool available
24 hours a day/7 days a week.

2.15.2. Participation in employer-led mock interviews.

,2:15.3. 60 hours of dynamicj instruction and time management activities
designed to produce "employer ready" job seekers.

■ 2.15.4. Get Hired! j
2.15.5. Exploring My Opporturiities.

2.15.6. Power Interviewing.

2.15.7. Power of Personality. !

2.15.8. Positive Mel j'
2.16. The Contractor shall utilize Siipgle Stop USA to determine if an individual is

.  eligible for Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), Women,
Infants, and Children (WIC). Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC) or Child Care
Tax Credit (CTC). health insurance, and/or Low Income Energy Assistance.

2.17. The Contractor shall collaborate with local" higher educational and vocational
training iristitulions.in order to identify and provide vocational training and
educational opportunities to individuals in the treatment and/or recovery service
setting. .

2.18. The Contractor shall conduct a comprehensive vocational assessment to
determine an individual's level|of skills, strengths, and readiness to seek and
enter the workforce ensuring the process Is based on a person-centered focus
grounded in individual choice and self-determination.

2.19. The Contractor shall utilize Diagnostic Vocational Evaluation (DVE) for
conducting vocational assessments. DVE is an assessment provided to
individuals to determine the fol owing: ■

I

-Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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Exhibit-A Amendment #4

2.19.1. Vocational interests; '
I

:  . 2.19.2. Aptitudes; i
I  «

.  2.19.3. Skills; , |
2.19.4. Capabilities; and |

2.19.5. Educational attainment levels. .

2.20. The Contractor shall utilize the ̂ ocatipnal assessment and participant inputs to
design individual vocational plans of action that include appropriate levels of
services and resources, including but not limited to:

,2.20.1. Resume writing.

2.20.2. Job application writing.

2.20.3. Improving client interviewing skills.

2.20.4. Motivational interviewing to increase a client's willingness and
readiness to seek education or employment opportunities may also be
required. ;.^ |

2.21. The Contractor shall ensure alii staff are trained in Motivational Enhancement
Techniques (MET), which inclucies but is not liniited to:

2.21.1. Open-ended Question, Affirmations. Reflective Listening and
Summarizing (OARS).

2.21.2. Four Motivational Interj/iewing principles: Express Empathy. Roll with
Resistance, Support Self-efficacy, and Develop Discrepancy.

I
•2.22. The Contractor shall ensure individuals are assessed for and. receive, 'as

approp'riate: |
\

2.22.1. Financial assistance for transportation to classes.

2.22.2. Educational supplies, including but not limited to textbooks, as
necessary.

2.22.3. Access to computers and support for electronic job search functions.
■|

2.23. The Contractor shall establishjan employment plan for each participant that
addresses previous barriers to employment, including but not limited to:

2.23.1. Poor job history.
2.23.2. Substance use disorder impacting performance.

2.23.3. Criminal background.
2.24. The Contractor shall provide individuals with external employment resources

and assist with gaining access; to employment through activities that include,
but are not limited to: 1 . ^os

Aa

- Amendmenl #4 Conlractor Initials ^ —■■■
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2.24.1. Providing transportatioh assistance to job fairs.

2;24.^2. Providing opportunities to meet with job coaches.

2.24.3. Providing individuals \A/ith job-shadowing and internship opportunities.
I  • .

2.25. The Contractor shall ensure individuals seeking vocational training or career
development education are prpvided with resources that support those goals,
including but not limited to; | . . ; _
,2.25.1. Training and.class stipends.

2.25.2. Financial aid and grant applications.

2.25.3. Program application submission assistance.

2.26. The Contractor shall coordinate with the Recovery Friendly Workforce Initiative
■  to offer opportunities for local businesses to engage with potential employees
in recovery as a means to reduce ,stigma, identify employment opportunities,
and increase the number of businesses identifying as Recovery Friendly.

2.27. The Contractor shall utilize a s'ectpr-based approach to job development and
.  target a diverse range of businesses ensuring activities include, but are not

limited to: '
i

2.27.1. Conducting personalized initial outreach to a business' hiring
managers. ■ .

2.27.2. Explaining the purpose and benefits of the Initiative, including but not
limited to financial incentives that are available.

;  2.27.3. Requesting a meetin'g to explore the possibility of enlisting the
business in the effort.

2.28. The Contractor shall educate employers on services available to them for hiring
individuals which shall include,|but is not-limited to:
2.28.1." State's transitional benefits.

2.28.2. Support with transportation.

2.28.3. Retention case management.

platform.2.28.4. Personal developmen

2.28.5. Fedcap Academy.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the Program Director manages the day-to-day
program operations which includes, but is not limited to:

3.1.1. '.Contracts. j

3.1.2. Space.

Granite Pathways ' Exhibit J-Amendment #4 Contractor Initials,
•  ' • * 9/5/2023
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3.1.3. Human resources. f

-3.1.4. B.udgeting-. | . ;
3.1.5. Ensuring efficiency of workflow.

i  . • ■

3.1.6. Ensuring implementation and operation of all program services arid
operations.

3.2. The Contractor shall ensure the Employment Specialist job duties include, but
are not limited to: . '

3.2.1. Administering intakes and assessments. >■

3.2.2. Coordinating employm|ent-related activities and offsite trainings.
3.2.3. Providing barrier remediation services.
i.2A. Providing employment and training related activities and supportive

services in a classroorp environment.

3.3. The Contractor shall ensure I the Job Developer identifies, develops and
maintains relationships with employers in order to create employment or on-
the-job/job shadowing opporturjiities for individuals.

4. Reporting j
4.1. The Contractor shall submit monttjily data requirements reports to the Department

on the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month in a format approved by
the Department for programs including, but not limited to:

4.1.1. Number and type of recruitment activities for individuals with an
OUD/StimUD.

4.1.2. Number of individuals in the program with demographics such as age,
gender, race, and ethriicity.

4.1.3. Vocational services provided per individual.

4.1.4. Start date of emploympr^t per individual.
4.1.5. Type of position per individual.

4.1.6. Nameof employers per individual.

,4.1.7. Length of employmen

4.1.8. Number of employers

per individual.

recruited per month.

, 4.1.9. Types of supports provided to employers to recruit, hire, and retain
individuals in recovery per month.

4.2. The Contractor shall prepare and submit ad hoc data reports, respond to
periodic surveys, and other data collection requests as deemed necessary by

-OS

Granite Pathways A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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the Department and/or Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration (SAMHSA). !

I •

5. Performance Measures j
5.1. The Contractor shall ensure ninety percent (90%) of individuals complete

provided training programs. I
5.2. The Contractor shall ensure seventy-five percent (75%) of individuals gain

employment. ^ 1
5.3. The Contractor shall ensure contact and coordination with one hundred percent

(100%) of Recovery Friendly VVorkforce Initiative employers.
5.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to enhance contract

rhanagerrient, improve results and adjust program delivery and policy based onsuccessful outcomes. j
6. State Opioid Response (SOR) brant Standards

6.1. The Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral '
agreements with the DoorwayS] in compliance with all applicable confidentiality
laws, including 42 CFR Part 2 in order to receive payments for services funded .
with SOR resources. ,

6.2. The Contractor shall ensure all referrals of individuals to the Doorways are;
6.2.1. Completed and docuniented in the individual's file; and

6.2.2. Available to the Department as requested and as needed for payment
of invoices for services provided through SOR-funded initiatives.

6.3. The Contractor shall ensure individuals receiving services, rendered from SOR
funds, have a documented history or current diagnoses of OUD/StimUD or are'
at risk for such.

6.4. The Contractor shall coordinate completion of Government Performance
Results Act (GPRA) initial interview and associated follow-ups at six (6) months
and discharge for individuals referenced previously.

6.5. The Contractor shall ensure that SOR grant funds are not used to purchase,
prescribe, or provide cannabisi or to provide treatment-using cannabis. The
Contractor shall ensure: ' I
6.5.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of OUD/StimUD.

6.5.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual who or organization
that provides or permits cannabis use for the purposes of treating
substance use or mental health disorders; and ;

- Amendmenl #4 Contractor InitialsGranite Pathvyays Exhibit A
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6.5.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and
Memorandums of UndeVstanding that receive SOR funding.

6.6. The Contractor shall ensure Naloxone kits are available to individuals utilizing
SOR funding. j . '

6.7. If the Contractor intends to distribute test strips, the Contractor shall provide a
test strip utilization plan to the Department for approval prior to implementation.

■ The Contractor shall ensure thej utilization plan includes, but is not limited to:

6.7.1. Internal policies for fhejdistribution of strips;
67.2. Distribution methods and frequency; and

6.7.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

6.8. The Contractor shall provide services as referenced in Section .2 to eligible
individuals who:

6.8.1. Receive Medication forjOpioid Use Disorder (MOUD) services from
other providers, including the individual's primary care provider;

6.8.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; or

6.8.3. Are on medications ani are taking those medications as prescribed
regardless of the class^of medication.

*6.9. The Contractor shall ensure incJividuals who refuse to consent to information
sharing with the Doorways do riot receive services utilizing SOR funding.

6;10. the Contractor shall ensure individuals who rescind consent to information
sharing with the Doorways do not receive any additional services utilizing SOR
funding. , j.

6.11.. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR funded
. Contractors, as requested andldirected by the Department, to improve GPRA

collection- j
6.12. The Contractor shali comply with all appropriate Department, State of NH.

Substance Abuse and Mental ikealth Services Administration (SAMHSA). and
other Federal terms, conditions, and requirements, and as amended, and shall

.  collaborate with the Departmerit to understand the aforesaid. ^

6.13. In order to receive payments for services provided through SOR grant funded
initiatives, the Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral
agreements with all Regional Hubs for substance use services that comply with
all applicable confidentiality lavys; including.42 CFR Part 2.

client' referrals to applicable Regional Hubs for
wo (2) business days of a client's admission to

6.14. The Contractor shall complete
substance use services within

the program. •

Granite Pathways Exhibit A —Amendment #4 Contractor Initials.
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6.15. The Contractor shall provide the; Department \wtth timelines and Implementation
plans associated with SOR funded activities to ensure services are in place
within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date.

6.15.1. If the Contractor is unable to offer services within the required
•  timeframe, the Contractor shall submit an updated implementation
plan to the Department for approval to outline anticipated service start
dates. -

6.15.2. The Department reserves the right to terminate the contract and
liquidate unspent funds if services are not in place within ninety (90)
days of the contract effective date.

Granite Pathways
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Naw Kampshiro Dapartmanl of Health and Human Servicoa

Comp/ete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: Granfto Pathways

Budget Request for: Workforce Readiness & yocaf/onafPrpgems for
Indh/kiuals wHh OUD

Budget Period Sf y24-(5opfembo/- 30, 2073'June 30. 2024)

indirect Cost Rate (If apjiilcablo) 6%

Line Item
Program Coat •

Funded by DHHS

Program Cost •
Contractor Share/

Match

TOTAL Progrem

Cost

see. ISO so

1 ■ Satary & Weoes

S86.150

2. Fringe Benefits S28.291 SO S29.291

3. Consultants Si .600 SO S1.800

4. Equipment Si .250 SO SI.250

5.(a) Supplies- Educational S731 SO $731

5.(bl Supplies • Leb SO SO SO

5.(0) Supplies • Pharmacy SO SO SO

5.(d) SuppBes • Medical SO SO SO

5.(e) Supplies Office S450 SO S450

6. Travel S950 SO $950

7. Software •S500 SO SSOO

8. (a) Other • Marketing/Communications

8. (b) Other - Education and Traininp- siaff

8. (c) Other • Other (please specify)

SSOO SO $500

$515 SO S51S

hsurence SI .200 SO Si .200

Occupancy S8.640 SO $8,640

Other (please spedfy) SO $0 SO

Other (pfease spodfy) SO SO SO

9. Subcontracts SO SO SO

Total Direct Coats $131,977 S7.500 S139.477

Total Indirect Costa S7.523 SO S7.523

TOTAL S139,SOO S7.500 $147,000

P^e 1 of 1

Contractor IfxtlalsGi'itlaleV

.Date
9/5/2025
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services -
)

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name; GranHo Pathways
: Budqet Request for: Workforce Readiness & Vocaftona/Proga/ns for

1 Individuals with

y. Budget Period 7, 2024-Sepfember 29, 2024/

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 5-7% across both budget periods for entire amendment total '
f

Lino item '
1

Program Cost -

Funded by DHHS

Program Cost -
Contractor Shar^

Match

TOTAL Program

Cost

<«• f

1. Salary & Waqea i •'=
S28.81t SO $28,811

2. Fringe BeneHts 'i S9.796 $0 $9:796

3. Consultants i $400 $0 $400

4. Equipment 1 $500 SO $500
*-

S.(a) Supplies - Educational 1 $200 $0 $200

5.(b> Supplies - Lab 1 $0 SO '  SO

5.(0) Supplies ■ Pharmacv 1 .  SO SO $0

5.(d) SuppBes - Medical' . ^ 1 $0 $0 SO

5.(e) Suppfies Office 1 $250 SO $250

6. Travel 1 $306 SO '  $306

7. SoftviQre • •' 1 $200 ■  SO $200

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communicaibns 1 SO SO $0

8. (b) Other-Education end Tralnina 1 $250 SO $250

8. (c) Other - Other (ptease spedM 1

Insurance ! $400 so $400

Occupancy " 1 $2,880 so $2,880

Other (please soedfy) 1 SO so $0

Other (please soedM 1 SO so SO

9. Subcontracts 1 SO so . SO

Total Direct Costs $43,993 so $43,993

Total Indirect Costs $2,508 S2.500 $5,008

1  TOTAL $46,500 $2,500 $49,000

Page 1 ol ̂

GiContractor Initials^"' ■

9/5/2023
03te_



0CT19'22 will:02 RCVD

L«fi Ai SblfaiBcac

CoeinUiioocr

Kaiji & Fe«
Dir«(t«r

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHrRE

department of health and RUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORaL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREGrr, CONCORD, NH 03301

603<271.9344 I-B00-452-334S EiL 9S44

F«x:«C3-27l-4332! TDD A(cm: I-800-735-2964 wwwAhhKoh.gor

October 11. 2022

8

His Exceltency, Gov6rr>or Christopher T. Sunuhu
and the Honorable Council I

State House |Concord, New Hampshire 03301 |
^  REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health anil Hurhan Services, Division for Behavioral Health, to
enter Into Retroactive, Sole Source amendments to existing contracts with the Contractors listed
below to continue providing Wolldorce Readiness and Vocational Training Programs for individuals
with opioid and/or stimulant use disorder, by increasing the total price limitation by $316,000 from
$848,936 to $1,164,936 and by extending the completion dates from September 29, 2022 to
September 29. 2023, effective retroactive to| September 29. 2022 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds. '

The individual contracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below.

Contractor

Name

Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Arhouht
1

tncrease

(Decreaao)
' Revised'

.Amount

G&C

Approval

Archways
(FKA: Greater

Tilton Area
Family

Resource

Center)

297434-

R001

Greater Tilton
Area

[
1

.  1$351.083
. I

1  ..

$130,000 $481,063

0:08/14/19

(ItemAlO)

A1:02/17/21

(item 020)

A2;10/13/21

(Item 035)

Granite

Pathways,
Concord NH

228900-

B001
Statewide

.

$497,873 $186,000 $683,873

0. 09/18/19

(Item 019)

A1:02/17/21

(Item 020)

A2:10/13/21
(Item 035)

Total: |$e48,936 $316,000 $1,164,936

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability arid continued appropriation of funds
in the future operating budget, with (he authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation
.and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed, and justified.

See attached fiscal details.



Hi's ExMllency. Governor Chriatopher T. SuAunu
. and (he KonoraWo Council -

Page 2 of 2 j • .

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the Department was notified by the Federal awarding
agency on September 23, 2022 of the availability of funding beyond the current contract completion
date of September 29, 2022. Due to the delayed notification from the Federal awarding agency, the
Department was unable to present this request to the Governor and Council prior to the contract
expiring. - j _

This request is Sole Source because the Department Is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion dates and there are rio renewal options available. Due to the limited
timeframe between the funding notification from the Federal avrarding agency and the contract
expiration date, the Department was not able to re-procure for these services. Any delays or gaps
in service provision may result in reduced or (osis cf access to services ar)d supports for Individuals
In need of these critical services. {

t

The purpose'of this request is for the Contractors to continue providing vocational training
supports and workforce readiness programs for individuals wHh opioid and/or stimulant use disorders
v^o are in treatment and recovery settings and ̂ o are seeking to join and/or re-join the workforce.
In coordination with tha Recovery Friendly Workplace Initiative, v^lch empowers workplaces to
provide support for people recovering from substance use disorder, services provided through the
contracts support indiviijuals in attaining gainful employment, which is a critical aspect of continued
recovery.

Approximately 400 individuals will be served from September 29. 2022 to September 29.
2023. -

The Contractors vdll continue integrating workforce readiness prograrrirtiing into treatment
and recovery settings, including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an indryiduars skill
level, strer^hs, and readiness to gain employment. The Contractors will continue linking individuals
to appropriate vocational trainings by providing training stipends and other resources that assist the
individuals on the path to employment. Vocational training includes providir>g assistance with resume
writing, completing Job applications, and Improving interviewing skills.

The Department will continue to monitor eervices through the review of data reports and
periodic surveys. |

Should the Governor arid Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals in recovery
seeklr>g a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options. Workforce
participation and corisistent employment are critical components of an individual's ability to remain
In recovery and meaningfully participate in theirjcommunities.

Area served: Statewide. j
Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAIN #H79TI085769

lr> the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.. | •.

"Respectfully submitted.

tori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

TV OtpQrtmtnl of Health and Human Seru'icei' Mitiion istafoin cammunitiit ondfanUUn
in pnuidingepfiortiiniiiti/orcilittnt ta achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

•; FISC/^ DETAILS SHEET

OS.92.92.920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT.

HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES, SOR GRANT
100% Federal Funds !

Vendor Nacn '  Archways V Vendor 297434 ; .

Stale Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title 3ob Number Current Amount

(nc/ease

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92057040 S70.081.00 SO.OO $70,061.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 92057040 527.746.00 $0.00 $27,748.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Proorom SoiMcos 92057046 S29.234.00 •  $0.00 $29,234.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Prooram Services 92057048 ' S66.667.00 SO.OO $66,667.00

2022 .102-500731 Contracts (or Prooram Services 92057048 S33.333.00 $0.00 $33,333.00

2022 074-500565 Grants for Pub Asst end Re» 92057048 S93.000.00 SO.OO S93.000.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub AssI and Rei 920S7048 S31.000.00 $0.00 $31,000.00

2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057058 SO.OO $97,500.00 S97,500.00

2024 074-500569 Wetfare Assistance 92057056 SO.OO $32,500.00 $32,500.00

Sub Total $351,063.00 $130,000.00 $481,063.00

Vendor Nem.  , GranitePadiways ' ' Vendor 228900

State Fiscdl

Year
Class / Account Class Title Joy^umber Current Arrwunl

Increase -

(Decrease)
Revised Amouni

2020 102-500731 Conlracts for Prooram Services ; 92057040 S72683.00 90.00 .  $72,663.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 1 92057040 S45.336.00 $0.00 $45,338.00

2021 102-500731 . Contracts for Proqram Services 1 92057048 •  S43.652.00 $0.00 $43,852.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Program Services 1 92057046 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2022 102-500731 Conlracts (or Prooram Services 1 92057046 $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

2022 074-500565 Grants for Pub Asst end Rei 1 9205704B $139,500.00 SO.OO $139,500.00

2023 074-500585 Grants for Pub Asst and Rei 1 92057046 $46,500.00 $0.00 $46,500.00

2023 074-500569 Welfare Assistance 1 92057058 $0.00 $139:500.00 $139,500.00

2024 074-500589 Wetfare Assistance i 92057056 SO.OO $46,500.00 $46,500:00

Sub Total 1 $497,873.00 $186,000.00 S683.673.00

[  Overall To»l| $d48.936.00| $316.000.00| $1.164.936.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Oetall

[Page 1 of 1
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
!

DtVlSlOn FORBBHAVtORAL HEALTH

L^A.SbtWMni
CoastntaKr

KatJt&roB
. Dtrcflsr

U9 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH OUOl
60^27I.9S44 l40&4S^^34S£lt 9S44

TDD Acctii: I.600-T35-2964 .dhbt.Ot.£OV

September 3. 2021

His ExceHency. Governor ChristophorT. Sur^rtu
and the Honorable Counci)

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

.  Authorize the Department of Health end Human Servloes, DMsloo for Behavioral Health,
to amend existing contracts vAth the vendors listed below to continue providing Wortrforce
Readrness and Vocational Training Prograrns for Individuals with Opioid end/or Stimulant Use
Disorder, by exercising renewal options by IncreMing the total price limitation by $310,000 from
$538,936 to $846,'936 and by extending the completion dates from September 29, 2021 to
September 29.2022 affecbve upon Governdr and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The Indivldua) contrecte were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below. . . .

Vor^dorNamo Vondor
Coda

Aroa Served ;  Current
1  Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revteod

Amount

G&C

Approval

Greater TUton

Area Family
Resource

Center.
Tillon/NH

297434-

ROOi

Greater Tinon

Area
1  $227,063 $124,000

f

$351,063

0:08/14/19 .

Item 010

Al:02/1.7/21
Item 020

Granite
Palhweys,
Concord/NH

226900-

8001
Stat^de

j

!  $311,873 $186,000 $497,673

0: 09/18/19

Item 019

A1:02/17/21

Item 920

Tolol; $638,936 $310,000 $846,936

Funds are available In the following accounts for Stale Fiscaf Years 2022 and 2023. with
the authority to adjust budget line Items within the price limitalion and encumbrances.between
state Hecal years through the Budget Offioej if naed^ and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION >■

The purpose of this request is to Have the Contractors continue to provide yocationa)
training eupports and vvorldorce'readiness progrerris for individuals with Opioid and/or Stimulant
Use Disorders who are In treatment end recovery settings and who are eeeWng to join and/or re-

TT>« DcporPnint end Humon StrUcu'Miuien i$ tejofh communilia end fomilUt
(a pfOK/idinfepporlunilitifv c'iUiaj loeehitvt heolth and indtptnothet.
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Hb ExoeRertcy.Govemof CMUb^rT. Sununu ,
' ond tfio Honof^e Council j '
PaQ«2of2 I :

I  * V

Join the worlcforoe. Servloes provided through the contracts support' IndMduals In attaining gainful
employment, which Is e.crlticel aspect of continued sobriety.

.  . Approximately 200 individuals will be served from September 30.2021 to.September 29,
2022. ■

The Correctors will continue Integreting workforce readiness programming Into treatment
artd recovery settir^gs, Including creating vocational profiles in order to determine an indrvlduars
skill level, slrertoths, snd readiness to gairi employment. The Contractors wilt continue linking
Individuals to sppropriate vocational trair^ings by providmg training stipends and other resources
that assist the IrKfivlduale on the path to emjployment: Vocationa} training may Include, tHJl is not
limited to. providing assistance with resume writing, completing job appiicetions, end improving
interviewing skills. { '

The Oepartment will continue monttonng contracted services by revlew1r>g rnonthty end
quarterty reports submitted by the Contractors snd monitor the following performance measures:

•  Ensuring ninety percent (90%) of individuals complete provlded.tralnlng programs.

•  Ensuring seventy-five percent (75%) of Individuels gain employment.

•  Ensuring contact and coordination wHh one hundred percent (100%) of Recovery
Friendly Workforce Initiative ernploysrs.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2.
Renewal of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon I satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties er^ Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising he
option to renew service for one (1) year of jthe one (t) available year remaining.

Should the Governor end Council, not authorse this request, individuals In recovery
Seeking a better quality of life and employment opportunities would have limited options.
Workforce participation and consistent employment are criticdl components of an Individual's
ability to remain In recovery and meaningfu ly participate in their communities.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: Assistance Listing #93.788, FAIN 0H79T1O83326.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer evellable, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program. |

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette
Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

OS-02-02-920910<7MOOOOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS:

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV, BUREAU OF ORUC AND ALCOHOL SERVICES. 80R GRANT

lOOXFedtralFundf I

Vendor Nomo .. OroaierTiiton Area Family Raaource Center i Vendor d 207434 .

State Fttcai

Year
Ciesfl/AoGotmi Class TIM Job Number CurreiM Amount

Inffoase

(Deaeasa)
Roused Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Propram Sarvlces 02057040 $70,081.00 $0.00 $70,061.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts lor Program SarvlcM 03057040 $27,748.00 $0.00 $27,748.00

2021 102-900731 Contracts lor P/oamm Servlees 92097046 $20,234.00 so.oo $20,234.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prooram Servieos . 02057048 $68,687.00 $0.00 $88,667.00

2022 .  102-500731 Contracts lor Proomm Sarvloos 02057046 933 333.00 $0.00 $33,333.00

2022 074.S00SaS Omnts lar Pub Asit artd Re) 02057048 $0.00 $03 000.00 $93,000.00

2023 074-900989 Grerws (or Pub Assi and Hal 02057046 $0.00 .$31,000.00 til.660.00
Sub Total t2J7.0S3.00 $124,000.00 1391.063.00

1

var^ 0 228900iVondor Name . Grartlte Ppfiway*

State Fitcdl

Year
Ctats/Account ' Class Tina | Job Number Cutroni Amount

Increase

IDacreasel
Resiled Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts (or Prooram Servlcds 020S7040 $72,683.00 $0.00 172,883.00

2021 102-500731 Contracb (or Proqram Services 02057040 $45,338.00 $0.00 $49,336.00

2021 102-500731 • Contracts (or Prooram Services' . 02057048 $43,652.00 $0.00 $43,852.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Soivlces 02057048 $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

2022 102-500731 Controcts lor Prooram Sorvlccs 02057046 - $50,000.00 $0.00 $50,000.00

2022 074-900585 Grants lo' Pub Assi and Rol 02057048 $0.00 $130,500.00 $139,500.00

■  2023 . 074-500585 Grants lot Pub Asst or>d Rat 02057048 $0.00 $46,500.00 $48,900.00

Sub Tolal 1 1311.873.00 $180,000.00 $497,673.00

Overall Total $5».026.00 tJ10.000.00 $048,030,001

GoverrK>r arid Council letter Alt ichment

I Ptrxandal Dcial)

Page 1 of 1
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Ctentetoat'

Katja S.
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state OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiON FOR BEHA VJORAL HEALTH.
r

129 PLEASANT STWET. CONCORD, Nil 0)301 .
U3-22I-95M l-BOO-a52-3345Ei<.9S44

F.ax: (03-221^3)2 TDD Acmi: l-00(^735>39(4 wvw,ehtu.nb.tev

December 3. 2020

Mis Excellency. Governor Chrtstopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTtON

Authorize the Department of Heaitrl and Human Services. Division for BchaviorBl Heellh,
to Retroacllvely amend existing cohlrects with the vendors listed below to continue providing
Wortdorce Readiness end Vocational Tralrjing Programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorder,
by exercising renewal options by Increasing the total price limitation by $204,962 from
$333,974.46 to $538,936.48 and by extending the completion dates from September 29. 2020 to
September 29. 2021 effective retroactlvajlo September 29. 2020 upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds. |

■ The individual corilracts were approved by Governor and Council as specified in the table
below. ' • '

Vendor Nemo' Vendor

Code

AroD Served Current,
• Amount

IncroBOO

(Oacroeee)
Rovlaed .

Amount

cac

. Approval

Greater Tilion

Area Family
Re^rce
Center,
TlllbfVNH

297434-

R001

. Greater TiJlon
Area

1

1  $136,740 $66,323 $227,063 0: Oa/14/19,
Item 010 '

Grenlie

Pathways,
Concord/NH

226900-

B001
Statewide $195,234.46 $116,639 $311,673.46

0:09/18/16.
Item 019

. Total: $$}),974.46 $204,962 $536,936.46

Funds are available in the following accounts for Slate Ftkal Year 202*1. and aro
anticipated to be avaiiabia in State Fiscal Year 2022. upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limitation end enournbrences between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
(f needed and justified.'

See attached fiscal detalle. "

Tht tkpOftm'tnl9llUotUi dnrf Stfvitu'Miuicn it l9f9iA t9mmunilitton4/eniUlti
lA pnvidifti OppOflunilitt fo* tiiiunt 'o ocAaw h€oU>t end indtptndtnet..

■if'
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Hia ExeeQency.Oo««morCM»tDphe(T.Gumfiu
' ent) (he Honoretto Ceund) | -\-Pe9e2of3 j *

MPMWATlPff .

TMb request Ib Retrosctlve becaiifie euffidBnt funds In Sfate Fls(^l Year 2021 were not
evaiiable In the operating budget coneJdertng the grant amount awarded, end due to delay by the
Subfitarroe Abuse and Mental Health Seryloes AdminiBlrotion (SAMHSA) In approving New
Hampshire's requests for continued State Opioid Response Grent funding, the efforts to add the

. state epproprtations Uere daferred. |
The purpoee of this request is to cdminue to provide vocetionsl training supports and

workforce reedineso programs for individuole wtth Opiold Vee Oisorders who ere in treetment and
recovery settings and vt^o are soehing to join ontf/or re-join the workforce. Employment has long
been recognized as a critical'otemont in the recovery process, providing people wtth hope and
opportunity to move forward in the reooveiy process dslermined. by prindptos of self*
determination.

Approxlmsleiy 100 Individuals will be' served from September-29.2020 to Septembisr 20,
2021. " I '

This vendors will contirkje integrating workforce readlneu programming tnio treatment
and recovery aattlnge. Including creating vo^liqnal profilea In order to determine an Individual's
skill level, strengths, end reqdiness to galnjemployment. The vendors will link tl>e (rtdlvlduol to
appropriate vocational trainings wtth the provision of t/alning stipends Br>d other resources to aid
the Individual oh the path to employment. Yocatlonal training may include, but Is not limited to.
esaiatance with resume writing, completing jpb applicationa, and Improving Interviewing ekilla.

Unique to theae eervices ta a robust level of dlent-apaciric data that wili be available, which
wOl be collected in coordination with the Regional Ooo^ays. The State Oplold Responae grant
rbquirea that all Individuals served receive a Mmprehenslve asseesmani el aevera! time Intervala,
apeclffceJIy at fnlakie. elx (6) months after Intelce, and upon diacharge. Through collaborative
agreements vrith the vendors under theae oontracte.-the Reglonqt Ooonvays gether data on dientr
related outcomes including; recovery atatua, criminal jusUoe Invotvemant. employment, errd
housing needs at the time intervals listed e^e. The date collected enables the Department to
meaaure short end lor>g-ferm outcomes easc^'ated with Slate Oplold Reaponae-funded Initiatives
and to determine which prog^ma are generating the beat resdta for-the dicnts served.

The Department will monitor conriaded eervioes using the following performance
measures;

The Contractors win ensure n
traifling programs.

nety percent (80%) of Individuals complete provided

»  The Contractors will ensure eeventy-frve peroent (76%) of Individuals gain
employhenl. j

As referenoed in Exhibit C-1. Revtsiona to Standard Contract language, Par^raph 2.
Renewal of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for.up to
two (2) additional years, oontingent upon satisfactory dalivery of services, evaiiable funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor end Coimdl approval. The Department Is exerdaing Its
option to renew aervioes for one (1) of the two (2) yoera availoble.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize thia request, individuals in
recovery aeeklng a belter quality of life and employment oppcriunillee would hava lirnrted options.
Wortcforc© participatJon end consistent employment are crftical componenta of an Individuare
ability to remain In recovery end meaningfudy participate in thdr communitiee.

•.'V,
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Area served: SlBtewtde. , |

Source of Functe: CFOA m709. FA N 011081685 end FAJN rr)08332e.
In the event that the Federal Fund# become rto lortger available. General Funds will no1

be requested to support thia program.
Respectfully submitted.

Lorl A. Shiblnette
Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT 07 health AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNmr MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SFV 2«1< FINANCUL DETAIL

OMVn nOSlP'TM^ health and social SERVICeS. health ANO human SVCS DEPT Of HMS:

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV OF BUREAU OF ORUO S ALCOHOL SERVICES, STATe OPIOlO

RESPONSCCRANT

leou fAdtni Fuaoi cfoa fftiTis Fain H7iTioitU9 end KTtnuun i

TPen Am fmnh RrtourcA Cenm. TtovNH vc«wr«

SU3(FbeM

V««'
CiAu/Acooum Ctasi TIM jcbNunbor Curroro Affloum IncrooM (Ooe/tAM) R*<r)»M AmiAlt

2PT0 102/S0010I Conncts iDf ̂ oonm BenAcM 910370(0 3110,992 (340.9)1) 370.091

10} 1 loi/aoont C«no«ct»lo« Progren Servteti 920370(0 3)7.7(« $0 327.749

ion toi/aootn COMrto /Of Ptocvn Scnt4ca>- 91037d(« $0 329.734 329.2](
ton lot/soom Cowao* tor Ptwrtrn 6»v<c*> 9203 70<l 30 3M.M7 3M.U7

ton t03/300Tn Ce<w»cu ic Pfoetm 6«<y<C4t «}C370«» 30 37».n> tn.iM

SUOTCUI 31)9.7(0 sas.)!) 3117,06)

CrtHt* PftiMm. Ceneord/HH
•• i  . Varaor*

cui«nK«)
vil/ Clxu/Acooutl Ctni TIM,

I

MbN«T6cr

•  1
Cvnenl /Nnouni lAC/eue (DccrttM) Ro«l»«0 Amount

tON 192/900731. CorMcO lor SvrviCM 910370(0 3I49.I9S ($77,213) 372.6S3
ton 102/300731 Conc/ocu lor ̂ oorwn ScrvicM 920370(0 343.339 SO 343,3)9

ton 102/300731 Controcu tor ProQ/om S«v%on 9}0370(( 30 143.932 34).93)

ton 102/300731 . Controcti lor Proonm S«rv<on 9203 Toil 3« 3)00.000 3100,000
1012 102/300731 Coni/Mti lor Rroorvn Scn<c«» 920370(l 30 330.000 3SO.OOO

Sub Toul 1 3193.234 3n3.«30 3311.97)

9?0*.963l -

/

AOttfrmrt • OtfiM M S<h»torM

FVw«diiO«iM

P«0« > d 1

M



OocuSlgn envelope ID; 1B05SB3A-fl76S^AO5-9C7O-A3AE961732C9

DecuS)9ii Envelop# ID; 17Fe6EeE-1AC2-M8f .eE0A-742MF65Ce5l
OecuSlen Erneicoo lO: UA02ACF4O£M4F^aCS4nM$bDCO098 1UC30'I9 di 2:17 OAS ( '<? , /

i<frrT; A. Mc;Tr>
' C#aR^ul#Air

Dlmiof

STATC OF NEW HAMPSHIR£

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AW HUMAN SERVICES

oimtON FOH beha vioral heal TH
\  ■ . .. ■

l» PttASAWT STRCCT. COWCORO. WM OMOl
(03-2.71.9)44 I40O4SI 3MS C»i M44

r#i:(0)-77l-4)}} TPO Ac««i»: l400-7>5-JH«

August 28, 2019 ...

Hlfi Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sunynu
end the Honorable'Councii

State House -, 1 ^5
Concord. New Hampshire 03301 , •

RgQUgSTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Hoatth and Human Services Oivisiori for Behavioral Health, to enter
inlo -egreement with Granite Pathways (Vendor # 228960-8001). 10 Ferry Street. Suite 319 Concord
•NH 03301 in an amount not to exceed $195,234.48. to provide Workforce Readiness, end Vocaliona
Trelnlng Programs for Individuals with Opioid:Use Disorder, clfective upon dale of Governor and Counal
approvaUhfough September 29. 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are arilicipaled to be available in the foOowmg account lor State
Fiscal Years 2020 arid 202i upon the availability and conlinued approprialior) of funds in the future
operatir>g budget.' with authority to adjust arfibunts wiihin the price limiietion and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Offce. if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-7040 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SV^
■HHS.: behavioral HEALTH OIV. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES. STATE OPIOtO
RESPONSE GRANT

SUto Fiscal Year CfassfAccount Ciass.Title Job Number Total Amount

'2020 102.500731- Contracts for Prog Svc 92057040 $149,696.32

2021 -102.500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 9205?040 $45,338.16

Total; $195,234.48

'  . |EXPLANATtON '
The purpose of this request is for the design and implementation of vocational tra'm'mg supports

and workforce.re^iness programs for individuals with Opioid Use Disorders in trealmeni and recove^
■ settings who are seeking to jo.in and/or re-jpin the workforce. This vendor was selected for *^'5
through a competitive bid process. A Requesi for Proposals was posted on The Department of Health
and Human Services* web site from November 15. 2018 through December 13. 20ia In addition, a
notice was sent by email to a wide variety of stakeholders and potential vendors.
received four (4) proposals. The proposals were reviewed and scored by a team of individuals wiin
oroflfam specific knowledge. • The review mciuded a thorough discuss'ron of the strcr^ths and
weaknesses ol the probosals/applicalions. The Score Summary is attached. Employment has long been.

'Vi
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i...

recognized es a c/iiicei element in the recovery process, providing peopte with hope and opporlunity to
move forward in the recovery process'that is determined by principles of Gelf-determineiidn.

■ This request represents the rmal one of two (2) contracts to provide vocationdl training
supports and wortcforee readiness programs. The Governor and £xecuiive Council previously approve^

• pf\8 (1) cdntract'onAugusI ie. 26l9(llemOlO).
The State of New Hampshire received funding through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health

Services Admirxisiretion (SAMHSA) State Opipid-Response <SOR> grant opponurUiy. New Hompshire
will use evidence-t^sod methods to expand treatment, recovery, end prevention aervicoo to individuals
with QUO in- NH. These chlicat funds will strengthen established programs that have had a positive impact'
on the opioid crisis as well es expand the. capacity for programs thai have shown promise In helping
individuals battling an opioid misuse issue and siem the tide of the addiction epidemic in NH. In 2017,
NH had 466 opiold-reiated deaths.-2.774 ;emeroency naloxone (Narcan) administratioris. and 6.684
emergency department opioid related visits. NH is ranked as having the third highest overdose rate In
the country at 39 Individuals per 100.000 populetiorv The scope of work was developed, in part, through
a public ccrrunent forum which identiried gaps'in the system aimed at workforce training opportunities for
individuals with OUD. The servi^s provided, through these funds should leverage resources and
facilitate-connectiof^s with the muitipl^ workforce initiatives for indrviduais with SUQ/OUD that have
pmerged over the past two years, ir^cluding the Governor's.Recoveiy Friendly Workplace Program and.
the Department of Labor National Health Ernergency Demonsiratlon grant for individuals in recovery,
provided under the Workforce Innovation'ortd pppoduhlty Ad of 20)4.

This agreement will.require the vendor (o integraiie workforce readiness programming into
trealmeht end recovery settings, including creating vocational proHles in order, to determine an individual's-
skit) level, strengths, and readiness to gain employment. The vendor will link the indtvidual to appropriate
vocational trainings with the provision of training stipends and other resources to aid the individual on the
path to employment. Vocational training may include, but is rtot limited to assislarKe with resume writing,
job applications, and improving interviewing skills. '

Unique to these services is. a robust level of cfient-speciftc.'dat.d that will be available, which win
be collected in coordination vviih the Regioriai Hubs that were approved by Governor-end Executive
Council at the October 31. 2018 meeting. The SOR grant requires (hat all individuals Served receive a
comprehensive assessrhant at several time,intervals, spedficaDy. at,intake, six fS) mor^ths and upon
(discharge. Through collaborative agreements'with the vendor under this contract, the .Regional Hubs will
be responsible for gatherirtg date on client-related outcomes including; recover status, criminal justice-

, Involvement, employment, end housing needs at the time Iniervais listed above. This data will enable the
DepaHmeni to measure shod and long-term' cuicomes associated with SO,R-funded iniliat'Fves end to
determine which programs are generati.rvg the best results for the clients served. ■

■  Approximately one huridred (100) individuals will be served from'Govemor and Executive Council
approval Ihfough September 29. 2020. ; '

As referenced in Ihe Request for Proposals and in Exhibit CT of this contract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to two (2) ladditioh'ai years.- contingent upon' satisfactory delivery of
services, available.funding, agreement of the' parlies end approval of the Governor end Council. - «

Should the Governor and Executive jCouncil not authorize this request, individuals in recovery
seeking e. better quality of life and employment opportunities would' have limited options. Workforce
participation and consistent employment are crilical components of an individual's ability to remain in

'Si!



OocuSlfln EnWfOpe ID; lBb5e83A^76B-4A06-9C70-A3AE961732C9

OoeuSlon Efwetopo ID: 17FE6eBe-1AC2-44eF-ee0A.7428OP65Ce5l ,

OocwSlBn Crnciop* lb: UM2iCr.4O£M4Ffr4CB4.97»MOCM08

Kit EoeOeflCy. Governor CMsiopft&T. Surumu
end Dtf Honomble CouAOl ^
Pi0e.3af9

recovery and meGningfully participfll© in theif coffwunities..

Area served: Statewide. | "
Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from (he Substance .Abuse end Mental Heatth Services

Administration. State Optoid Response Gram.|(CFDA P93.7&8. fain T)O81605)
In the event Ihat (he Federal (or Other) Funds become no tonger available. Generar Funds wID

not be ceeuesled to support (his program. I

■iV'

Respectfully submitted.

A: Meyers
Cbm'mlssioner

•T'.

H-.'

7h4 Orfior1itnAl«/tftvll/ie/>t fhrnoA il cvmrntmitio Ootf femiHa
t/i p/oiad«A| fififiOrtuAi'litt tit ciliOAi 10 t)d\Uyf hiofth OAtf itidtficndcAn^

a,



ObcuSign Envelope 10; 1B0S6B3A-876B-4AO6-9C7D-A3AE961732C9

OocuSign Envelope 10: 17FE6EBE-1AC2-44«r^£SA.742UF6SC651
OeeuS^ Emetope lO: 3aAfiZACF-t0£»-MP&«ca4>9730S0OC0698

New Hampshire Department of Heailth and Human Services
Office of. Business Operations . - '

Contracts & Procurement'Unit

wonfDTce Re»0>nesB end Vocetionzi Tninlne
'erogrvm* tor IntfKWualB «<9> OttfoM Uio

OHordef ^

RFP Nimo .»•

nV-S-,

RPP-20l9-eOAS>12.W0RKP

"r-: RFPNumtwr. . Reviewer Names

1.

feidderName

Greater Tliion Area Family Resource Center

Headrest. >nc!

3; Granite Pathwaye..lnc.

■ 'Famlty Resoyce Center at Gorriam

.  jai Burtie. 0*ieio!Pfeve«iicn4 • . '•

Educaiionei Services, boas

Po»a/Feu

Maximum

Points

Actual -

Points

MeBssa dram. Oi* Sc^avio^i KTih

eusmessAdministnitor in >;

TSO. -559

^ CerePatrvds.OivFamByAssHi.
' Bus^ss&lndtfStfyMgr.

750 515

Barry Stndbery. PTDgram
' SpedaTsi rv. ov Behavioral Hroi

-  '750 - —5$3—

UnOyKctter. Resources B
^—- Otv^pVient Admin BOAS —. - .

750 443
6.


